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To our shareholders

In 2016, the Group reported a loss attributable to
owners of the Company of HK$207.90 million. The
reporting of the loss was attributable largely to (i)
the recognition of impairment losses in respect
of financial assets of HK$199.40 million and (ii) a
HK$21.42 million decrease in gross profit. Although
the Group incurred the loss of HK$207.90 million in
2016, we consider that the financial position of the
Group remains sound as the cash level of the Group
and the equity attributable to owners of the Company
stood at HK$438.98 million and HK$3,249.15 million
at 31 December 2016 respectively.

As we had not been able to secure quality films at
reasonable prices for distribution, we have recently
closed our film distribution operations by disposing
of our film library. The closure of our film distribution
operations not only reduces our administrative costs,
but also enables us to concentrate our resources to
the existing businesses.

Our sale of financial assets business did not perform
well in 2016. It was attributable largely to the poor
market sentiment in small and mid-cap stocks in
Hong Kong, which was resulted from investors taking
a defensive strategy towards uncertainty. In 2017, we
will closely monitor the factors, such as economic
factors, investor sentiment, and fundamentals of
an investee company and future prospects, and
proactively adjust our equity portfolio mix in order to
improve our performance.

Following the expansion into money lending business
in 2012, we enjoyed a rapid growth in our money
lending business in 2013 and 2014. Our money
lending business experienced a decline in 2016,
which was due to the granting of fewer new loans as
a number of prospective customers did not meet the
Group’s credit screening criteria. In 2017, we will put
more effort to develop Hong Kong listed companies
segment as listed companies have generally a higher
creditworthiness.
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We recorded a decline in our sale of jewelry products
and precious stones business in 2016. The decline
in our sale of jewelry products business was mainly
attributable to (i) the depreciation of Euro and
British pound against Hong Kong dollars, and (ii)
the pessimistic economic outlook in Europe after
Brexit. The decline in our sale of precious stones
business was caused by our decision to slow down its
operations in the second half of 2016. Such decision
was made in response to the slowdown in settling
trade debts by customers, which was a direct result
of the poor market sentiment on precious stones.
We are currently reviewing our business strategy for
precious stones business as to whether or not to
close down our sale of precious stones operations as
it merely provides a single digit gross profit margin,
but requires a longer than expected period for trade
debts settlement. In addition, we will examine our
operations in sale of jewelry products in order to cope
with the sluggish market condition.

Our property investment business grew significantly
in 2016. Such significant growth was due to the
full year effect of the rental income as the lease
of the assets of our membership-based golf club
and resort in Beijing, Mainland China (the “Club”)
commenced in October 2015 and the investment
property in Guangzhou, Mainland China was acquired
by us in November 2015. At the end of 2016, the
first phase development of a piece of 580 Chinese
acre land adjacent to the Club (the “Subject Land”)
was substantially completed. As various prospective
purchasers have approached us for the sale and
purchase of the Club and the Subject Land since
the third quarter of 2016, we are considering to re-
examining our business strategy for the Subject
Land in order to maximising the shareholders’ value.
Although the first phase development of the Subject
Land was substantially completed at the end of
2016, we may delay the marketing activity for leasing
the hotel villas and/or slow down the pace of the
development of the Subject Land so as to keep the
Subject Land as an unoccupied site for sale.
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We believe that the economic outlook for 2017
remains uncertain as the global economy is facing
a lot of challenges, including Brexit, European
instability, an aggressive interest rate rises by the
United States (“US”) Federal Reserve and an unclear
US trade policy under President Donald Trump. Given
the uncertain backdrop, we continue to solidify our
fundamentals by refining our business operations
and developing our existing businesses in a cautious
manner. However, we recognise that continued
certainty often coincides with a good opportunity
to invest. Accordingly, we will look at possible
business investments in order to further diversify our
businesses and broaden our revenue base.

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to extend
our appreciation to all fellow directors and employees
for their invaluable efforts, dedication and commitment
to the Group and to thank all shareholders and
business associates for their continuous support.

Lei Hong Wai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2017
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

On 6 November 2015, SkyNet Group Limited
(“SkyNet”, stock code: 8176), a then 70.18% owned
subsidiary of the Company, allotted and issued
345,000,000 new ordinary shares and 30,000,000
new convertible preferred shares to six subscribers.
As a result, the Group’s shareholding interest in
SkyNet was diluted from 70.18% to 12.51% and
SkyNet ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company.
Accordingly, the results of SkyNet and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “SkyNet Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2015 were restated to re-present
as discontinued operations for financial reporting
purposes. During the year ended 31 December 2015,
the SkyNet Group was principally engaged in the
development, distribution and marketing of personal
care treatments, products and services.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2016 amounted to
HK$207,902,000, whereas a profit of HK$105,256,000
was reported for the previous year. The deterioration
in the results is discussed in the sub-sections headed
“Results of continuing operations” and “Operation
Review” below.

Results of continuing operations

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
recorded revenue of HK$161,042,000, a 12.85%
decrease from HK$184,780,000 for the previous
year. The decrease in revenue was attributable to the
decrease in sale of jewelry products and precious
stones, and loan interest income, which were partially
offset by the increase in rental income. Of the total
revenue, HK$49,154,000 was generated from money
lending, HK$89,054,000 was generated from sale of
jewelry products and precious stones, HK$45,171,000
was generated from property investment and a loss of
HK$22,337,000 was generated from sale of financial
assets. Loss for the year from continuing operations
amounted to HK$207,904,000, whereas a profit of
HK$122,589,000 was reported for the previous year.
This deterioration was mainly attributable to (i) a
HK$245,064,000 decrease in gain on deemed disposal
of a subsidiary, and (ii) a HK$75,363,000 increase in
loss arising on change in fair value of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Results of continuing operations (Continued)

Gross profit for sale of jewelry products and precious
stones decreased by 36.76% from HK$24,529,000 in
the year ended 31 December 2015 to HK$15,512,000
in the year ended 31 December 2016 and gross profit
margin for sale of jewelry products and precious
stones decreased from 20.91% in the year ended
31 December 2015 to 17.42% in the year ended 31
December 2016. These decreases were mainly due to
(i) the depreciation of Euro and British pound against
Hong Kong dollars in the second half of 2016, and (ii)
the pessimistic economic outlook in Europe after the
United Kingdom’s vote to leave the European Union in
June 2016 (“Brexit”).

Gross profit for property investment increased by
311.14% from HK$6,149,000 in the year ended 31
December 2015 to HK$25,281,000 in the year ended
31 December 2016. This increase was mainly due to
the increase in rental income resulted from the full
year effect of the rental income as the lease of the
assets of the Group’s membership golf club and resort
in Beijing, Mainland China (the “Club”) commenced in
October 2015 and the investment property located at
No. 33 Nonglinxia Road, Yuexiu District, Guangzhou,
Mainland China (the “Guangzhou Property”) was
acquired by the Group in November 2015. Gross
profit margin for property investment decreased from
67.58% in the year ended 31 December 2015 to
55.97% in the year ended 31 December 2016. Such
decrease was attributable largely to the inclusion
of a refund of Mainland China Business Tax of
HK$2,113,000 in the year ended 31 December 2015,
whereas no such item in the year ended 31 December
2016.

Investment and other income decreased by
64.66% from HK$4,765,000 for the year ended
31 December 2015 to HK$1,684,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2016. This decrease was mainly
attributable to a HK$1,764,000 decrease in dividend
income received from Hong Kong listed equities held
by the Group and an HK$819,000 decrease in interest
income on bank deposits.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Results of continuing operations (Continued)

Other gains and losses represent items of income and
expenses, which are material and/or extraordinary
in nature. Major items of other gains and losses
recorded by the Group during the year are as follows:

(@)

At 30 June 2016, the Group re-measured its
investment in 52,500,000 shares in SkyNet at
market price and, for the sake of prudence,
recognised an impairment loss of HK$57,750,000
in respect of available-for-sale financial assets
reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

Following the appointment of Mr. Lei Hong Wai
and Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton, both of them
are executive directors of the Company, as
executive directors of China Healthwise Holdings
Limited (“China Healthwise”, stock code:
348 and formerly known as Haier Healthwise
Holdings Limited) on 11 October 2016, the
Group was regarded as having significant
influence over China Healthwise. Accordingly,
the Group’s investment in 500,000,000 shares in
China Healthwise, which had been acquired for
securities trading purposes, was accounted for
as interest in an associate for financial reporting
purposes. In recognising the cost of investment,
the 500,000,000 shares in China Healthwise were
re-measured at fair value and a gain arising on
change in fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss upon recognition of
interests in associates of HK$17,367,000 was
recorded.

On 30 November 2016 and 5 December 2016,
18,750,000 shares and 6,250,000 shares in
SkyNet held by the Group were placed to two
independent investors respectively at a placing
price of HK$4.80 per share pursuant to the
placing agreement dated 23 November 2016.
Upon completion of the placing, the Group
recognised a cumulative gain reclassified from
equity to profit or loss upon derecognition
of available-for-sale financial assets of
HK$22,500,000.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Results of continuing operations (Continued)

(d) Following the resignation of Mr. Cheung Kwok
Wai Elton as an executive director of China
Healthwise on 16 December 2016, the Group
was regarded as losing significant influence over
China Healthwise and China Healthwise ceased
to be an associate of the Group. Accordingly,
the Group’s investment in 500,000,000 shares
in China Healthwise has been accounted for as
available-for-sale financial assets for financial
reporting purposes and a loss on deemed
disposal of an associate of HK$21,500,000 was
recognised.

(e) At the end of the reporting period, the Group
measured its equity portfolio at market prices
and recognised a loss of HK$141,649,000 arising
on change in fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

Selling and distribution expenses mainly represent
staff costs of sales team, overseas travelling
expenses, freight charges and commission incurred
by the Group’s sale of jewelry products and precious
stones business. Selling and distribution expenses
increased by 59.44% from HK$3,654,000 in the year
ended 31 December 2015 to HK$5,826,000 in the
year ended 31 December 2016. This increase was
attributable largely to (i) a HK$610,000 increase in
staff costs due to the full year effect of recruiting
additional sales executives in the second half of 2015
for strengthening the Group’s export selling capacity,
(i) a HK$378,000 increase in overseas travelling
expenses for cultivating new customers in Europe,
the Middle East and Australia, and (iii) the payment
of commission of HK$860,000 relating to the sale of
precious stones.

Administrative expenses amounted to HK$87,055,000
for the year ended 31 December 2016, a 1.11%
decrease from HK$88,036,000 for the previous year.
Such decrease was mainly due to the absence of
equity-settled share-based payment expenses of
HK$17,800,000 recorded in the previous year, which
was almost entirely offset by (i) a HK$15,587,000
increase in amortisation and depreciation expense,
and (ii) a HK$1,011,000 increase in securities
expenses incurred for disposing of available-for-
sale financial assets. The increase in the Group’s
amortisation and depreciation expense was due to the
full year effect of the amortisation and depreciation

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Results of continuing operations (Continued)

expense as the acquisition of (i) the rights to manage
and operate the Club, (ii) the rights to develop and
operate a piece of 580 Chinese acre land adjacent
to the Club (the “Subject Land”) and the rights to
manage the properties erected on the Subject Land,
and (iii) the assets of the Club and the Subject Land
were completed in October 2015.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, Spark
Concept Group Limited (“Spark Concept”), a 49%
owned associate of the Group, and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Spark Concept Group”) reported
a consolidated loss of HK$2,337,000. As the Group’s
share of post-acquisition losses equals to its interests
in Spark Concept, no further share of loss for the year
was recognised.

Finance costs represent interest expense on a
mortgage loan paid by the Group. Finance costs
increased by 492.23% from HK$1,609,000 in the year
ended 31 December 2015 to HK$9,529,000 in the year
ended 31 December 2016. The increase was due to
the full year effect of the interest on mortgage loan
as the mortgage loan was assumed by the Group
through the acquisition of the Guangzhou Property in
November 2015.

An income tax credit of HK$2,903,000 was recognised
in the year ended 31 December 2016. The arising of
the income tax credit was mainly attributable to (i) a
HK$6,667,000 decrease in current tax expense due
to the decrease in the estimated assessable profit
of the Group’s money lending, and sale of jewelry
products and precious stones businesses, and (i) a
HK$5,271,000 increase in deferred taxation credit
arising from the reversal of deferred tax liabilities
related to the temporary differences on additional
amortisation and depreciation on account of upward
revaluation of assets at the acquisition of the entire
issued shares in and the shareholder’s loan due by
Smart Title Limited (“Smart Title”), which were partly
offset by a HK$782,000 increase in deferred taxation
expense arising from the gain on change in fair value
of investment properties.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Results of discontinued operations

On 6 November 2015, SkyNet ceased to be a
subsidiary of the Company and the results of
the SkyNet Group were restated to re-present as
discontinued operations.

Liquidity and financial resources

During the year, the Group funded its operations
through a combination of cash generated from
operations, equity attributable to owners of the
Company, issue of new shares and borrowings. Equity
attributable to owners of the Company decreased
from HK$3,352,310,000 at 31 December 2015 to
HK$3,249,145,000 at 31 December 2016. This
decrease was mainly attributable to (i) the loss of
HK$207,902,000 incurred by the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2016, and (i) a HK$103,999,000
decrease in exchange reserve mainly resulted from
the exchange loss arising on translating the assets
and liabilities of the Group’s operations in Mainland
China into Hong Kong dollars using the exchange
rate prevailing at the reporting date, which were
partly offset by (i) a HK$64,486,000 increase in
share capital and share premium arising from the
issue of 536,000,000 new ordinary shares at a price
of HK$0.125 per share in February 2016, and (ii) a
HK$144,250,000 increase in available-for-sale financial
assets revaluation reserve arising from the increase in
fair value of the Group’s investments in SkyNet and
China Healthwise at the end of the reporting period.

At 31 December 2016, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group amounted to HK$438,975,000 (31
December 2015: HK$509,341,000).

At 31 December 2016, the Group had outstanding
borrowings of HK$175,081,000 (31 December 2015:
HK$214,007,000), comprising (i) the mortgage loan
of RMB129,777,000 (equivalent to HK$145,081,000),
which is interest bearing at the benchmark interest
rate of The People’s Bank of China upward by
10.00% per annum, secured by the Guangzhou
Property and maturing on 21 April 2022, and (ii) the
promissory note of HK$30,000,000 issued to Gome
Finance Technology Co., Ltd. (stock code: 628 and
formerly known as Sino Credit Holdings Limited),
which is non-interest bearing, unsecured and maturing
within three business days after the date of a final
and effective judgement or an effective and binding
settlement agreement of the civil proceeding lodged

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Liquidity and financial resources (Continued)

by Zhanjiang City No. 4 Construction Engineering Co.,
Ltd CESIHEMNEETEBR AT, the “Contractor”)
a construction engineering company, against
Guangzhou Yingrui Real Estate Development Co.,
Lid. (BN TR EMEMBBR AT, “Yingrui’), a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, in respect
of not paying certain payment under the construction
contract of the Guangzhou Property. The decrease
in borrowings was mainly attributable to the monthly
repayments of the mortgage loan made by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

Gearing ratio

At 31 December 2016, the gearing ratio calculated
as a percentage of total borrowings over equity
attributable to owners of the Company was 5.39% (31
December 2015: 6.38%).

Net current assets and current ratio

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s net current
assets and current ratio were HK$1,124,475,000
(31 December 2015: HK$965,369,000) and 3.88 (31
December 2015: 3.50) respectively.

Capital structure

On 18 February 2016, the Company allotted and
issued 536,000,000 new ordinary shares at a price of
HK$0.125 per share to five individual investors, who
are independent third parties, and one corporation
investor, whose ultimate beneficial owner is an
independent third party, by way of placing of new
shares under general mandate raising HK$64,486,000
(net of expenses) for financing the Group’s sale of
jewelry products and precious stones business, and
money lending business. The closing price of the
Company’s ordinary shares was HK$0.152 per share
as quoted on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 27 January 2016,
being the date of the placing agreement. The net
price to the Company of each new ordinary share was
HK$0.1203. The directors considered that the placing
presented an opportunity for the Company to raise
additional funds for the operation of the Group’s sale
of jewelry products and precious stones business,
and money lending business while broadening the
shareholder base of the Company.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Use of proceeds from a fund raising activity

On 18 February 2016, the Company raised
HK$64,486,000 by way of placing of 536,000,000
new ordinary shares under general mandate at a
price of HK$0.125 per share. The net proceeds from
the placing of HK$64,486,000 were fully utilised for
financing the granting of two new loans pursuant to
the loan agreements dated 19 February 2016 and 23
May 2016.

Material acquisition

On 12 September 2016, the Group acquired
500,000,000 shares in China Healthwise at the
aggregate consideration of HK$117,633,000 (including
transaction costs) for securities trading. The
500,000,000 shares in China Healthwise represented
approximately 8.45% of the issued share capital of
China Healthwise and were accounted for as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss for financial
reporting purposes. Following the appointment of Mr.
Lei Hong Wai and Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton as
executive directors of China Healthwise on 11 October
2016, the Group was regarded as having significant
influence over China Healthwise and the 500,000,000
shares in China Healthwise were accounted for
as interest in an associate for financial reporting
purposes. The change in accounting treatment for the
500,000,000 shares in China Healthwise constitutes
a discloseable transaction of the Company under
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and was
announced by the Company on 11 October 2016. The
Group recognised a gain of HK$17,367,000 arising on
change in fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss upon recognition of interests in
associates.

Material disposals

During the year, the Group had the following material
disposals:

(@) On 30 November 2016 and 5 December 2016,
18,750,000 shares and 6,250,000 shares in
SkyNet held by the Group were placed to two
independent investors respectively at a placing
price of HK$4.80 per share pursuant to the
placing agreement dated 23 November 2016. The
placing constitutes a discloseable transaction of
the Company under the Listing Rules and was
announced by the Company on 23 November
2016. Upon completion of the placing, the
Group recognised a cumulative gain reclassified
from equity to profit or loss upon derecognition
of available-for-sale financial assets of
HK$22,500,000.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Material disposals (Continued)

(b) Following the resignation of Mr. Cheung Kwok
Wai Elton as an executive director of China
Healthwise on 16 December 2016, the Group
was regarded as losing significant influence over
China Healthwise and China Healthwise ceased
to be an associate of the Group. Accordingly,
the Group’s investment in China Healthwise has
been accounted for as available-for-sale financial
assets for financial reporting purposes and a
loss on deemed disposal of an associate of
HK$21,500,000 was recognised.

Pledge of assets

At 31 December 2016, the Guangzhou Property with
a carrying amount of HK$561,089,000 (31 December
2015: HK$595,448,000) has been pledged to a bank
for securing the mortgage loan granted to the Group.

Material commitments

At 31 December 2016, the Group had a total
commitment of HK$58,190,000 (31 December 2015:
HK$52,329,000) relating to the development costs
of the Subject Land, which were contracted but not
provided for.

Exchange risk and hedging

The majority of the Group’s transactions, assets and
liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
United States dollars, Euro, British pound and
Renminbi. The Group is exposed to exchange risk
with respect mainly to Renminbi, Euro and British
pound which may affect its performance. The directors
closely monitor statement of financial position
and cashflow exchange risk exposures and where
considered appropriate use financial instruments,
such as forward exchange contracts, foreign currency
options and forward rate agreements, to hedge
this exchange risk. During the year, no financial
instruments for hedging purposes were used by the
Group.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Contingent liabilities

At 31 December 2016, the Group had the following
material contingent liabilities:

(a)

On 20 March 2014, the Company announced that
it came to its attention that a writ of summons
in High Court Action No. 9 of 2014 was issued
by The Grande Holdings Limited (in liquidation),
Roderick John Sutton (as joint and several
provisional liquidator of The Grande Holdings
Limited), Fok Hei Yu (as joint and several
provisional liquidator of The Grande Holdings
Limited) and 65 other companies listed as
plaintiffs against 25 defendants inclusive of One
Synergy Limited (“One Synergy”), a company
acquired by the Group in December 2011. One
Synergy has, as at the date of this annual report,
not been served with the writ of summons.

The action alleges, inter alia, that One Synergy
is liable to the plaintiffs as a constructive trustee
and/or by way of equitable compensation and/
or an accounts of profits and/or restitution and/
or damages as a knowing recipient and/or by
reason of the knowing or dishonest assistance
in the breaches of trust and/or breaches of
fiduciary duties by various of the defendants and/
or by reason of dealings between One Synergy
and the plaintiffs otherwise being voidable (and
avoided), void, unlawful or illegal, in respect of
its receipt of the shares in The Grande Properties
Ltd. (now known as Rexdale Investment Limited
(“Rexdale™)), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company.

Riche (BVI) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, acquired the entire issued share
capital of Adelio Holdings Limited, which was the
holding company of One Synergy, from Vartan
Holdings Limited, an independent third party,
pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement
dated 25 May 2011. One Synergy acquired the
entire issued share capital of Rexdale from Lafe
Corporation Limited, being one of the defendants,
pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement
dated 31 December 2010 (the “Agreement”).
The entire issued share capital of Rexdale was
sold by The Grande (Nominees) Ltd., being one
of the plaintiffs, and The Grand Limited to Lafe
Corporation Limited on or about 29 June 2007.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Contingent liabilities (Continued)

The principal assets of Rexdale were the whole
of the 1st floor and the flat roof, the whole
of 6th to 12th floors, roof, external walls, two
lavatories, three lorry parking spaces and eight
private car parking spaces on the ground floor
of an industrial building located in Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong with a total gross floor of
approximately 139,412 square feet exclusive of
lavatories, lorry and private car parking spaces,
flat roof and roof (collectively, the “Kwun Tong
Properties”). The Kwun Tong Properties was
sold by Rexdale to Grand Reward Limited, an
independent third party, in July 2013.

One Synergy has sought counsel opinion on the
writ of summons and has been advised to defend
the plaintiffs’ claim in the said action. Counsel
has advised that, based upon available evidence,
there is nothing unusual in the Agreement and
One Synergy would not have any express or
constructive notice of the plaintiffs’ alleged
irregularities and/or fraudulent acts of the former
directors and/or management officers of the
plaintiffs and One Synergy should not be held
liable to any part of the plaintiffs’ claim and has
good and valid defence thereto.

On 1 April 2015, the Contractor commenced
a civil proceeding (the “Proceeding”) against
Yingrui at the People’s Court of Yuexiu District
of Guangzhou City (the “People’s Court”) for
failing to pay certain payments in the sum of
RMB11,427,354 (equivalent to HK$12,775,000)
under the construction contract entered into
between Yingrui and the Contractor for the
construction of the Guangzhou Property dated
28 July 2010, plus the interest accrued thereon
and the related costs and expenses incurred
in relation to the Proceeding. The amount
claimed by the Contractor under the Proceeding
comprises (i) the construction progress payment
of RMB1,420,000 (equivalent to HK$1,587,000),
(ii) the return of the performance bond of
RMB1,000,000 (equivalent to HK$1,118,000) and
(iii) the balance payment of construction fee of
RMB9,007,354 (equivalent to HK$10,070,000).
On 7 April 2015, the People’s Court upon an
application of the Contractor issued a seizure
order on certain units of the Guangzhou Property
in the aggregate value of RMB15,000,000
(equivalent to HK$16,769,000) to protect the
interest of the Contractor under the Proceeding.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Contingent liabilities (Continued)
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Pursuant to the first trial written judgement
issued by the People’s Court on 24 June 2016
(the “First Trial Judgement”), the People’s Court
has ruled:

(i) Yingrui to make a one-off payment of
RMB7,662,183 (equivalent to HK$8,566,000),
being the construction fee, plus the interest
accrued for the period from 13 September
2013 to the payment date calculated daily
at the similar lending rate published by The
People’s Bank of China for the same period
to the Contractor;

(i)  Yingrui to return the performance bond of
RMB1,000,000 (equivalent to HK$1,118,000)
by making a one-off payment plus the
interest accrued for the period from
1 October 2013 to the payment date
calculated daily at the similar lending rate
published by The People’s Bank of China for
the same period to the Contractor;

(iii) the Contractor’s other claims on the
Proceeding be dismissed; and

(iv) Yingrui to pay RMB239,207 (equivalent to
HK$267,000), being part of all the costs of
the First Trial Judgement.

Having consulted with its legal advisers,
Yingrui lodged an appeal against the First Trial
Judgement to the Intermediate People’s Court of
Guangzhou City in July 2016 (the “Appeal”).

No provision for the Proceeding was made in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2016 as Best
Volume Investments Limited (“Best Volume”),
the immediate holding company of Yingrui, has
secured an unconditional undertaking from Ace
Guide Holdings Limited, the ultimate beneficial
owner of Yingrui prior to the acquisition of Yingrui
by Best Volume in October 2014. Pursuant to the
unconditional undertaking, Ace Guide Holdings
Limited has agreed to pay to Best Volume or its
assignee by way of damages an amount equal
to any and all losses incurred by Yingrui and/
or Best Volume resulting from, arising out of or
in relation to the Proceeding, including without
limitation payment under final effective judgement
or settlement, and all other costs and expenses
incurred in relation to the Proceeding.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Employees and remuneration policy

At 31 December 2016, the headcount of the
Group was 42 (31 December 2015: 32). Staff costs
(including directors’ emoluments) for the year ended
31 December 2016 amounted to HK$55,675,000
(2015: HK$59,559,000). The decrease in staff
costs was mainly attributable to the absence of
equity-settled share-based payment expenses of
HK$12,400,000 recorded in the previous year, which
was partly offset by an HK$8,194,000 increase in
directors’ emoluments. In addition to basic salaries,
contributions to retirement benefits scheme and
discretionary bonus, staff benefits include medical
scheme and share options.

Key performance indicators
The Company has defined the following key

performance indicators (“KPIs”) which are closely
aligned with the performance of the Group.

EHE B R R 5

Bt ¥ B B8 (47)
EERMEHE

N-B—RE+ZA=1+—8  XEFZEE
AEBHEL2A(ZE—HAFE+ZA=+—H:32
AN) e BEZE—XR"F+ZHB=+—HLFE
ZEIRN(BIEEEZMNS) A55,675,0008
JT(ZZE—FHF :59,559,00087C) c BT
ZIK;F}Z/J\EEEEE@tﬂﬁiﬁ S22 AR REL n,s.z
ﬂxfﬁﬁ X B % 12,400,00078 T © MEZ TR IE D

DHEMEEE 8,194,0008 TTATIKSS -
%%$¥ﬁ$ EREBEAGFTEHARBBRA
N BIBAEEBEETSIRERE -

FERRER

ARBCHEATEARERREZE —H2E
EXRVER(EERRAER]D -

For the year ended 31 December

BZT-A=t-HLEE
Notes 2016 2015
Hizt “B-RE —E-1F
Revenue g HK$161,042,000%87T  HK$184,780,00038 ¢
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to owners ~ REERAFFE AELR
of the Company (B8) /&7 HK$(207,902,000) 8t  HK$105,256,000 8 0
Equity attributable to owners of the Company R4 F#HE AEEER HK$3,249,145,000/8 % HK$3,352,310,000 & T
Return on financial assets at fair value through ~ RAFEBHAEBRRZERERE
orofit or loss PACE 1 (14.28)% (5.99)%
Return on loans receivables EURERZER 2 9.08% 8.80%
Return on capital employed in sale of jewelry HERBERREAMA
products and precious stones ERzEH 3 3.18% 36.17%
Return on investment properties REMEZEH 4 3.04% 0.46%
Notes: iEd
1. Return on financial assets at fair value through profit or 1. BRAFEFAEBZERZEREEZEREEAT

loss includes gains and losses arising on change in fair
value, gains and losses on disposal and dividend income.
It is measured as a percentage against opening fair value
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
total investments made at cost.

2. Return on loans receivables includes interest income
and impairment loss recognised. It is measured as a
percentage against average loans receivables (excluding
accrued interest receivables).

EEHELECWHERER HESBZWHERE
BURBRERA - FHEZBDEARAFEFA
BERZEHEEZHBANATFERREATEZ
HBIRE -

2. EHRERZEREEFNSVARCERZBES
B qu"ﬁZE DEEBHFHERBER(TEEERK
FEsHR2)

KIEREEIZREGRAR
ZE-REFER

19



)9 9/60 06 600 HIS 000
0000000000000

) )Management Discussion and AnaIySI

20

EERMRRSH

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Key performance indicators (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

3. Return on capital employed in sale of jewelry products and
precious stones represents segment profit or loss from
sale of jewelry products and precious stones business
divided by average capital employed and is measured as a
percentage.

4. Return on investment properties includes gains and losses
arising on change in fair value, rental income and gains
and losses on disposal less amortisation of intangible
assets in respect of the Club, depreciation expense of the
property, plant and equipment of the Club and operating
lease rentals in respect of the Club. It is measured as
a percentage against opening fair value of investment
properties, opening carrying amounts of intangible assets
in respect of the Club and opening carrying amounts of
the property, plant and equipment of the Club.

Commentary on the performance of the Group against
each of these KPIs is set out in “Financial Review”
above and “Operations Review” below.

These KPIs are reviewed regularly and amended
occasionally to correspond with the changing mix of
the Group’s principal activities.

OPERATIONS REVIEW

During the year, no revenue was generated from the
Group’s film distribution business as the Group was
not able to secure quality films at reasonable prices
for distribution.

During the year, the Group’s sale of financial assets
business reported a segment loss (before taxation)
of HK$147,180,000, which includes the loss of
HK$22,337,000 from trading of Hong Kong listed
equities, the gain of HK$17,367,000 arising on
change in fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss upon recognition of interests
in associates, the loss of HK$141,649,000 arising on
change in fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, and the dividend income from
the Hong Kong listed equities held by the Group of

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2016

Pt EEE ()
FRREAER(AE)
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EmRBERER D R AR 57
BEX - BHAERBEAL -

4. REVPEZDBREEAFVESDELEZWERE
B HEWARKESEZWEREBEREHAS
e B EEBE SRz BERRE
ZTERXREREMzKEHERS - FH2
BALARENMEZHBANATE FEEM2E
WEEZHMOREAEREM2WE BERRE
ZHAIAREE o

RAEERRZBZITERBIEEZFREAR L

X[ B # el IR T X[ e -

ZEITRRBIERETENRF I FEER
BEAEETH2B T REBES -

FIEOEE
FR - ARAEEEEIUSEERINESEER
PARET HAEEY YR TERLRE
s o

FRA - $$$ﬁ%$%ﬂi§é¥i§ﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁ%¢é
(BR¥4AT) 147,180,0008 T » HEHhBIES

B EHIREEE22,337,00058 7T EEWEAHHF
ENRZRERERRAFEFABERZERE
EAFESBES 2 W 17,367,0008 T
BAFEFAERRZEREEATFERTE
H 2 EB141,649,000 B TR AEEES
ZEBLETREZREIA1,347,0008 7T °
BEZOBEEITEARBREZHIEERZ
REFF PR BHEBP/NERTZHER
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued)

HK$1,347,000. The reporting of the segment loss was
mainly due to the poor market sentiment in small and
mid-cap stocks in Hong Kong resulted from investors
taking a defensive strategy towards uncertainty.
Return on financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss for the year ended 31 December 2016 is
(14.28)% (2015: (5.99)%). The deterioration was mainly
due to an HK$8,162,000 increase in the trading loss
of Hong Kong listed equities and a HK$75,363,000
increase in the loss arising on change in fair value of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Group acquired six Hong Kong listed equities at
the aggregate acquisition cost of HK$419,668,000
and made the trading loss of HK$22,337,000 from
disposing of seven Hong Kong listed equities with the
aggregate carrying amount plus transactions costs of
HK$214,019,000 at the aggregate sale proceeds of
HK$191,682,000.

Management Dis cussfio-n'and Analysis

BB E R R S

RISCIRE (@)

SERFH - BE=ZE—R"F+=ZA=1+—
HIEFE BRAFEFABERZEMEEZ
B3R AE(14.28)% (ZF—HF :(5.99)%) °
ZARTERREELTRECESEEEM
8,162,000 B T RIZ A FHEFTABRR 2SR
BEEANFEESEHEL BB MNT5,363,000
BT ©

BHE-ZE—ARFE+ZA=+—HLEFE K
EEBAANETBLTRE BWBEBRAS
419 668,000 8t RHELtEFBLTR
E, HIRHMENR Z K A#E%E4A214,019,000
Bt MEEFESRIEHALES 191,682,00078
T MELEEEE 22,337,0008 T ©

Movements in the Hong Kong listed equities held by BE-—E-XNER-_S-FFE+=-A=+—H
the Group during the years ended 31 December 2016 LEE BAXREEREEELTREZZH
and 2015 are as follows: mT
2016 2015
—E-XF —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZKREE 597,658 598,705
Add: Acquisitions o EBA 419,668 692,506
Gain arising on change in BRABE AR ZERE
fair value of financial assets BRATFEFABERZ
at fair value through profit TRIEEATEERE
or loss upon recognition A6
of interests in associates 17,367 —
Less: Disposals Bt HE (213,602) (627,267)
Transfer to interests in associates BB NG 2 ER (135,000) —
Loss arising on change AT EEHEEZEE
in fair value (141,649) (66,286)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—HzZKRHAE 544,442 597,658

KIEREEIZREGRAR
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued) ¥ CIEEE)
Details of the Hong Kong listed equities held by the RZEBE-XRFE+ZB=+—HHAEBEEEZ
Group at 31 December 2016 are as follows: BERELITREZFHBNOT :
Gain/(loss)
Fair value arising on
as compared change in
to the fair value
consolidated recognised
Number of total assets in the year
shares held at Fair value at of the Group at ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2016 2016 2016
Bz
DTER ZE-KE
FEER tZA=1-8
i i ZB-RE LEECRER
—E-RF “B-K% +ZA=t+-H AFEEE
Name of Hong Kong +ZA=t-8 +=A=t-H RREE FiEER
listed equities ERLTRESR BEZRAEE 2DV E aEsty  BE/(FR)
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET TET
China Healthcare Enterprise EEREELEE
Group Ltd. ERLF
(stock code: 1143) (RERSE - 1143) 30,000,000 3,360 0.08% (22,135)
Frontier Services Group Ltd. FERKEEERAR
(stock code: 500) (B35 : 500) 4,800,000 4,992 0.12% (3,552)
Hsin Chong Group Holdings Ltd. ¥ E&EERAERA A
(stock code: 404) (RHAKHE © 404) 90,000,000 31,950 0.75% (37,350)
Huanxi Media Group Ltd. HEERERERAR
(stock code: 1003) (R : 1003) 55,610,000 144,586 3.41% 44,131
Kingston Financial Group Ltd. SHELREEERAA
(stock code: 1031) (R : 1031) 33,028,000 110,644 2.61% 9,976
Lajin Entertainment Network ARRES
Group Ltd. BRAF
(stock code: 8172) (RIRE : 8172) 120,000,000 78,000 1.84% (18,349)
Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Ltd.  Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Ltd.
(stock code: 444) (RO : 444) 55,000,000 11,000 0.26% (34,100)
Town Health International Medical EfEREEEE
Group Ltd. ERAF
(stock code: 3886) (R&HRSE - 3886) 70,000,000 87,500 2.06% (24,500)
Yunfeng Financial Group Ltd. ERSRRERRAF
(stock code: 376) (R : 376) 13,000,000 72,410 1.71% (55,770)
544,442 (141,649)
29 ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued)

During the year, the Group’s money lending business
generated interest income on loans of HK$49,154,000,
a 32.23% decrease from HK$72,529,000 for the
previous year. This decrease was attributable to
the grant of fewer new loans and the making of
early repayment by a number of customers. The
granting of fewer new loans was mainly attributable
to the decrease in loan applications as a number
of prospective customers did not meet the Group’s
credit screening criteria. The average monthly
balance of loans receivables decreased from
HK$824,071,000 in the year ended 31 December 2015
to HK$541,434,000 in the year ended 31 December
2016. During the year, the Group granted new loans
in the aggregate principal amount of HK$409,800,000
to its customers and received loans repayment of
HK$443,901,000 from its customers. In view of certain
internal cash resources of the Group were allocated
to finance the development of the Subject Land, the
Group raised additional funds of HK$64,486,000 from
the placing of new shares under general mandate
in February 2016 for financing the operations of
its money lending business. The entire additional
funds has been utilised for granting two new loans
to customers. At the end of the reporting period,
the directors assessed the collectability of loans
receivables. As there was no objective evidence that
the Group would not be able to collect all amounts
due, no impairment loss on loans receivables was
recognised. At 31 December 2016, the Group’s loans
receivables together with accrued interest receivables
amounted to HK$451,163,000 (31 December 2015:
HK$485,477,000). Return on loans receivables for the
year ended 31 December 2016 is 9.08%, which is
fairly constant with 8.80% in the previous year.

During the year, the Group’s sale of jewelry
products and precious stones business generated
revenue of HK$89,054,000, a 24.10% decrease from
HK$117,327,000 for the previous year, and reported
a segment profit (before taxation) of HK$2,468,000,
an 83.37% decrease from HK$14,838,000 for the
previous year. Revenue from sale of jewelry products
decreased by 11.41% from HK$76,248,000 in the year
ended 31 December 2015 to HK$67,550,000 in the
year ended 31 December 2016. Such decrease was
mainly attributable to (i) the depreciation of Euro and
British pound against Hong Kong dollars, and (ii) the
pessimistic economic outlook in Europe after Brexit.
Revenue from sale of precious stones decreased by
47.65% from HK$41,079,000 in the year ended 31
December 2015 to HK$21,504,000 in the year ended
31 December 2016. The decrease in revenue from

Managemerit'Discussion and Analysis
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued)

sale of precious stones was mainly due to the Group’s
decision to slow down its sale of precious stones
business in the second half of 2016 in response to the
slowdown in settling trade debts by customers, which
was a direct result of the poor market sentiment on
precious stones. The sale of precious stones business
merely provides a single digit gross profit margin,
but requires a longer than expected period for trade
debts settlement. The Group is currently reviewing
its business strategy as to whether or not to close
down its sale of precious stones operations in order
to reduce its credit risk exposure. Return on capital
employed in sale of jewelry products and precious
stones for the year ended 31 December 2016 is 3.18%
(2015: 36.17%).

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s inventories of
jewelry products and precious stones, including
raw materials, work-in-progress and finished
goods, amounted to HK$38,329,000 (31 December
2015: HK$41,412,000) and the Group’s sale of
jewelry products and precious stones business had
undelivered sale orders amounting to HK$2,000,000
(31 December 2015: HK$1,500,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Group’s property investment business generated
rental income of HK$45,171,000, a 396.44%
increase from HK$9,099,000 for the previous year,
and recorded a segment profit (before taxation)
of HK$6,433,000, whereas a segment loss (before
taxation) of HK$48,371,000 was recorded in the
previous year. Return on investment properties for
the year ended 31 December 2016 is 3.04% (2015:
0.46%). The significant improvement was attributable
to the full year effect of the rental income as the lease
of the assets of the Club commenced in October 2015
and the Guangzhou Property was acquired by the
Group in November 2015. Of the total rental income,
HK$21,000,000 was generated from the assets of
the Club and HK$24,171,000 was generated from the
Guangzhou Property. No rental income was generated
from the Subject Land as the entire Subject Land is
still at development stage.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued)

Since the third quarter of 2016, the Group has
been approached by and in discussion with several
prospective purchasers for the sale and purchase of
the Club and the Subject Land. As disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 29 August 2016, the
Group entered into a non-legally binding memorandum
of understanding with one of the prospective
purchasers for the possible sale and purchase of the
entire shareholding interest in Smart Title. The major
assets of Smart Title and its subsidiaries are the Club
and the Subject Land. Despite the possible sale and
purchase of the entire shareholding interest in Smart
Title not being materialised, the Group is still being
approached by various prospective purchasers for
the proposed sale and purchase of the Club and the
Subject Land.

The development of the Subject Land is divided
into three phases, in which the first phase involves
erecting nine hotel villas with a total gross floor
area of 21,661 square meters, the second phase
involves erecting 29 hotel villas with a total gross
floor area of 33,000 square meters, and the third
phase is a development of a five-storey high-end
hotel apartment complex with restaurants, multi-
function room facilities and approximately 100 hotel
apartment units with a total gross floor area of 25,000
square meters. At the end of the year, the first phase
development was substantially completed. In view of
being approached by various prospective purchasers
for the sale and purchase of the Club and the Subject
Land, the Group is considering to re-examine its
business strategy for the Subject Land in order to
maximising the shareholders’ value. The Group may
delay the marketing activity for leasing the hotel villas
and/or slow down the pace of the development of the
Subject Land as so to keep the Subject Land as an
unoccupied site for sale.

Taking into account the development costs already
incurred, the remaining total budgeted development
costs to be incurred by the Group for the Subject
Land at 31 December 2016 is approximately
RMB860,061,000 (equivalent to HK$961,488,000). It is
currently expected that the remaining total budgeted
development costs will be financed by the Group’s
internal resources and the rental income generated
from the assets of the Club and the Subject Land.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the directors
performed an impairment test for the intangible assets
relating to (i) the rights to construct and operate
the club facilities of the Club, and (ii) the rights to
develop and operate the Subject Land and the rights
to manage the properties erected on the Subject Land
with reference to the valuation report prepared by an
independent valuer. As the recoverable amounts of
the intangible assets exceeded their carrying amounts,
no impairment was required.

At the end of the reporting period, the directors
measured the fair value of the Guangzhou Property.
Based on a property valuation report prepared by
another independent valuer, the fair value of the
Guangzhou Property increased from RMB498,700,000
at 31 December 2015 to RMB501,900,000 at 31
December 2016. Accordingly, the Group recognised
a gain of HK$3,733,000 (equivalent to RMB3,200,000)
arising on change in fair value of investment
properties. However, the gain arising on change in
fair value was not reflected in the carrying amount
of the Guangzhou Property at 31 December 2016.
As the Renminbi to Hong Kong dollars exchange
rate fell by approximately 6.34% from 31 December
2015 to 31 December 2016, an exchange realignment
of HK$38,092,000 for translating the Guangzhou
Property from Renminbi to Hong Kong dollars at the
closing rate at 31 December 2016 was recorded.
Such exchange realignment not only offset the gain
of HK$3,733,000 arising on change in fair value
entirely, but also reduced the carrying amount of the
Guangzhou Property by HK$34,359,000.

In order to enable the Group to dispose of its
investment in SkyNet in an effective and efficient
manner, the directors proposed to seek approvals
from the Company’s shareholders for granting a
12-month mandate to the directors for disposing
of up to 52,500,000 shares in SkyNet held by the
Group on 8 January 2016. The 12-month disposal
mandate constitutes a very substantial disposal of the
Company under the Listing Rules and was approved
by the shareholders at the special general meeting
of the Company held on 12 May 2016. At 30 June
2016, the Group re-measured its investment in the
52,500,000 shares in SkyNet at market price and,
for the sake of prudence, recognised an impairment
loss of HK$57,750,000 in respect of available-for-sale
financial assets reclassified from equity to profit or
loss. Due to the thin trading volume of the shares in
SkyNet, the Group entered into the placing agreement

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2016
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued)

with a placing agent for placing up to 25,000,000
shares in SkyNet held by the Group at a price of
HK$4.80 per share to two independent investors on
23 November 2016. On 30 November 2016 and 5
December 2016, 18,750,000 shares and 6,250,000
shares in SkyNet held by the Group were placed to
two independent investors respectively at a placing
price of HK$4.80 per placing share pursuant to the
placing agreement. Upon completion of the placing,
the Group held 27,500,000 shares in SkyNet and
recognised a cumulative gain reclassified from equity
to profit or loss upon derecognition of available-for-
sale financial assets of HK$22,500,000. The placing of
the 25,000,000 shares in SkyNet did not constitute a
disposal under the disposal mandate. Other than the
placing of the 25,000,000 shares in SkyNet, no shares
in SkyNet were disposed of during the year.

On 12 September 2016, the Group acquired
500,000,000 shares in China Healthwise at the
aggregate consideration of HK$117,633,000 (including
transaction costs) for securities trading. The
500,000,000 shares in China Healthwise represented
approximately 8.45% of the issued share capital of
China Healthwise and were accounted for as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss for financial
reporting purposes. Following the appointment of Mr.
Lei Hong Wai and Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton as
executive directors of China Healthwise on 11 October
2016, the Group was regarded as having significant
influence over China Healthwise and the 500,000,000
shares in China Healthwise were accounted for
as interest in an associate for financial reporting
purposes. In recognising the cost of investment,
the Group re-measured the 500,000,000 shares in
China Healthwise at fair value and recognised a gain
of HK$17,367,000 arising on change in fair value of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
upon recognition of interests in associates in profit or
loss. Following the resignation of Mr. Cheung Kwok
Wai Elton as an executive director of China Healthwise
on 16 December 2016, the Group was regarded as
losing significant influence over China Healthwise and
China Healthwise ceased to be an associate of the
Group. Accordingly, the Group’s investment in China
Healthwise has been accounted for as available-for-
sale financial assets for financial reporting purposes
and a loss on deemed disposal of an associate of
HK$21,500,000 was recognised in profit or loss.
During the year, no shares in China Healthwise were
disposed of.

EEE RS
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EEBER4I80BLOBHEOMEBILIREEL
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
measured its investments in SkyNet and China
Healthwise, which have been accounted for as
available-for-sale financial assets for financial
reporting purposes, at market price. As the fair
value of the 27,500,000 shares in SkyNet and the
500,000,000 shares in China Healthwise in aggregate
exceeded their carrying amounts by HK$144,250,000,
a gain of HK$144,250,000 arising on revaluation of
available-for-sale financial assets was recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Details of the available-for-sale financial assets (other
than the club debenture of HK$172,000) held by the
Group at 31 December 2016 are as follows:

RIECIRE (@)

RBEBRR XEBERERAMEEB KRS
BEERE2REGBEREMSE A
E—E%‘Hﬁtﬂ%@ﬁﬂﬁ%)?ﬁ?ﬁﬁs—r% o A
27,500,000 B& fin 2= & B B% 19 5 500,000,000
B% A R %5 e Eﬁxfﬁz@$ﬁn/\iﬂﬂﬁ,ﬂﬁﬁ
{8 144,250,000/8 70 » HEGIHEESRE
EEA 2% 144,250,000 8B t 2 REMEE
WEHERPHER -

RE-ZB-R"E+ZA=1+—-0  ~KEEEZ
AHHESMEE(SES 172,000 8 TR
SN 2 FHBWT

p—

Fair value Gain/(loss)
as compared arising on
to the revaluation
consolidated recognised
Number of total assets of in the year
shares held at Fair value at  the Group at ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2016 2016 2016
APEE BEZE-RF
*58R t+=-A=t+-H
i i —E-RE LLEFE
“E-RE Z2-R¥ t+ZA=1-H BRAEMR
Name of Hong Kong +ZB=t-B +=ZB=t-H RREE FEERZ
listed equities ERLMRESE FEZROEE ZAYE aEzEE W&/ (FR)
HK$'000 HK$°000
TET FET
SkyNet (stock code: 8176) =i
(B35 - 8176) 27,500,000 258,500 6.09% 151,250
China Healthwise (stock code: 348) REBRRE
(RIDRE : 348) 500,000,000 106,500 2.51% (7,000)
365,000 144,250
Depending on their business fundamentals and $E$FE¥5§%W HREREBERE %g};ﬁ}?\

development, and share price performance, the
directors intend to sell the Group’s investments
in SkyNet and China Healthwise as and when
appropriate.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued)

The Spark Concept Group is operating two Japanese
noodle shops (M #E MEAEA) in Central and Quarry
Bay, and a high-end Japanese restaurant (FIIE A L
) in Central. During the year, the Spark Concept
Group reported a loss of HK$2,337,000, a 14.33%
decrease from HK$2,728,000 for the previous year. As
the Group’s share of post-acquisition losses equals
to its interests in Spark Concept, no further share
of losses was recognised for the year. The decrease
in loss was mainly attributable to the closure of the
loss making Japanese noodle shop in Hunghom in
February 2016. No further cash was advanced to
the Spark Concept Group by the Group during the
year. In view of the decrease in the consolidated
net assets (before shareholders’ loans) of the Spark
Concept Group, an impairment loss of HK$400,000
was further recognised against the amount due from
the Spark Concept Group. At 31 December 2016, the
Spark Concept Group owed the Group an amount of
HK$7,393,000 (before impairment of HK$5,696,000),
which is unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand. As announced by the Michelin
Guide in November 2016, the Japanese noodle shops
(Jagt#mER A) in Central and Quarry Bay are again
awarded the Bib Gourmand rating in the Michelin
Guide Hong Kong Macau 2017.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

International forecasters fear that 2017 will not be
a big improvement on 2016 for a sluggish global
economy. The global economy is facing a lot of
challenges, including Brexit, European instability, an
aggressive interest rate rises by the United States
(“US”) Federal Reserve and an unclear US trade policy
under President Donald Trump. As such, the directors
expect the Hong Kong equity market remains volatile
in 2017. However, the directors recognise that market
volatility and downturns can often coincide with
a good opportunity to acquire equities at a better
price. In 2017, the directors will cautiously monitor
the Hong Kong equity market and actively seek
equities which are believed to be undervalued and/
or to have a sustainable business growth. In relation
to the Group’s existing equity portfolio, the directors
believe that the future performance is largely affected
by economic factors, investor sentiment, demand
and supply balance of an investee company’s shares
and fundamentals of an investee company, such as
investee company’s news, business fundamentals
and development, financial performance and future
prospects. Accordingly, the directors closely monitor
the above factors, particularly the fundamentals of
each individual investee company in the Group’s
existing equity portfolio, and proactively adjust the
Group’s equity portfolio mix in order to improve its
performance.

EEE RS

KOEE)

Spark Concept&EBRFRRBILBEEM
RAREE(AHEEERAA)RRPREE
—FXeomAAXRBEECREA LH) - FRA -
Spark Concept £ [E 18 &5 #£ 2,337,000 78
T A H 22,728,00058 TR 2 14.33% ©
AR AEBE RGN EREBEBESNEN Spark
Conceptz @ MEFRAUBE—SHIAE
HEE - FREDDEERR-_T—X<F_A
BARANRAMZEERARE/ERMH FA
R E B [ Spark Concept 5 B £ 3 28 4b
HE o BN Spark ConceptEBZHAEE
FECGRHIBRBRRER) L - EFEW Spark
Concept & B 7K 18 #& 52 )5 {8 &5 $8 400,000 &
TeR=ZE—RE+=ZH=+—H " Spark
Concept& B 4 X &~ &£ 8 7,393,000 % JT (&
KRR B 5,696,00058 7T) 2 £ A A E|IKE -
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—RE+—BFAH > PREMEF AR
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FUTURE PROSPECTS (Continued)

In view of the challenges faced by the global
economy, the directors expect the Hong Kong
economy remains uncertain in 2017. Accordingly, the
Group adopts a more cautious approach in screening
customers and approving new loans in order to
mitigate its credit risk. The directors expect the
performance of the Group’s money lending business
in 2017 is more or less the same as 2016.

The growth of the Group’s sale of jewelry products
and precious stones business slowed down
significantly in 2016, which was a direct result of the
depreciation of Euro and British pound against Hong
Kong dollars, the gloomy economy in Europe and the
poor market sentiment on precious stone. According
to the Group’s latest sale data, there is no sign of
improvement in European market. In addition, the
Middle East market is deteriorating due to a drop in
number of tourists visiting the Middle East countries.
As such, the directors expect the sale of the Group’s
sale of jewelry products and precious stones business
may experience a decline in 2017.

As the Group may delay its marketing activity for
leasing the hotel villas of the Subject Land and/
or slow down the pace of the development of the
Subject Land, the directors expect the rental income
of the Group’s property investment business for 2017
is more or less the same as 2016.

In 2017, the directors will continue to cautiously
monitor the business environment and strengthen the
Group’s business foundation by focusing the Group’s
existing businesses. In addition, the directors will
continue to cautiously identify suitable investment
opportunities for the Group to diversify its businesses
and broaden its revenue.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2016
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to 31 December 2016 and up to the date
of this annual report, the Group had the following
material events:

(a)

The fair value of the Group’s financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss decreased
from HK$544,442,000 at 31 December 2016 to
HK$466,589,000 at the date of this annual report.

The fair value of the Group’s available-for-sale
financial assets decreased from HK$365,172,000
at 31 December 2016 to HK$291,672,000 at the
date of this annual report.

The validity of the writ of summons in High Court
Action No. 9 of 2014 dated 3 January 2014
and issued by The Grande Holdings Limited (in
liquidation), Roderick John Sutton (as joint and
several provisional liquidator of The Grande
Holdings Limited), Fok Hei Yu (as joint and
several provisional liquidator of The Grande
Holdings Limited) and 65 other companies listed
as plaintiffs against 25 defendants inclusive of
One Synergy was expired on 2 January 2017 and
has not been extended by the plaintiffs after 2
January 2017.

After the Appeal was heard by the Intermediate
People’s Court of Guangzhou City, a judgement
was handed down on 9 January 2017 dismissing
the Appeal and upholding the First Trial
Judgement. On 15 March 2017, Yingrui and the
Contractor entered into a settlement agreement,
pursuant to which Yingrui agreed to pay the
Contractor a sum of RMB9,700,000 (equivalent
to HK$10,844,000) within three days from the
date of the settlement agreement as full and final
settlement of the Proceeding. On the same day,
Ace Guide Holdings Limited deposited an amount
of RMB9,700,000 (equivalent to HK$10,844,000)
into Yingrui’s bank account and Yingrui paid
the said amount as settlement payment to
the Contractor pursuant to the settlement
agreement. On 16 March 2017, the People’s
Court has ruled the seizure on certain units of
the Guangzhou Property in the aggregate value
of RMB15,000,000 (equivalent to HK$16,769,000)
be released.

COO00000C Management Dlscussmn and Analysis
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(a)

AEBZRAFESTAERRZEME
EZ2AFEHR=-Z—~"E+=ZA=1+—
H 2 544,442,000/8 TR AP ERFEIHRH
Hi >~ 466,589,000 7T °

AEBEzAHREESREE L
ER=-F-~"E+=-A=1
365,172,00038 TR D =
291,672,000 7T °
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EEBHRRAN

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A summary of the principal risks and uncertainties

which may impact

the Group’s financial conditions,

results of operations or future performance and how
the Group to mitigate these risks is set out below.

This summary should not be regarded as a complete
and comprehensive statement of all potential risks
and uncertainties faced by the Group, but rather those
risks which the Group currently believes may have a

significant impact
future prospects.

Principal risks
FERE

on the Group’s performance and

Description
AE

FERBRREAIABREE

ARERFEREB 2B - EBEEH AR
EEZEEH@&T%%I%ﬁﬁﬁmﬁsw
MEEZZRABENRT -

LR EERESE AN EEEER 2 PrAEER
Bl NAMRE R 2 R RF R - EAREESR
BREZ SRR T RN ARl 2 RIRARKA
SBREAEE -

Mitigating actions

FRER

Strategic risk
SRR M P

Economic risk

4 75 [ e

Credit risk
EERk

Strategic risk is the risk that medium
and long-term profitability and/or
reputation of the Group could be
adversely impacted by the failure either
to identify or implement the correct
strategy, or to react appropriately to
changes in the business environment.
SR M L B 7% R AR B 7k 1 28 BB e L R SRR
FHEXRRBFLBEREBMEAE
ErHRRABAEDR REBERT
g mb -

Economic risk is the risk of any
downturn in economic conditions
could impact the Group’s performance
through higher bad debts as a result
of customers’ inability to repay loans
and lower asset values.
RBRER/EMKSERBEZTITRR =R
SEBEFENEEENMEIEREM
REEBEREMFEAEBRR -

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to
the Group if a customer or counterparty
to a financial instrument fails to meet
its contractual obligations.
EE@@%%%@IQZ%ﬁj§%£$
REBEAREBTHENER  AEEX
%Mﬁﬁﬁzaﬁo

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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e Extensive investment management
experience of the Board.
ESENRETECEELS -

e Regularly review on strategy and
performance of each business unit.
ERMA S EBEMLCRBERRIR -

e Perform comprehensive due diligence on
all potential acquisitions.

AR EERBERETEAESNES -

e Regularly review forward looking
indicators to identify economic conditions.
TE HI MR AT ATHE MR AR AR B B IRIR o

e Fully understand customers and carry out
credit quality assessment on customers
before granting loans.
REHENRAZ2ETREFLTHEFETE
HEET -

e Regularly monitor loans receivables and
assess for their recoverability
EHEREWRERRIZETRIKEE -

e Limit credit risk exposure by granting loan
to any single customer of not more than
8% of the consolidated total assets of the
Group.
ZROEIAE-EFREFTZRAEERES
BEERE% 2ERURFIEERMR -

e Make rental contracts with tenants with an
appropriate credit history.
HBEAEEFETEZABAT LAY -
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(Continued)
Principal risks Description Mitigating actions
EFEZmEE AE AFEIE I
Liquidity risk Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group e Regularly monitor liquidity and statement
nBEEERE will not be able to meet its financial of financial position.
obligations as they fall due. EHERRBESRUBMRREK
FREBESRMAAREBREBITHRIHZ ¢ Maintain appropriate liquidity to cover
HEEEZRAR - commitments.
REBERBE S LIRAGE o
e Limit liquidity risk exposure by investing
only in securities listed on stock
exchanges.
ZRERENRGMLTRSREIRDES
R\ o
e Ensure acceptable and appropriate
finance in place, or believed to be
available before committing investment
projects.
AEREBBNBREAEIEE TEZRE
-
Price risk Price risk is the risk that changes in e Regularly monitor equity portfolio to
ERER equity prices will affect the Group’s address any portfolio issues promptly.
income and the value of its holdings of EHEERREREASUNBEREMKRE
equities. HERE -
ERRARAKZERKRERAREMIFR ¢ Spread price risk exposure by investing a
SEEZREZH AR - number of equities
REZERZUSBEKRR
Exchange risk Exchange risk is the risk that changes e Closely monitor statement of financial
B 5 [l Bz in foreign exchange rates will affect position and cashflow exchange risk

the Group’s income and the value of
its holdings of assets.
EXARAKEERAEERAREREE
EEEZINEEZSE2RR -

exposures and where considered
appropriate use financial instruments,
such as forward exchange contracts,
foreign currency options and forward rate
agreements, to hedge this exchange risk.
BYERMBRRRRRERE L@ X
HERBBRANBRATERESMT A (WED
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BEBRHRRAH

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

_\
COERe N
\_ \_ oy | M

FERBRRAHABREE)

(Continued)
Principal risks Description Mitigating actions
EEZmEE AE AFEIE I
People risk People risk is the risk of loss the e Provide competitive reward and benefit
AERRE services of any directors, senior packages that ensure our ability to attract
management and other key personnel and retain the employees we need.
which could have a material adverse REEBRFIZRBREANGFEUBREASE
effect on the Group’s businesses. EEEONSIRGREAEZAT ©
AZRBBEMES SREEBAERHE o Ensure that the staff of the Group has the
ﬁEE}\Eﬁkﬂ:ﬁE?—]’%T%%ﬁI&%l%ﬁL right working environment to enable them
RERTREE R - to do the best job possible and maximise
their satisfaction at work.
BRAEBZ2EIFSEZIFRENSE
ITRBAAURBEFIERSIEREERK
1t °
Legal and Legal and regulatory risk is the risk e Monitor changes and developments in the
regulatory risk that a breach of laws and regulations regulatory environment and ensure that
EEREER could lead to litigation, investigations sufficient resources being made available

or disputes, resulting in additional
costs being incurred, civil and/or
criminal proceedings and reputational
damage.

FEEREERBRBERERR AR ATEES
CEEBEMNAE R

R - AERAMS
ER/IMNERFREBEET AR -

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on its principal activities and the
risk of non-compliance with such laws and regulations
could lead to litigation, investigations or disputes,
resulting in additional costs being incurred, civil and/
or criminal proceedings and reputational damage.

During the year, the Group has complied with (i) the
Money Lenders Ordinance and the Money Lenders
Regulations for its money lending business, and (ii)
the Urban and Rural Planning Law of the People’s
Republic of China and Construction Law of the
People’s Republic of China for the development of the
Subject Land in Mainland China.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2016

to implement any required changes.
ERAERRCBINURIBRAMAZE
REUBREAREZEE -
e Seek legal or other specialist advice as
appropriate.

EERSREFFEMERALER -
B ERRER

REERIDETHB AR ERHEFTERER
ZEEMN  FPEBIFREERERIER TSGR
A AERMY - EEBEIRE - RER
ﬂH%&F&%%?@% °

Fr - AEEC () REREEXBETHREA
RO RBEARD  R()ERPERMEZE
i BREBT P EARLNMBIH MR EE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance, in line with the principles of
the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

In the opinion of the Board, the Company had
complied with the Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2016, except for:

(a) the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer are not segregated and are exercised by
the same individual; and

(b) the non-executive directors of the Company are
not appointed for a specific term but are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election pursuant
to the Company’s bye-laws.

The Board as a whole is responsible for performing
the corporate governance duties. The Board
periodically reviews and improves the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company
with a view to continuously improve the Company’s
corporate governance practices by assessing their
effectiveness with evolving standards to meet
changing circumstances and needs.

The Board has reviewed and monitored the
Company’s corporate governance practices and
standards on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements and the training and continuous
professional development of directors. The Board
has also reviewed the Company’s compliance with
the Code and disclosure in the corporate governance
report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules for securities transactions by the
directors of the Company. Having made specific
enquiry by the Company, all directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the required standard as
set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended
31 December 2016.

Corporate Governance Report
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BEELWE

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment of the
Company’s annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The directors acknowledge that it is their
responsibilities for preparation of the consolidated
financial statements of the Group and ensure that the
consolidated financial statements are in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable financial
reporting standards. The directors also ensure that
the timely publication of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

The directors confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge, information and belief, having made
all reasonable enquires, they are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The Company engaged HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited as its auditors for the year ended 31
December 2016. The statement by HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditors’ Report on pages 76 to 83 of the annual
report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and
control of the Company and oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic direction and financial
performance. The management, consisting of
executive directors along with other senior executives,
is delegated the authority and responsibility by the
Board for the management of the Group. In addition,
the Board has also delegated various responsibilities
to the four committees, namely the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Finance Committee, to assist
the Board in discharging its duties and to oversee
particular aspects of the Group’s activities.

Decisions on important matters are specifically
reserved to the Board while decisions on the Group’s
general operations are delegated to the management.
Important matters include those affecting the Group’s
strategic policies, major investment and funding
decisions and major commitments relating to the
Group’s operations.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2016

ISR E
EEEEEHAQAFERPHEE - AFH

B UKk EmRAIRHEMEERE 2 H M
WREBHEELTY  BW RSB 2FE -

ESHAGRUAEBFSUBRRDIKECE
- WERRGEVBERREBFEERERER
PMBHELER - ESTRAEBESTRAKEZ
REMB®EK

RESKEH—ISBEEREIRA - BER
IS - WS LT AR A AR L AR A
BRERNERERER2ERTHBEE -

AARCERERFESHMEERERARANA/E
SEEE-_Z-—AFT-A=+t—HLFEZ
BT - Bl SR BSBAMAR QA RAMKES
REBGEMBBRR2ARETHANRFRSE
76 283 H 2B LBANMERA °

Exg

ESSAEREREHARE  YEEREE
ZE® - REMETARMBRE - EBEER
TEEE(BRIATESRAMSRITRAER)
BAREEEEREE - I EZSTHET
BEERTREZES(AEXEEE - HM
ZEE REZEENRUBEES) LUK
ESEETABEREEAEEED 2 BES

-
= o

BEEEZAREBECHESEFH  MAER
—REEZRRAXHEEEEL EESE
AEEAEECEFBRUERE TERERME
RE > URHHEHMEBAEEEE T ERER
(B CER °



O L) e 3C
I000000000000000C) >

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The day-to-day management of the Group is
delegated to the management. This delegation of
authority includes responsibility for developing and
formulating business plans and budgets of the Group
for the Board’s approval, operating the Group’s
businesses within the parameters set by the Board,
keeping the Board informed of material developments
of the Group’s businesses, identifying and managing
operation and other risk and implementing the policies
and processes approved by the Board.

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary
balance skills and experience desirable for effective
leadership of the Company and independence in
decision-making.

The directors of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Lei Hong Wai
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton
Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Wan Shing Chi
Mr. Ng Heung Yan
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen

Biographical information of the directors as at the
date of this report are set out in the Biographical
Details of Directors on pages 73 to 75 of the annual
report.

Save and except for (i) Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton
and Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan are brothers and (ii) each
of Mr. Lei Hong Wai, Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton
and Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan beneficially owns 50%,
25% and 25% respectively in the issued share capital
of Twin Success International Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, there
is no relationship between members of the Board.

Corporate Governance Report
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Company Secretary of the Company is
responsible to keep minutes of all Board and
committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally
circulated to the directors for comment within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final
version is open for directors’ inspection.

The directors are able, upon reasonable request, to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses. The
Board shall resolve to provide separate appropriate
independent professional advice to the directors to
assist the relevant directors to discharge their duties.

The Company prepares a monthly update on the
Group’s performance and position to all directors to
enable the Board as a whole and each director to
discharge their duties and responsibilities.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board
at all times met the requirements Rules 3.10(1) and
(2), and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-
executive directors (representing not less than one-
third of the Board) with at least one independent non-
executive director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

For a director to be considered independent, that
director should not have any direct or indirect material
interest in the Group. In determining the independence
of directors, the Board follows the requirement set
out in the Listing Rules. The Company has received
from each of the independent non-executive directors
an annual written confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2016. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive
directors are independent. No independent non-
executive director has served the Company for more
than nine years.

The directors are fully insured under the directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance policy for indemnification
against costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities
that may be incurred by them in the execution and
discharge of their duties.

The directors are committed to complying with code
provision A.6.5 of the Code on directors’ training. All
directors have participated in continuous professional
and provided a record of training they received for the
year ended 31 December 2016 to the Company.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2016
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

A summary of training received by the directors during
the year ended 31 December 2016 is as follows:

Executive directors: HITESE
Mr. Lei Hong Wai TREBEE
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton REIE K&
Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy PRIEZE ST
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan REIE) R4
Independent non-executive directors: VHEHITES !
Mr. Wan Shing Chi FRELEE
Mr. Ng Heung Yan KREM-EE
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen BEZEE
Note 1:

1: Relevant reading or video

2: Courses, seminars or workshops

Note 2:

A: Corporate governance and regulatory
B: Auditing, financial reporting and taxation

On 16 December 2016, the Chairman of the Board
held meeting with the independent non-executive
directors, without the presence of the executive
directors.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the year, the Board adopted a board diversity
policy setting out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board. The Company considers diversity of board
members can be achieved through consideration of
a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. The
ultimate decision will be made upon the merits and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board.

ERELIHRS

EE2#)
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1&2 A&B
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BEELWE

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 of the Code requires that the
role of chairman and chief executive officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. During the year, Mr. Lei Hong Wai
has taken up the roles of the Chairman of the Board
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr.
Lei possesses essential leadership skills and has
extensive experience in corporate management and
business development. The Board is of the view that
currently vesting the roles of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer in the same person provides
the Group with strong and consistent leadership
and allows for more effective and efficient business
planning and decisions as well as execution of long-
term business strategies.

TERMS OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code requires that
non-executive directors should be appointed for a
specific term, subject to re-election. All non-executive
directors of the Company are not appointed for a
specific term, but are subject to retirement from office
by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
provisions of the Company’s bye-laws. At each annual
general meeting, one-third of the directors for the time
being, (or, if their number is not a multiple of three,
the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every
director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. As such, the Company
considers that such provision is sufficient to meet the
underlying objective of this code provision.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees with
clearly defined written terms of reference. The main
roles and responsibilities of these committees,
including all authorities delegated to them by
the Board, as set out in the terms of reference,
are published on websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange. The independent views and
recommendations of the four committees ensure
proper control of the Group and the continual
achievement of the high corporate governance
standards expected of a listed company. The
chairman of each committee reports the outcome of
the committee’s meetings to the Board for further
discussions and approvals.

The majority of the members of each board
committees are independent non-executive directors.
The board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expenses.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises two
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Ng
Heung Yan and Mr. Wan Shing Chi, and one executive
director, namely Mr. Lei Hong Wai. Mr. Ng Heung Yan
is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all directors
and senior management remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy and ensuring that
no director or any of his associates will involve in
deciding his own remuneration. The Remuneration
Committee makes recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages, including benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments, of
individual executive directors and senior management.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Remuneration Committee held two meetings to
review and discuss the remuneration structure
and packages of each executive directors and the
discretionary bonus of executive directors for making
recommendations to the Board for approval.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive
director, namely Mr. Lei Hong Wai, and two
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Wan
Shing Chi and Mr. Ng Heung Yan. Mr. Lei Hong Wai is
the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible
for reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board, identifying potential directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors.

COO00000C) | Corporate Governance Report
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Nomination Committee leads the process and
makes recommendations for appointments to the
Board, whether as additional appointment or to fill
up the casual vacancy of directorship as and when
they arise, in light of challenges and opportunities
facing the Company, as well as business development
and requirements of the Company. In evaluating and
selecting candidate(s) for directorship, the Nomination
Committee considers the character and integrity,
skill and expertise, professional and educational
background, potential time commitment for the Board
and/or committee responsibilities, and the elements
of the board diversity policy etc. The Nomination
Committee makes recommendation to the Board to
appoint the appropriate person among the candidates
nominated for directorship. Suitable candidate(s) shall
be appointed by the Board in accordance with the
Company’s bye-laws and the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Nomination Committee held one meeting to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board.

Finance Committee

The Finance Committee comprises one executive
director, namely Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy, and one
independent non-executive director, namely Mr. Wong
Tak Chuen. Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy is the chairman of
the Finance Committee.

The Finance Committee is mainly responsible for
reviewing and approving banking facilities and
financial instruments to be granted or issued by the
Company for the Group’s needs and the provision
of corporate guarantees by the Company for its
subsidiaries and associates.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, no Finance
Committee meeting was held.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) EEZEE(#E)

Audit Committee BEREER

The Audit Committee comprises three independent %*7;% H=EfBIYHTEETEERL
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Wong Tak Chuen, FRELERROCEEAR - EREE

Mr. Wan Shing Chi and Mr. Ng Heung Yan. Mr. Wong
Tak Chuen is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee
are to monitor the financial reporting process of the
Company and to review the Company’s financial
control, and risk management and internal control
systems. It also governs the engagement of external
auditors and its performance. The Audit Committee
meets regularly with at least two meetings annually.
It also has separate meeting with the Company’s
external auditors at least once a year with the
absence of the management.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Audit
Committee reviewed with the external auditors the
annual report for 2015, the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2015, the interim report for 2016 and
the unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the six months ended
30 June 2016 before their submission to the Board
for approval. It also reviewed the review reports on
risk management and internal control systems of the
Group. The Audit Committee discussed the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems with
the executive directors to ensure the executive
directors have performed their duties to have effective
systems. The Audit Committee also discussed with the
management and the external auditors the accounting
policies and practices which might affect the Group
and financial reporting matters.

At the meeting held on 29 March 2017, the Audit
Committee concluded that it was satisfied with its
review of the audit fee, process and effectiveness,
independence and objectivity of HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited. The Audit Committee has therefore
recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited be re-appointed as the Company’s
auditors at the annual general meeting in 2017.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS AT MEETINGS SREHELE
The attendance records of each director at the various REBEZE-—RE+ZA=1+t—HLEER -
meetings of the Company during the year ended 31 BEESNALAZEEZ2HELEHSWM
December 2016 are set out as below: T
Attended/Eligible to Attend
BHRE/AERLE
Annual Special Remuneration ~ Nomination Audit Finance
general general Board  Committee ~ Committee = Committee ~ Committee
meeting meeting meetings meetings meeting meetings meeting
RRE#F R%H gze §MzRe R#ZRe BHZRE  MHZEe
K8 K8 L] L] L] g3 g3
Number of meetings RV 1 1 3 2 1 2 0
Executive directors: #iEs:
Mr. Lei Hong Wai iy 1n 1n 32133 212 1N NATER  NATER
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton ~ REIBXE 11 11 233  NATER NATER NATER  NATER
Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy Rkt 1n 01 333 NATER NATER  NATER 0/0
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan REBLE 1 1 2033 NATER NATER NATER  NATER
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTEES
directors:
Mr. Wan Shing Chi AL 1 10 31/33 212 1 22 NATER
Mr. Ng Heung Yan RELEE 1/1 1/1 32/33 22 1/1 22 NATER
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen BERLE 1/1 1/1 33033  NARER  NATER 22 0/0
COMPANY SECRETARY NEAME
Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy has been the Company REEXEB _ZFEZRF—A=+—HEEHME

Secretary of the Company since 31 January 2005.
He is also an executive director of the Company. The
biographical information of Mr. Chan are set out in the
Biographical Details of Directors on page 74 of the
annual report. During the year, Mr. Chan undertook
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year, the Company engaged HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited to perform audit services
and non-audit services and incurred audit services
fees of HK$949,000 and non-audit services fees of
HK$577,000. The non-audit services consist of interim
review and reporting accountant services in relation to
a notifiable transaction.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2016
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

As with all businesses, the Group is exposed to
risks and uncertainties in pursuit of its strategic
and business objectives. The Board acknowledges
that it has overall responsibility for the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and for
reviewing their effectiveness.

However, due to inherent limitations of any system
of risk management and internal control, it should
be noted that the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
its strategic and business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

In view of each business unit being actively managed
by the executive directors, all the executive directors
are responsible for monitoring that appropriate
process and controls are in place to effectively and
efficiently manage risks, so that the strategic and
business objectives of the Group can be met. Principal
risks are identified by assessing the possible effects
on the Group’s reputation, stakeholders, earnings,
capital and liquidity, and the future sustainability of
the Group’s business. They are closely monitored and
overseen by the executive directors on a regular basis.
Risk information is communicated to employees, who
have a responsibility to co-operate with the executive
directors’ initiatives and to carry out their duties
avoiding excessive risk.

The Group’s risk management and internal control
systems include the following:

(@) A code of business conduct and ethics that
requires all directors and employees of the Group
to maintain the highest standards of ethical and
legal behavior in conducting business.

(b) A risk management process which enables
identification and assessment of risks that could
impact on the achievement of agreed strategic
and business objectives, and ensures that
appropriate mitigating measures and controls are
put in place.

(c) Clearly defined organisational structure, with
defined authority limits and reporting mechanisms
to the Board.

COO00000C) | Corporate Governance Report
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (Continued)

(d) A comprehensive set of policies and procedures
relating to operational and financial controls,
including capital expenditure.

() A comprehensive system of financial reporting.

() An annual review of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems.

As the Company does not have an internal audit
function, the Audit Committee engaged Infinity
Assurance Limited, external professional consultant, to
carry out an independent review on the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 31 December 2016. The
independent review covered all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance
controls, and risk management functions of the Group.
The review report from Infinity Assurance Limited was
presented to and reviewed by the Audit Committee
and the Board. No material internal control defects
were found. Accordingly, the Board, in conjunction
with the Audit Committee, considers that the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems were
adequate and effective.

The Board reviewed the need for internal audit
function, but has decided that because of the size of
the Group it cannot be justified at present. The Board
will review this decision annually.

The Board also reviewed the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting functions.

The Company has adopted the Policy and Procedures
on Disclosure of Inside Information which contains
the guidelines to the directors and all the relevant
employees of the Group to ensure that the inside
information of the Company is to be disseminated
to the public in an equal and timely manner in
accordance with the applicable laws and regulations.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2016
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company reports to its shareholders twice a
year. Interim and annual results are announced
to keep shareholders informed of the Group’s
performance and operations. The general meetings
of the Company provide an opportunity for direct
communication between the shareholders and the
Board. Shareholders are welcomed to raise any
query in relation to the Group’s businesses at
the general meetings. The Chairman of the Board
as well as chairman of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Finance Committee, or in their absence,
other members of the respective committees, and
where applicable, the independent Board Committee,
are available to answer questions at the general
meetings. Our corporate website which contains
corporate information, interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars issued by the Company,
enables the Company’s shareholders to access
information on the Group on a timely basis.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or
the Company Secretary of the Company, to require
a special general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition.

Any number of shareholders representing not less
than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders of the Company or not less than 100
shareholders can put forward any proposed resolution
or the business to be dealt with at general meetings
of the Company by depositing a requisition in writing
together with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s relevant expenses at the registered office
of the Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The requisition must be
signed by the relevant shareholder(s).

Corporate Governance Report
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the Company
Secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Unit 3811, Shun Tak Centre, West Tower
168-200 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2369 0981

Email: billy@eternityinv.com.hk

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board
at the general meetings of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change to the Company’s bye-laws
during the year. The Company’s bye-laws is available
on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

This report was approved by the Board on 30 March
2017 and signed on its behalf.

Lei Hong Wai
Chairman

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2016
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SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

This report contains information and data on the
environmental, social and governance performance of
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2016.

This report has been prepared with reference to the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide as set in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Group is principally engaged in distribution of
films, sub-licensing of film rights, sale of financial
assets, property investment, money lending, design
and sale of jewelry products, and sale of precious
stones. The design and sale of jewelry products
business does not involve manufacturing of
jewelry products. The manufacturing of the jewelry
products is outsourced to subcontractors, who
are third parties independent of the Company and
its connected persons (as defined in the Listing
Rules). The distribution of films and sub-licensing
of film businesses have been inactive since 2009.
Accordingly, this report focuses on the Group’s
operations on sale of financial assets, property
investment, money lending, design and sale of jewelry
products, and sale of precious stones.

ENVIRONMENTAL
Environmental Policy

The Group recognises that it has a responsibility to
manage the impact of its business on the environment
both now and in the future. The Group will use its
best endeavours to conduct its operations in a manner
that is environmentally responsible and sustainable.

The Group commits to:

(@) meet or exceed all legal and regulatory
requirements for environmental protection;

(b) maintain awareness within the Group of the
responsibility of the Group and its employees to
ensure protection of the environment;

(c) reuse, recycle and responsibly dispose of all
electronic waste; and

(d) purchase environmental preferable products and
favoring products with reputable certifications or
labels.

OOC Enwronmental Somal and Governance Report
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

Use of Resources, and the Environment and
Natural Resources

As the Group is principally engaged in distribution
of films, sub-licensing of film rights, sale of financial
assets, property investment, money lending, design
and sale of jewelry products, and sale of precious
stones, the Group requires limited natural resources
to operate and does not produce any hazardous or
non-hazardous wastes. Therefore, the Group has a
relatively low environmental impact.

Emissions

The Group’s direct environmental impact comes from
its office premises, air travel and fuel consumed by
owned motor vehicles. The Group continuously seeks
ways to minimise the Group’s environmental footprint
and improve our energy saving, as well as reducing
emissions.

_1
F] ) Pr—
o A “:.L '," |

d Governance Report o

3

2 A< UL I
@ ' U

\I

J

RE(E)

BE URRBERXARERZEH

HRASETERBELHRT EREFHBIT
B HESREE  WERE B8 REK
HEREEM  URHEEER  AEELEZ
EBMF2ARERER - ETELEEMNAEE

WEE 2R - Bt AEEHRBER T
ﬂi)(d\ )

HBY

FEBEERESERBEARIEYE - fl
ZERMRER ZTEFBR 2 o AEET
MERFERERNEE ZEREDRMNBE
e AR B -

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-—A=1+—HLEE
2016 2015
—E—-REF —E2-EF

CO, emissions in kg

ARS8z -S| E

(Note)
(H1EE)
Source of greenhouse gas emissions = RS HE R R
— electricity (office premises) — BENWOENH) 45,055 52,356
— air travel — MEER 54,030 32,906
— fuel consumed by owned motor vehicles — #H Z /B FTEE 2 Bd 1,197 1,062
Total #mEt 100,282 86,324
Note: BtEE -
The figures are excluded the impact of discontinued operations. HIETBRORIEEEEREIFE -
The following measures are taken by the Group to REBEREUAT 87 LUR D BE WD
reduce emissions:
(@ Communicating the importance of environmental (@ MEXEEREEEERFEZFECEEM -

issues to the Group’s employees.

(b) Purchasing environmental preferable products
and favoring products with reputable
certifications or labels.

(c) Encouraging the use of public transportation
to reduce the Group’s employees’ local travel
impact.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2016
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SOCIAL
Employment and Labour Practices
Employment and Remuneration

The Group has a strong commitment to ensure that
all its employees are treated fairly and that the Group
provides equal opportunity both to existing employees
and in its recruitment process. Merit is the primary
basis for employment with the Group. All employees
and applicants for employment should be treated
and evaluated according to their job related skills,
qualifications, abilities and aptitudes only.

The Group is committed to ensure that no employees
or applicants are subjected to unlawful discrimination,
either directly or indirectly, on grounds of a protected
characteristic. This commitment applies to all
aspects of employment, including recruitment and
selection, training, promotion and career development
opportunities, terms and conditions of employment,
grievance handling and the application of disciplinary
procedures, and selection for redundancy.

The Group seeks to consider employees from
a wide range of backgrounds in its recruitment
processes, and the Group does not tolerate any
form of harassment or discrimination of employees
with regards to race, gender, age, disability,
sexual orientation or religion. Active harassment
and discrimination in the workplace in any form is
unacceptable. The Group regards any actions by an
employee that constitute harassment or discrimination
as serious misconduct.

The Group has developed and implemented a
competitive remuneration structure which is key for
the Group to help attract, motivate and retain the best
talent. In addition to basic salaries, the Mandatory
Provident Fund and discretionary bonus, staff benefits
include medical scheme and share options. The Group
continually reviews its remuneration structure to
ensure it remains attractive and competitive.

The Group has remained diverse, with 43% (2015:
46%) of its employees being women. The Group also
employs a broad age range, with 10% (2015: 13%)
of its employees under 30 years old and 24% (2015:
18%) above 50 years old.

Enwronmental Somal and Governance Report
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SOCIAL (Continued)
Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)
Health and Safety

The Group is committed to the health and safety
of all employees. The Group will work to eliminate
hazardous practices and behaviour, which could cause
accidents, injuries or illness to employees, visitors
and the general public. The Group strives to have
injury free workplaces. The primary goal is to assist in
providing a safe and healthy workplace environment
for the Group’s employees and visitors.

The objectives of the Group in ensuring health and
safety are to:

(a) comply with all relevant statutory obligations;

(b) provide adequate resources to establish and
maintain safe systems of work;

(c) maintain health and safety competency and
integrate health and safety requirements in all
aspects of business;

(d) ensure all incidents are reported and thoroughly
investigated with a view to preventing a similar
injury occurring; and

(e) promote a positive health and safety culture that
is based on the principle that all incidents can be
prevented.

All managers and contractors are accountable for
health and safety performance in their areas. All
employees are required to follow rules for safe and
healthy operations, report hazards to their managers
and must always report any injuries that occur to
either themselves or others.

During the year, there has been no reportable
hazardous incident (2015: Nil).

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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SOCIAL (Continued) HEE
Employment and Labour Practices (Continued) EER% &R (&)
Training and Development HIIR EE

The training and development of the Group’s
employees is key to employee retention, and
ensuring that employees continue to have the
skills and expertise that is core to the Group’s
sustainable business success and growth. Employees
are encouraged to attend courses, seminars and
workshops that are relevant to their jobs and the
Group reimburses for related expenses in full.
Employees of the Group also have the opportunity
to be mentored by the directors, building one-to-
one relationships to coach employees through their
careers.

During the year, the Group paid staff training
expenses amounting to HK$45,790 (2015: HK$1,890).

Labour Standards

The Group is committed to be an employer of choice.
The Group values its employees and recognises their
contribution towards achieving sustainable business
success and growth for the Group and creating value
for its stakeholders.

The Group does not tolerate unethical labour
standards and complies with local labour legislations
and minimum wage laws in the countries where it
operates.

FEEREZFIINRBRBESET 2R -
BREESSERSASE A ISEER NI R
RZBOBKERER - HEEES MEH T
BHZRE  MNERIEY  UARKAEEH
HEERAREMRE AKEEETEHESZE
EZCEE BY-H-CBR BBAKE
EXEANIEERES -

FR AEEXNEEEIIERR 4579058
T(ZF—H%F :11,890/8T) °

YBTEE
AEBHRIRABREE - AEEERES -

R NERBERARNEE AR 2 R R IE
RITEH 2 ER - Y RFNERBEEE -

AEBFRRBT BBz IEE WEBTFH
REREBRcEME T ERBEIEE -

The labour standards of the Group are: AEBZEITEEMT !
(a) Child labour (a) ET
The Group shall not engage in or support the use AEEBTSERSIZHEHRAET -

of child labour.
(b) Forced and compulsory labour

The Group shall not engage in or support the use
of forced or compulsory labour, or bonded or
involuntary prison labour. Employees are free to
leave upon reasonable notice.

(b) EEREFET

AR E TS RIS B X 5 A 3R 30 B3R )
BT SERIFEREMET - &
ERESEBHE AR
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SOCIAL (Continued) HEE
Employment and Labour Practices (Continued) EER% &R (&)
Labour Standards (Continued) HBTEEE)
(c) Health and safety (c) RERZZE
The Group shall provide a safe and healthy AEBERHZEREEZIFERIE -
workplace environment and shall take effective W EEREE BB EEERN B
steps to prevent potential accidents and injuries BERURESEUTHENEEESHE
to employees’ health by minimising, so far as is WA TAESFER ks 2 38 £ ks L H
reasonably practicable, and in co-operation with EEREZEE -
its employees, the causes of hazards inherent in
the workplace.
(d) Freedom of association (d) #HEH
The freedom of association is respected and BEHATEH RAKEKETHLKE
the Group will comply with the relevant labour FﬁEI%’«Z*ﬁEﬁ SENRIIR L o
relations legislation in the countries where it
operates.
(e) Discrimination (e)
The Group shall not engage in or support any KEBAERER - il - #2483
discriminatory practices in hiring, remuneration, BACRLEFRARFEZHEALZIFER
access to training, promotion, termination or Bk MR- Fi > B&E - HEE - R
retirement based on race, gender, age, disability, e H At ] 88 BB R 2 AR 2 T
sexual orientation, religion or other conditions BRAEE
that could give rise to discrimination.
(f)  Working hours () ITIERR
The Group shall comply with applicable laws and AEEEETEBRIFRERBRIER
industry standards on working hours and holiday ZEREERITEZE . NI B EM
entitlements. Overtime shall be voluntary and B FBEEER-
shall not be demanded on a regular basis.
(9) Remuneration () FB
The Group shall comply with the local labour AEERETHKEMEIBAR 2 E 1S
legislations and minimum wage laws in the BERBREIEE: IEEIREEZ
countries where it operates. All work related EEIRIRBEM S EEEE 2R AR
activities are carried out on the basis of a FEBRER T -
recognised employment relationship established
according to the local labour legislations.
During the year, no non-compliance of Hong Kong FR - BECERICNBRESTEBS L L

labour legislations has been reported or noted (2015:
Nil).
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SOCIAL (Continued)
Operating Practices
Supplier Relations

The Group views its suppliers as partners who make
an important contribution to the Group’s sustainable
business success and growth. Employees of the
Group are expected to be honest and fair in all
business interactions with suppliers, which include
contractors, consultants and other agents.

The choice of suppliers of goods and services must
be made based on the best value received by the
Group. In addition, the Group believes in doing
business with those suppliers who demonstrate high
standards of ethical behavior. The Group will not
knowingly engage suppliers who operate in violation
of applicable laws or regulations, including local
environmental, employment and safety laws.

All agreements with suppliers that are important for
the conduct of the Group’s business should be in
writing and must specify the goods and services to be
provided and the fees to be paid. Such agreements
must be in line with reasonable competitive and
market practices, and the relevant Group’s policies
and procedures.

Customer Relations

The Group believes that customers are vitally
important to its sustainable business success and
growth. Employees of the Group have a paramount
duty to act with integrity, respect, diligence and
competence in their dealings with the Group’s
customers.

To preserve its customer relationships:

(a) the Group does not misrepresent its services or
products in any sales or promotional efforts;

(b) the Group communicates clearly so that
customers understand the terms of the business
relationships, including contracts, performance
criteria, schedules, prices and responsibilities;
and

(c) the Group protects its customers’ confidential
information pursuant to contracts with its
customers and all applicable privacy laws in the
countries in which the Group operates.

OOC Enwronmental Somal and Governance Report
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BE  HEREARSE

SOCIAL (Continued)
Operating Practices (Continued)

Product and Service Responsibility

HE(E
BEEH(E)
EamREEEE

(a)

(b)

Design and sale of jewelry products, and sale of
precious stones

The Group shall not make any untruthful,
misleading or deceptive representation or make
any material omission in selling or marketing of
any jewelry products or precious stones.

All supplies of raw materials used in the Group’s
jewelry products and precious stones shall
be acquired from legitimate sources which,
to the best knowledge of the Group, have no
involvement in funding conflicts. The Group
prohibits knowingly buying or selling conflict
precious stones or assisting others to do so.

The Group will not knowingly engage
subcontractors who operate in violation of
applicable laws or regulations, including local
environmental, employment and safety laws.

Money lending

In addition to compliance with the Money Lenders
Ordinance and the Money Lenders Regulations,
the Group strictly prohibits abusive, misleading
or fraudulent lending practices. In providing
money lending services to its customers, the
Group adopts the following responsible lending
practices:

(i) The Group provides its customers with the
information they need to make fully informed
decisions about its money lending service.

(i)  The Group only approves applications where
it believes the customer has the ability to
repay the loan according to its terms.

(iii) The Group provides timely responses to
customer questions and complaints, and
takes prompt corrective action if it has made
an error.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2016
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SOCIAL (Continued)
Operating Practices (Continued)
Personal Data Privacy

The Group will only collect personal data from its
employees and customers ethically and lawfully. It
also seeks to collect personal data in a fair manner,
and in a way that is not unreasonably intrusive. If an
employee is collecting personal data on behalf of the
Group, he or she must inform the person involved of
(i) the purpose for which personal data is collected
and, unless consented by the person involved, the
personal data collected cannot be used for any new
or additional purpose, (ii) the personal data collected
cannot be transferred to any third party unless
required by law or upon informed consent from the
person involved, and (iii) subject to the requirements
of the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance, the person
involved has the right to request assess to and correct
the personal data collected by the Group. Steps must
be taken to ensure that the use of personal data is
complying with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance.

Employees must ensure that the confidentiality of
personal data contained in the Group’s records is
strictly maintained.

During the year, no non-compliance of the Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance has been reported or noted
(2015: Nil).

Anti-corruption and Ethics

The Group commits to maintain confidence in the
integrity of the Company. All directors and employees
are responsible for the Company achieving the
highest levels of business and accountable for acting
in line with the policies and standards outlined in the
Group’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, which
serves to (i) emphasize the Company’s commitment
to ethics and compliance with the letter and the spirit
of all laws and regulations and (ii) set forth the basic
standards of ethical and legal behavior. The Group’s
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics clearly states
that:

(@) All directors and employees are prohibited
from soliciting, accepting or offering any bribe
in conducting the Group’s business or affairs,
whether in Hong Kong or elsewhere.

Enwronmental Somal and Governance Report
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BE dERELISRE

SOCIAL (Continued)
Operating Practices (Continued)
Anti-corruption and Ethics (Continued)

(b) All directors and employees should not engage in
activities or hold or trade assets that involve, or
could appear to involve, a conflict between their
personal interests and the interests of the Group.

(c) No gift or entertainment should ever be offered
or accepted by a director, an employee or any
family member of a director or an employee
unless it (i) is consistent with customary business
practices, (ii) is not excessive in value, (iii) cannot
be construed as a bribe or payoff and (iv) does
not violate any laws or regulations.

(d) Directors and employees are advised not to
engage in frequent gambling activities, e.g.
mahjong, with persons having business dealings
with the Group.

(e) Directors and employees should not accept
any loan from, or through the assistance of,
any individual or organisation having business
dealings with the Group. There is however no
restriction on borrowing from licensed banks or
financial institutions.

(f) Directors and employees are required to protect
proprietary, commercial and other information
that is confidential to the Group. These
obligations of confidentiality continue after an
individual’s employment has ceased with the
Group.

During the year, no instance of non-compliance
relating to bribery, extortion or fraud has been
reported or noted (2015: Nil).
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SOCIAL (Continued)
Community, Business Conduct and Ethics

While the Group is accountable to its key
stakeholders, the Group also takes into account of the
communities in which it operates. The Group commits
to make a positive impact on its neighbourhoods by
being a good neighbour to the communities. In view
of the current Hong Kong’s political and economic
landscape, the directors believe that compliance with
law, integrity and fair dealing are the prime interests
of the communities. As such, the Group is committed
to make the communities in which it operates, better
places to do business by managing its business in
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations of
the countries in which it operates and in accordance
with the highest level of business ethics and personal
integrity in all types of transactions and interactions.

The Company Secretary has been designated by
the board of directors to monitor changes and
developments in the regulatory environment and
ensure that sufficient resources being made available
to implement any required changes. The Company
Secretary is responsible for ensuring the Group
complying with all applicable laws and regulations of
the countries in which it operates.

All directors and employees are responsible for the
Company achieving the highest levels of business and
accountable for acting in line with the policies and
standards outlined in the Group’s Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics. They are required to comply
with the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, which
serves to (i) emphasise the Company’s commitment
to ethics and compliance with the letter and the spirit
of all laws and regulations, (ii) set forth the basic
standards of ethical and legal behavior, (iii) provide
a mechanism for reporting instances non-compliance
and (iv) help prevent and detect wrongdoing.

During the year, no non-compliance of the laws and
regulations in Hong Kong or the Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics has been reported or noted (2015:
Nil).

This report was approved by the Board on 30 March
2017 and signed on its behalf.

Lei Hong Wai
Chairman
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) Directors’ R_eport

EEEHRE

The directors present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries and associates
are set out in notes 47 and 23 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business, comprising an
analysis using financial key performance indicators,
a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group, particulars of important events
affecting the Group that have occurred since the
end of the financial year, an indication of likely
future developments in the Group’s business and
a discussion on the Group’s compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group can be found in the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 7 to 34 of the
annual report.

A discussion on the Group’s environmental policies
and performance and an account of the Group’s
relationships with its key stakeholders that have
a significant impact on the Group and on which
the Group’s success depends can be found in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report on
pages 49 to 59 of the annual report.

The Management Discussion and Analysis, and the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report form
part of this report.

DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016 and the Group’s financial position
at that date are set out in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements on pages 84 to 87 of the annual
report.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out
on page 248 of the annual report.

PROPERTIES

Particulars of the major properties and property
interests of the Group are set out on pages 168 to
169 of the annual report.

BANK LOANS

Particulars of bank loans of the Group at 31 December
2016 are set out in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the
Company during the year are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

On 18 February 2016, the Company allotted and
issued 536,000,000 new ordinary shares at a price
of HK$0.125 per share to six investors, who are
independent third parties, by way of placing of new
shares under general mandate raising HK$64,486,000
(net of expenses) for financing the Group’s sale of
jewelry products and precious stones business and
money lending business.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 December
2016.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution
to shareholders at 31 December 2016 comprised
the retained profit of HK$454,743,000 (2015:
HK$441,460,000).
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Lei Hong Wai
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton
Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Wan Shing Chi
Mr. Ng Heung Yan
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s
bye-laws, Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan, Mr. Wan Shing Chi
and Mr. Wong Tak Chuen will retire by rotation and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The directors of subsidiary undertakings included
in the consolidated financial statements (other than
those listed above) were Mr. Xie Zhao Bin, Ms. Tian
Ying, Ms. Chen Jin Jin, Ms. Han Li Hui, Ms. Wong Siu
Yan and Mr. So Chun Kai.

Biographical details of the directors of the Company
are set out on pages 73 to 75 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2016

X
FARBEARERY  ARRAEBUT -

FHEERE
(EEHRITHABE)

REIERE

BRfEREE SR

REBTE

BAFITES

FRERE
REM-SEE
EEREE

BREARB 2D BHBRN - REIBEE - F
HERERERBELEBENEERRBEF RS
LWESE  UHFEERERBBEET -

FFAREHMBHRR MBRRES (L
RERNBEHERLE B L RE
Hut BYEZL: -  TOELZTREEML
A o

RAREEBRFBRNERE7IETSE ©

EE2RBEN

BREERRBFAS LEREE ESHE
AAAEERN - FATREECEERERMD)
BIFARIE 2 RIBEEL



19,990,008 6 Ut o0 OiEleye e

10/0/00/0/000068006886]
easseeseesasaE

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under Bye-law 166(1) of the Company’s bye-laws, the
directors shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which they or any of them shall or may
incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution
of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective
offices, provided that this indemnity shall not extend
to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty
which may attached to any of them. Such permitted
indemnity provision is currently in force and was in
force throughout the year.

The Company has also taken out and maintained
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policy
throughout the year, which indemnifies against costs,
charges, losses, expenses and liabilities that may
be incurred by the directors in the execution and
discharge of their duties.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

The changes in information of directors as required
to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) are set out below:

(@) Mr. Wong Tak Chuen, an independent non-
executive director, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Man
Sang International Limited (stock code: 938), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, on 12 July 2016;

(b) Mr. Lei Hong Wai, the Chairman of the Board
and an executive director, has been appointed as
a co-chairman of the board of directors and an
executive director of China Healthwise Holdings
Limited (stock code: 348), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and
formerly known as Haier Healthwise Holdings
Limited, on 11 October 2016;

Directors’ Report
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CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(c) Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton, an executive
director, has been appointed as an executive
director of China Healthwise Holdings Limited on
11 October 2016;

(d) Mr. Wong Tak Chuen has been appointed as
an independent non-executive director of China
Healthwise Holdings Limited on 11 October 2016;

(e) Mr. Lei Hong Wai has been re-designated from
a co-chairman to the chairman of the board of
directors of China Healthwise Holdings Limited
on 27 October 2016;

(ff Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton resigned as an
executive director of China Healthwise Holdings
Limited on 16 December 2016; and

(@99 Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton has been appointed
as the chairman of the board of directors and an
executive director of Global Mastermind Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8063), a company listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange, on 16 December 2016.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2016, the interests of the directors
and the chief executive and their associates in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations, as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers, were as follows:

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2016
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

Long positions

(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company

‘_.;a‘: e

11 n’_“.y;;f B0

Dlrectors Report
' EFEHRE

GBARRES - ABEH
V=g

() ARFZREEOOIBIT2EBER

issued ordinary

Percentage of
the issued share
capital of the

Number of

shares held Company
Name of director Note  Capacity BEZE BT EARDATE T
EENE Kz B ZRREHE =R
Mr. Lei Hong Wai 1 Held by controlled 211,416,000 6.57%
Y e corporations
FIEH AT 2
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai 1 Held by controlled 211,416,000 6.57%
Elton corporations
REIESE RSN E 2 EE
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan 1 Held by controlled 211,416,000 6.57%
REIB R4 corporations
ZEH AT 2R
Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy Beneﬂcial owner 6,319,500 0.20%
PRIGZE K4 EREEA
Note: Ktat -
1. Twin Success International Limited is owned as 1. Twin Success International Limited 2 5l

to 50% by Silver Pacific International Limited and
as to 50% by Silver Pacific Development Limited.
Silver Pacific International Limited is wholly owned

by Mr. Lei Hong Wai.

Silver Pacific Development

Limited is owned as to 50% by Mr. Cheung Kwok
Wai Elton and as to 50% by Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan.
Twin Success International Limited beneficially owns
211,416,000 ordinary shares of the Company.

| Silver Pacific International Limited #H&
50% K Silver Pacific Development Limited
% 5 50% ° Silver Pacific International
Limited B ZHEXEEZEHEE © Silver
Pacific Development Limited% B
EEEBELLEEESO D REREE KL%
B50% ° Twin Success International
Limited & & # 5 211,416,000 i &~ 2 7
EBER -

(b) Share options (b) R
Number of share Number of
Name of director Capacity options held underlying shares
EEnE 54 BEZEREHE HEROEAE
Mr. Lei Hong Wai Beneﬂcial owner 1,001 1,001
TIEESEE BEREEA
Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy Beneﬂcial owner 1,001 1,001
PRIZEE £ 4 BEREEEA
Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors, BEXHEFRIEEN RZE—XKRE+=-A8
chief executive nor their associates had any interests =+—H HEEE - FTETHRAENFEESZ
or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or B A AR A TS BB EECEE 2 E A IR

debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations at 31 December 2016.

%~ 1HE
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SHARE OPTIONS BRE

Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes RNBERETEFBEHRGS B RRM T
are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial 45 0

statements.

The following table discloses movements in the TREBARARFRAZBEREZS !
Company’s share options during the year:

Outstanding Outstanding
at at
1 January 31 December
Share 2016 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2016
options R=B-R% during during during RZB-RE
type -B-H the year the year theyear T-A=1-H
BREEH MR REREH RERTE RERER MR
Directors and chief executive
ESRIEAHAE
Mr. Lei Hong Wai 2007B 1,001 - - - 1,001
TRELE 2015A 26,000,000 - - (26,000,000) -
26,001,001 - - (26,000,000) 1,001
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton 2015A 26,000,000 - - (26,000,000) -
REREE
26,000,000 - - (26,000,000) -
Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy 20078 1,001 - - - 1,001
RipExE 2015A 2,700,000 - - (2,700,000) -
20158 20,000,000 - - (20,000,000) -
22,701,001 - - (22,700,000) 1,001
Total directors and chief executive
BERFIETHARAH 74,702,002 - - (74,700,000) 2,002
Employees and consultants 2007A 4,835 - - - 4,835
EERER 20078 23,307 - - - 23,307
20158 247,800,000 - —  (247,800,000) -
Total employees and consultants
EERE™SH 247,828,142 - —  (247,800,000) 28,142
Total
@t 322,530,144 - - (322,500,000) 30,144

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2016
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into
during the year or subsisting at the end of the year
are set out below:

Share option scheme

The Company has a share option scheme which was
adopted on 12 December 2011. Details of the share
option scheme of the Company are disclosed in the
section headed “SHARE OPTIONS” above and in note
45 to the consolidated financial statements.

Placing agreement

On 27 January 2016, the Company entered into a
placing agreement with a placing agent, pursuant to
which the Company had conditionally agreed to place,
through the placing agent, on a best effort basis, up
to 536,000,000 new ordinary shares of the Company
to not fewer than six independent investors at a price
of HK$0.125 per share.

Completion of the placing agreement was conditional
upon:

(i) the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange
granting or agreeing to grant the listing of,
and permission to deal in, up to 536,000,000
new ordinary shares to be allotted and issued
pursuant to the placing agreement; and

(i) the obligations of the placing agent under the
placing agreement becoming unconditional and
not being terminated in accordance with the
terms thereof, including provision regarding force
majeure events.

On 18 February 2016, the placing agreement was
completed and the Company allotted and issued
536,000,000 new ordinary shares under general
mandate at a price of HK$0.125 per share to six
independent investors, raising HK$64,486,000 (net
of expenses). The net proceeds were intended to be
used for financing the Group’s design and sale of
jewelry business and/or money lending business.

Other than as disclosed above, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares or that require the Company to enter
into any agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares were entered into by the
Company during the year or subsisted at the end of
the year.
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Directors’ Report
EEEHRE

fR R 20 165 5%

RERT LN FAFRER2RZHBEHRFE
BINT

BB

ARBN=F——F+=A+=AKH—1RE
B E - RAFBREE 2 FBNEX

[BBARE | —E R AR S B IS SRR MY RE 45 3R -
(=7

RZE-—RE—A=Z++tH AQAFEHEER
HITVEERHSE Bt XA ERGFHEE
ERORERER|NEEUSKREM0.1258
2B ATFPRANEBIREERERS
536,000,000 R Z B ©
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R4 B EBBERER R 2 RA (B
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RZZB-R"EZATNB BEHBECER
RRADTERE—RITEUERE0.125
BLZEBERAANEBYREERERET
536,000,000 2 3 & i# % - % 15 64,486,000
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

On 9 September 2016, Mr. Lei Hong Wai, the
Chairman of the Board and an executive director,
made a cash advance of HK$30,000,000 to the Group
for financing the short-term funding needs of the
Group. The cash advance was non-interest bearing
and unsecured. On 5 October 2016, the Group repaid
HK$30,000,000 to Mr. Lei Hong Wai.

Other than as disclosed above, no transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance to which
the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director or a connected entity of a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year,
transactions.

the Group had no connected

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of
any business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2016, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
shows that the following shareholders had notified
the Company of relevant interests in the issued share
capital of the Company.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued) FTERRE)
Long positions o=
(@) Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (@ AQFEREBEIOIEIZEER
Percentage
Number of of the issued
issued ordinary share capital of
shares held the Company
Name of shareholder Notes Capacity BEZERT EFDRFACET
RRARB st E3) EERYA REBEDH
Mr. Yuen Hoi Po 1 Held by contrgl[gd corporations 395,190,474 12.29%
REREE REFARER
Smart Concept Enterprise Limited 1 FBHe\n/eﬂciaI owner 372,416,803 11.58%
ERERA
Twin Success International Limited 2 FBHe\n/eﬂciaI owner 211,416,000 6.57%
ERERA
Silver Pacific International Limited 2and 3 Held by controlled corporation 211,416,000 6.57%
2R3 REFARER
Silver Pacific Development Limited 2and 4 Held by controlled corporation 211,416,000 6.57%
2K4 REFAR R
Mr. Lei Hong Wali 2and 3 Held by controlled corporations 211,416,000 6.57%
FHRELE 2R3 REFAR R
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton 2and 4 Held by controlled corporations 211,416,000 6.57%
REBEE 2K4 REFAR R
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan 2and 4 Held by controlled corporations 211,416,000 6.57%
REIEEE 2K4 REFAR R
Notes: Kt
1. Smart Concept Enterprise Limited is wholly owned 1. Smart Conpegt Enterprise Limited H&R
by Mr. Yuen Hoi Po. BREEZERER -
2. Twin Success International Limited is owned as to 2. Twin Success Internationgl Limi.te_d’JJ\
50% by Silver Pacific International Limited and as to Be Silver Pacific International Limited
50% by Silver Pacific Development Limited. %?ESO%&S'IV” Pacific Development
Limited #H 50% °
3. Silver Pacific International Limited is wholly owned 3. Silver Pacific International Limited 2=
by Mr. Lei Hong Wai. WREREEZEHRSE -
4. Silver Pacific Development Limited is owned as to 4. Silver Pacific Development Limited 7
50% by Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton and as to 50% BIRREELERES0% R REB L EHE
by Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan. B50% °
(b) Share options (b) EEPRAE

Number of share Number of
Name of shareholder Capacity options held underlying shares
IRIR A 56 BEZBRERE HERGEE
Mr. Lei Hong Wai Beneficial owner 1,001 1,001

FHELE

BERERA

KIEREEIZREGRAR
ZE-REFER
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)
Long positions (Continued)

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not
been notified of any other relevant interests or short
positions in the share capital of the Company at 31
December 2016.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the
independent non-executive directors, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

INTERESTS IN COMPETITORS

Mr. Lei Hong Wai, Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton and
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan (each an executive director)
have an indirect interest in approximately 13.43% of
the issued share capital of Man Sang International
Limited (stock code: 938), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange engaging in the
development, sales and leasing of properties, through
their beneficial interests in Twin Success International
Limited. In addition, Mr. Lei Hong Wai is the chairman
of the board of directors and an executive director
of Man Sang International Limited and Mr. Cheung
Kwok Wai Elton is an executive director of Man
Sang International Limited. Therefore, Man Sang
International Limited competes with the Group’s
property investment business.

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton is the chairman of the
board of directors and an executive director of Global
Mastermind Holdings Limited (stock code: 8063), a
company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of
the Stock Exchange engaging in the provision and
operation of travel business, treasury business, money
lending and asset management and which therefore
competes with the Group’s money lending business.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits scheme
are set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group
is set up by the directors of the Company on the
basis of their individual performance, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are
approved by the Board on the recommendation of
the Remuneration Committee with reference to their
duties and responsibilities in the Company.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as
an incentive to directors and eligible persons, details
of the share option scheme are set out in note 45 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available
to the Company and within the knowledge of the
directors of the Company as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of the annual report, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In 2016, the Group’s largest customer and five largest
customers accounted for 19.86% (2015: 11.48%) and
53.97% (2015: 39.38%) of its revenue from sales of
goods or rendering of services respectively.

In 2016, the Group’s largest supplier and five largest
suppliers accounted for 20.06% (2015: 16.09%) and
74.41% (2015: 59.85%) of its purchases respectively.

At 31 December 2016, Mr. Yuen Hoi Po, a shareholder
holding more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital, had a beneficial interest in one of the Group’s
five largest customers. The transaction between the
Group and the customer concerned was carried out
on normal commercial terms.

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the
year did a director, an associate of a director or a
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge
of the directors of the Company owns more than 5%
of the number of issued shares of Company) have an
interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers
or suppliers.

= = JETENITY) Directors, Report _

EFEHE

RIRERIETE

AEBRAKREANFE 2EBHNGEEMERE
M=E 46 °

B = BUR

FEERECHEBRBARRAESREMBA
RE - BENREOMRTL

ARRAEECHEKESERRFWEESS
ZRENAD R BB RBEREL 22&Mm
R o

AATCRMNBIRETE - ERHEEREE
WAL ZEER BREFEZFBEINGSY
FEHRARMIFE 45 -

RALNRERE

RIZA D B AFHRA BBl 2 REEFR AT B
BEANMINGZENRARRAES 2 HAEHE
A ARE-—BEHEF EHRBIMRE 2 AREF

IRE -

FERFRMES

REZZB-—RF AEEZERAEFRERE
ForlitEEEmmIEHRF YR 19.86%
“E-HF 111.48%)K53.97% (= E—1
F 139.38%) °

REZB—RF > AEEZHAHEBHREAH
FER 2 BIE HRIBFH20.06% (Z T —H & ¢
16.09%) % 74.41% (= F—F1 % : 59.85%) °

RZZE-RNFE+ZA=Z+—H RBELEE
(?—r*ﬁ_ZIK’D\THx$5% L/U:ZHxi)E"ZlK’EIEEL

BF Zx%ﬂ?zE%%¥{|%$k #AT o

BREXFIREE S REREMER - BE
ARAEF EBZBMBALHIRR(FALR
AESHAERA RS EHTRMOEAE 5% U
ERAEBERAAREFSHEATEERE

2L
m °

KIEREEIZREGRAR
ZE-REFER



72

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations
amounting to HK$100,000 (2015: Nil).

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general
meeting to re-appoint HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited as auditors of the Company.

This report was approved by the Board on 30 March
2017 and signed on its behalf.

Lei Hong Wai
Chairman

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2016

FR AEB2EZIENEEE100,000/E T
—IEREBEESABRRBFAZ LT UEREER
HEMEERERATEERD TZXEAE -

ABRER—ZF—LtF=ZA=+HEESSH#H
B WHATALTRREE -

ZE
TR



EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lei Hong Wai, aged 48, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company and the Chairman
of the Board on 18 January 2010 and 1 February
2010, respectively. He is also the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. Mr. Lei is responsible for
the development of the overall strategic planning
and management of the Group. He has over 15 years
of extensive experience in corporate management,
investment and business development. He was
a director of The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed
Companies Limited, which promotes interaction
amongst its members which are listed companies in
Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China, in
2002. He also holds directorships in the subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Lei is also a director of
Twin Success International Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance. Mr.
Lei is currently the chairman of the board of directors
and an executive director of Man Sang International
Limited (stock code: 938) and China Healthwise
Holdings Limited (stock code: 348 and formerly
known as Haier Healthwise Holdings Limited), both of
the companies are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton, aged 51, was appointed
as an executive director of the Company on 1
February 2011. Mr. Cheung is responsible for the
business development of the Group. He has over
27 years of experience in the area of corporate
finance and securities industries. He holds a
Master Degree in Accounting and Finance from the
University of Lancaster in the United Kingdom. He
also holds directorships in certain subsidiaries and
the associates of the Company. Mr. Cheung is also
a director of Twin Success International Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance. Mr. Cheung is the elder brother of Mr.
Cheung Kwok Fan, an executive director of the
Company. Mr. Cheung is currently an executive
director of Man Sang International Limited (stock
code: 938), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Cheung is also the chairman
of the board of directors and an executive director
of Global Mastermind Holdings Limited (stock code:
8063), a company listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Cheung was an
executive director of China Healthwise Holdings
Limited (stock code: 348 and formerly known as Haier
Healthwise Holdings Limited), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, during the period
from 11 October 2016 to 16 December 2016.
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EEEEME

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy, aged 54, was appointed
as an executive director of the Company on 18
January 2010. He has over 28 years of experience
in accounting and financial control. He is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a CPA member of CPA Australia and
a non-practicing member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He holds a Bachelor
of Administration Degree from the University of
Ottawa in Canada and a Master of Commerce Degree
in Professional Accounting from the University of
New South Wales in Australia. Mr. Chan also holds
directorships in five subsidiaries of the Company. He
is the Company Secretary of the Company and certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chan is currently
an executive director of SkyNet Group Limited
(stock code: 8176), a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan, aged 49, was appointed as
the non-executive director on 31 August 2011 and
redesignated as an executive director of the Company
on 18 September 2014. Mr. Cheung is responsible
for the overall management of the Group’s design
and sale of jewelry business. He holds directorships
in three subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Cheung
has over 25 years’ working experience in the field
of architecture. He is a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Architects, a member of The Royal
Australian Institute of Architects, Registered Architect
in Hong Kong and an Authorised Person in the List of
Architects. He obtained his Bachelor Degree of Arts
in Architectural Studies from The University of Hong
Kong in 1989 and a Bachelor Degree in Architecture
from The University of Hong Kong in 1991. He was
selected as an awardee of the Ten Outstanding Young
Persons Selection organised by Junior Chamber
of International Hong Kong in 2005. He has been
appointed as an Adjunct Lecturer of the Architecture
Subject Group of HKU School of Professional and
Continuing Education since 1 January 2014. Mr.
Cheung has been the director of his own architectural
practice, Oritecture Limited, since 10 December 2009.
He is the younger brother of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai
Elton, an executive director of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wan Shing Chi, aged 47, has over 23 years of
experience in the field of construction engineering
and is currently a site coordinator of a reputable
construction company in Hong Kong. He holds a
Bachelor Degree of Engineering with honours from
University of Melbourne, Australia and is a member
of the Asia Institute of Building. Mr. Wan joined the
Company in May 2010.

Mr. Ng Heung Yan, aged 46, has over 14 years of
experience in metal work engineering design and
currently works as a design manager in a private
engineering company in Hong Kong. He was
graduated from Monash University in Australia with
a Bachelor Degree of Engineering (Industrial and
Computing) in 1993. Mr. Ng joined the Company in
August 2011.

Mr. Wong Tak Chuen, aged 52, is a fellow member
of both Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the United Kingdom, as well as a
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. He has over 27 years of
experience in auditing, financial management, mergers
and acquisitions gained from certain senior finance
related positions in an international accounting firm
in Hong Kong, companies listed in Hong Kong and
a company listed in the United States of America.
He is currently the chief financial officer and the
company secretary of a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong is currently
an independent non-executive director of Huanxi
Media Group Limited (stock code: 1003), Man Sang
International Limited (stock code: 938) and China
Healthwise Holdings Limited (stock code: 348 and
formerly known as Haier Healthwise Holdings Limited),
all of these companies are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong joined the Company in
November 2011.
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Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HL

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Eternity Investment Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 84 to 247, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2016, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirement of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance
in our audit of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter
BRERSEE

Valuation of investment properties

REWEZI1G1E

Refer to notes 4k, 5c, 19 and 20 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.
B FIBER S BEREM T 4k - 5¢ > 19K 20 °

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has investment
properties with a carrying amount of HK$561,089,000
and gain arising on change in fair value recognised
in profit or loss with an amount of HK$3,733,000 was
recognised.
RZIEBE—RE+ZA=+—H> EBEEZREYEREE
6 7%5561,089,0008 T YEANREBEERERXZATEE
B E4£ 2 # 3,733,000 & T ©

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
is determined by adopting the valuation techniques
with significant unobservable inputs, assumptions of
market conditions and judgements. The Group also
engaged independent qualified valuers (the “Valuers”)
to establish and determine the appropriate valuation
techniques.
EEEREVEZATFENDEKMNERAERT BTG AHY
B mRABRRRIAG 2 HERNEE - BSETFEEF
%éﬁ#&ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ(ﬁaﬁﬁﬂu) CHURIEREEEE 2 HER
g ©

Due to the key source of estimation uncertainty and
the significant assumptions and judgements involved
in the valuation, valuation of investment properties is
identified as a key audit matter.

AR A REM 2T ERRREESI R 2BERBREH
B REVELERAERERSE -
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
EENERYHARERESENER

Our audit procedures in relation to
management’s determination of the
valuation of investment properties
included:

?Fﬁﬁ%ﬁ@%i&ﬁ%%1&%2%7@%%@

e evaluating the competence, capabilities
and objective of the Valuers;

AHEBMAEMNER  BOIREFBIE

e assessing the methodologies used
and the appropriateness of the key
assumptions based on our knowledge
of the relevant industry and using our
valuation experts; and
ERBMEEETE2RBREARM2
HEEXR FERKAZLERERRS
2ERE R

e checking on sample basis, the
accuracy and relevance of the input
data used.
ﬁﬁﬁffﬁﬁﬁmiﬁ)\%ﬂgzi‘%ﬁﬁ&m@%

We found the key assumptions were
supported by the available evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter (Continued)
HREREE(E)

Impairment assessment on trade receivables and
loans receivables

EZREWFEREREN 2 HETFE

Refer to notes 4n, 40, 5e, 26 and 28 to the
consolidated f/nanCIaI statements respectively.

EDFIZ RS EREME 4n > 40 > be ~ 26 K 28 °

The impairment of trade receivables and loans
receivables are estimated by the management through
the application of judgement and use of subjective
assumptlons

ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ%%&i@ﬁ&#%%%%%%ﬁ&@%
é R BAEfEET ©

Due to the significance of trade receivables and
loans receivables and the corresponding uncertainty
inherent in such an estimate, we considered this as a
key audit matter.

HRE 5 EBWE E&EWé*ZEE&&E@G+$%Z
AR ﬁﬁ AR BERERSE -
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BAREFLEEE)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter (Continued)
EENERHHREEREENERE (&)

Our audit procedures in relation to the
management’s impairment assessment of
trade receivables and loans receivables
included:

BT EEERE S BIE

RIEREWERZ

MER G 2 ERRF R

discussing the Group’s procedures on
credit limits and credit periods given to
customers with the management;
HEEENGR SXRERTEFEERHEA
REEEMZERF

evaluating the management’s
impairment assessment of trade
receivables and loans receivables;
TEEEEYE SRR RERBERER>
AR T AL

assessing, validating and discussing
with the management and evaluating
their assessment on the recoverability
of the outstanding debts and the
adequacy of allowance made based on
the trade and loans receivables aging
analysis, collections subsequent to
the end of the reporting period, past
collection history and trend analysis
and knowledge of the businesses,
with focus on long outstanding debts
and debts which are past due but not
|m aired; and

B I B 1T T4 - B RIAH 0 LR
%5@%%@&@%%%@%@%@ %
SRERE N KRB  BERTREA
BN TR BN T RAES 5
MEER O R TSR EN %
BiFE . EUELEBARR RSN
BRAENES &

checking on sample basis, the
accuracy and relevance of information
included in the impairment assessment
of trade and loans receivables.
MBI E 5 W IE R B WS TR E T
HATEEER N ERE MG o

We considered the management conclusion
to be consistent with the available
informatlon

EMRARE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter (Continued)
HREREE(E)

Impairment assessment on the Group’s goodwill
and intangible assets

BEEBEEREVEEZBEFG

Refer to notes 4e, 4h, 41, 5b, 5d, 21 and 22 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.
BERFIB RS B EM L 46 ~ 4h ~ 4]~ 5b > 5d ~ 21 K
22 -

The Group has goodwill and intangible assets of
HK$332,189,000 and HK$890,185,000 respectively
relating to the property investment segment as at 31
December 2016. Management performed impairment
assessment of the goodwill and intangible assets and
concluded that no impairment loss on goodwill and
intangible assets was recognised. This conclusion was
based on value in use model that required significant
management judgement with respect to the discount
rate and the underlying cashflows, in particular future
revenue growth and capital expenditure. Independent
external valuations were obtained in order to support
management’s estimates.
AEBR-ZE-R"F+ZA=Z+-BZBEBREFEESD
Jf*%332 189,000 /& Jt &% 890,185,000 Jt - Eﬁ’—f@%?ﬁ
GHNEM EEERGERELEEETAENE I
SH&E®R BEREFEEYBFREFBEATER - 24
EEFE%FE&%”‘J R ERS KRR AAESR
tb ’ *,\Eﬂiﬂwﬁzmi‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁzijvﬂilﬁ‘#u
BEZGHCESBUMIMEZSRE -

Efatﬁiiuuni‘
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter (Continued)
EENERHHREEREENERE (&)

QOur audit procedures in relation to
management’s impairment assessment of
goodwill and intangible assets included:

RAREEEUBERELEE ZRENEZ
ERRFERE

evaluating the competence, capabilities
and objective of the Valuers;

FHEBMAEM2ER  BOIREFBIME

assessing the methodologies used
and the appropriateness of the key
assumptions based on our knowledge
of the relevant industry and using our
valuation experts
ERBFAUHEETEZBEREAKMZ
HEEXR FERKAZLERERRS

=EERE

challenging the reasonableness of key
assumptions based on our knowledge
of the business and industry; and

ERBPHEEBRITEZRE > BRERE

BREGAE R

checking on sampling basis, the
accuracy and relevance of the input
data used.

?Eﬁéifzﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm)&%ﬂgzzﬁﬁﬁ'léﬁmﬁa

We found the key assumptions were
supported by the available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all
the information included in the annual report, but does
not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditors’ report thereon. (“Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the Other Information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
Other Information and, in doing so, consider whether
the Other Information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the Other Information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirement of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors of
the Company determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
the directors of the Company are responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring the
Group’s financial reporting process.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors’ report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the content of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of the consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors of the Company.

Ind'épendent Auditors’ Report
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the
directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditors’ report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identified during our audit.

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current year and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Hon Koon Fai, Alex.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hon Koon Fai, Alex
Practising Certificate Number: P05029

Hong Kong, 30 March 2017
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For.the year ended 31 December 2016 &:“é’i-— E—NEFLZH=F—HIEFE
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-HF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’OOQ
Ktat FET FET
Continuing operations FEKEER
Revenue Wi 7 161,042 184,780
Cost of sales SHE R AN (93,432) (95,748)
Gross profit EF 67,610 89,032
Investment and other income BREREMEA 8 1,684 4,765
Other gains and losses Ht =R K E1E 9 (177,691) 130,344
Selling and distribution expenses  $HE&ER 5 (5,826) (3,654)
Administrative expenses THREX (87,055) (88,036)
Share of results of associates FE{REE A RS 23 - =
(Loss)/profit from operations e (B518) sl (201,278) 132,451
Finance costs MEEM 10 (9,529) (1,609)
(Loss)/profit before taxation B%tﬂ;m (E518) &R (210,807) 130,842
Income tax credit/(expense) FraBiER (Bx) 13 2,903 (8,253)
(Loss)/profit for the year from AEERBFELEEK
continuing operations (B#]|), %R 14 (207,904) 122,589
Discontinued operations ERIEREEK
Loss for the year from discontinued ZAREERECKRILEEETRE
operations ZEiE 15 - (22,988)
(Loss)/profit for the year NEE(FE)BF (207,904) 99,601
(Loss)/profit for the year DT ATEEARFE(EE)
attributable to: A
Owners of the Company ADFEE A (207,902) 105,256
Non-controlling interests IR ER 2) (5,655)
(207,904) 99,601
(Loss)/earnings per share sk (ER) &7 16
From continuing and REFESCERDRLERE
discontinued operations E S
Basic HA HK(6.61) cents &fll  HK9.30 cents &1l
Diluted s HK(6.61) cents &fll  HK9.04 cents &L
From continuing operations REFELCEEL
Basic B=9iN HK(6.61) cents &1l HK10.83 cents &l
Diluted #E HK(6.61) cents 1l HK10.53 cents i
From discontinued operations REDKRIEKEEK
Basic B=iN N/AFER  HK(1.53) centsi&fl
Diluted e N/A RER  HK(1.49) cents 4l

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the

consolidated financial statements.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2016
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@] Gohsol’dated Statement of Prof|t or Loss and Other Comprehenswe Income

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—=

HERaREtEZEREE
—AEF A=t —ALEE

2016 2015
—B-X&E —T-EF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
BtaF FET FET
(Loss)/profit for the year KEE(FE),RF (207,904) 99,601
Other comprehensive income for ZAFEHMEEUE
the year, net of income tax RTS8 #%&
Items that may be reclassified HEGREES nEE
subsequently to profit or loss: BmkZHE -
Exchange differences arising on REBIEREEZ
translating foreign operations fE 5 EZE (103,999) (32,117)
Reclassification adjustments EECHEBNEK 2
relating to foreign operations B ERRE
disposed of - 55
Net gain/(loss) arising on AMHEERMEES M
revaluation of available-for- EEzWE (BE)
sale financial assets R 25 109,000 (42,334)
Reclassification adjustments EECHERHEE
relating to available-for-sale TREEZEHN
financial assets disposed of DA (22,500) (74,378)
Reclassification adjustments EECEIAAHEE
relating to impairment loss cREERERIE
recognised in respect of ZEHDERE
available-for-sale financial
assets 57,750 73,500
Total comprehensive (expense)/ ZXEEXHA(HX),
income for the year W &= (167,653) 24,327
Total comprehensive (expense)/ LT ATELEAFEERM
income for the year MEAX)
attributable to:
Owners of the Company AATEEA (167,651) 29,982
Non-controlling interests JEIER RS (2) (5,655)
(167,653) 24,327
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the BEMf 2 BN RE M ERKRZ2— D -

consolidated financial statements.
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Consol‘dated Statement of Fmanmal Posmon

FEMBRRE
At 31 December 2016 R_EF~FELI=H=+—H
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Kzt FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - MERRE 18 432,976 420,784
Investment properties REYE 19 561,089 595,448
Intangible assets B EE 21 890,185 971,888
Goodwill SRS 22 332,189 354,772
Interests in associates REEE QN T 2R 23 600 —
Deposit for investment BRERS 24 - —
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESmERE 25 365,172 262,672
Deferred tax assets EIERIBEEE 40 4,738 3,792
Prepayments FEfRIE 29 1,561 7,979
Loans receivables EWRER 26 138,500 462,456
2,727,010 3,079,791
Current assets REBEE
Inventories T8 27 45,636 49,258
Loans receivables EWE R 26 312,663 23,021
Trade receivables g ZEWFE 28 63,160 62,233
Deposits, prepayments and other &% -~ FBNFIER
receivables Hth FE R FRIE 29 101,261 98,541
Amount due from an associate FEU — RE B & A B 5k IE 30 1,697 2,097
Financial assets at fair value EAFEABE
through profit or loss TREE 31 544,442 597,658
Tax recoverable ] YR =] F 18 6,694 8,906
Cash and cash equivalents HeERBEEEEY 32 438,975 509,341
1,514,528 1,351,055
Total assets EEHAE 4,241,538 4,430,846
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves attributable Z2F#A ABGERER
to owners of the Company &
Share capital i 33 32,160 26,800
Reserves 15 3,216,985 3,325,510
Equity attributable to owners of XA FEE AEGES
the Company 3,249,145 3,352,310
Non-controlling interests FEIEpR R = (6) (5)
Total equity EmEE 3,249,139 3,352,305

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2016
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Consolldated Statement of FmanCIaI Position

8 M KA &

—AE+=A=1—A

2016 2015
—E-XRE —ZE-hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Vo3 FET FET
LIABILITIES =i
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables B S ENRIE 34 36,532 40,220
Deposits received, accruals and 2ize - ETERAR
other payables HAFE T FRIE 35 173,497 161,019
Receipts in advance FEURFRIE 36,512 33,389
Promissory notes AHEE 36 30,000 30,000
Tax payables FE{SFiIE 85,318 92,004
Deferred revenue IEAE Ui 3 37 - =
Amount due to an associate S — F‘ﬁ & N B FRIE 38 991 —
Bank borrowings RITIER 39 27,203 29,054
390,053 385,686
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Other payables E@E’EH?XIE 35 85,670 92,290
Receipts in advance SECEN 59,400 81,000
Bank borrowings fﬁ’dﬂa EY 39 117,878 154,953
Deferred tax liabilities EFBEBEE 40 339,398 364,612
602,346 692,855
Total liabilities BEEAH 992,399 1,078,541
Total equity and liabilities EEkEEEE 4,241,538 4,430,846
Net current assets RBEERE 1,124,475 965,369
Total assets less current EELABERRBER
liabilities 3,851,485 4,045,160

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
30 March 2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

Lei Hong Wai

TR

Director

EE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the
consolidated financial statements.
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Director
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Attributable to owners of the Company

KATRAARE
Available-
for-sale
Equity-settled financial
share-based assets Non-
Share Share Capital ~ Contributed payment  revaluation  Exchange Other  Retained controlling
capital premium reserve surplus reserve reﬁsiewrvge reserve reserve profits ~ Sub-total interests Total
7
NREEE,  GREE
BE  ROEE  BABE  REBR ROSGER BB ENEE  AMRE  RER bt FEREE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
b7:23 AT AT AT FAL FAT A% A% 723 b7:23 -2 AT
(Note g (Note b) (Note ¢) (Note d)
Wda) (KD (o) (Wdd)
At 1 January 2015 HZE-1E-F-A 5417 519,543 19,833 404,663 20,237 43212 1 (41,339) 1,173,024 2,144,651 11,790 2,156,441
Proft/loss) for the year REZEA/(BE) - - - - - - - - 1052%6 105286 (3655 99601
Other comprehensive income for the year  AEEEM2ENE
Exchange differences arising on BEEN %ﬁéiz
translating foreign operations EiE - - - - - - (82,117) - - 82117) - @2117)
Reclassffication adjustment relating to EEEEEM%W
foreign operations disposed of AR - - - - - - 55 - - 55 - 55
Net loss arising on revaluation of THhESHEER R
available-for-sale financial assets LEEEE - - - - - (42,334) - - - (42,334) - (42,334)
Reclassification adjustments relatingto ~ AECHETHHESR
avallable-for-sale financial assets EEVENNE
disposed of 58 = = = = - M = = -3 -
Reclassification adjustments relating 5 EER%W&'EM
to impairment loss recognised EEHEREL
in respect of avalable-for-sale EjifE
financial assets Fil:d - - - - - 73,500 - - - 73,500 - 73,500
Total comprehensive (expenselincome  AEERE(BR)/UHLE
for the year - - - - - W) (R0 - E%6 2% (e 243
Exercise of share options TERRE 423 33,724 - - (4942) - - - - 29,005 - 29,205
Issue of new shares upon rights issue  ERERTHRA 5900 407,102 - - - - - - - 41300 - 4300
Issue of consideration shares in relation to ?ﬂﬁlﬂé Wﬁ’ﬁﬁﬂ
acquisition of a subsidiary 15,000 712,500 - - - - - - - 727,500 - 727,500
Share issue expenses ﬂﬁfﬂ?ﬂ - (9,830) - - - - - - - (9,830) - (9.830)
Deemed disposal of a subsidiary RELE-BHELT - - - - - - = 41339 (41,3%9) - (2,267) (2,267)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests B XA ERRRZHRE - - - - - - - - - - (3.873) (3,873)
Recognition of equity-settled share-based  ERHRELEZRAZH
payment - - - - 17,800 - - - - 17,800 - 17,800
Release on lapse of equity-settled share- ~ HRELE 2 RATHENE
based payment BE - - - - (5,447) - - - 5447 - - -
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 R=§-EF+=A=1-AR
~2-35-R-A 26,800 1,663,039 19,833 404,663 27,648 - (32,061) - 1,242,388 3,352,310 (5) 3,352,305
Loss for the year KEERE - - - - - - - - (207,902 (207,902) 2 (207,904)
Other comprehensive income for the year  AEEEM2AKE
Exchange differences arising on BEE)RHEL,
translating foreign operations E3ZE - - - - - - (103,999) - - (103,999) - (103,999)
Net gain arising on revaluation of TiLESRER
available-for-sale financial assets EfiEE 2 hERE - - - - - 109,000 - - - 109,000 - 109,000
Reclassification adjustments relatingto ~ BBEHETHEELR
available-for-sale financial assets EEZEM g
disposalof - - - - - (250 - - - (250 - (2500
Reclassification adjustments relating ﬁi@'l%ﬁﬁdﬁé
to impairment loss recognised BETHEREL
in respect of available-for-sale Eif7E
financial assets E - - - - - 57,750 - - - 57,750 - 57,750
Total comprehensive income/(expense)  AEEZEUER/(BR)4E
for the year - - - - - 144,250 (103,999) - (207,002)  (167,651) 2) (167,653
Placing of new shares RENRN 5,360 61,640 - - - - - - - 67,000 - 67,000
Share issue expenses RisaER - (2,514) - - - - - - - (2,514) - (2,514)
Changes in ownership interests in a REBEHELE5E
subsidiary upon deemed disposal RFLENELT
without loss of control fERE28 - - - - - - - - - 400 400
Deemed disposal of a subsidiary RELERBLR - - - - - - - - - (399) (399)
Release on lapse of equity-settled share-  WREEEZRAXHANE
based payment &m - - - - (17,800) - - - 17,800 - - -
At 31 December 2016 R-E-RETZAZ1-A 32,160 1,722,165 19,833 404,663 9,848 144,250 (136,060) - 1,062,286 3,249,145 (6) 3,249,139

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED

Annual Report 2016



JOOOO0C0O00 OO0 ava|
00OA00000CA0COIO0N) N0 .00
() )0 ) Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FEERBgER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z _—FE—NF+ _-H=+—HIEFFEZ

Notes:

Capital reserve represents the difference of share capital
and share premium of the subsidiaries and the nominal
value of the 880 shares issued by Riche (BVI) Limited
(formerly known as Ocean Shores (BVI) Limited) prior to
the allotment of 120 shares to Classical Statue Limited and
the amount arising from issue of share by a subsidiary.

Contributed surplus represents the net amount transferred
from share capital and share premium to retained profits
pursuant to the special resolutions passed at the special
general meetings held on 22 August 2003, 30 April 2008
and 12 December 2011.

Equity-settled share-based payment reserve represents the
fair value of services estimated to be received in exchange
for the grant of the relevant share options over the
relevant vesting periods, the total of which is based on the
fair value of the share options at grant date. The amount
for each reporting period is determined by spreading the
fair value of the share options over the relevant vesting
periods (if any) and is recognised as staff costs and
related expenses with a corresponding increase in equity-
settled share-based payment reserve.

Available-for-sale financial assets revaluation reserve
represents cumulative gains and losses on revaluation
of available-for-sale financial assets recognised in other
comprehensive income less those cumulative gains and
losses recycled and recognised in profit or loss upon
derecognition of available-for-sale financial assets.

pit :

(@ EBAREEHBATAZBRARRMEEERD
Classical Statue Limited &g 2 120 8% IR 13 Al
Riche (BVI) Limited (51 Ocean Shores (BVI)
Limited) PTE%1T 2 880 R 0 2 EE R KT B2 A
BITRDFIBRIBZEZLE -

(b) E%ﬂ&ﬁﬂa*ﬁﬂﬁ}?\—? E=FN\NA=t+=R-=
ENFRA=+HR=Z——F+=RA+=H
%‘Eﬁzﬂii'ff—:ﬁ |XE LBBZBHIARRERA

KRR EE B EREEFR 2 FHE o

() HUBRBEEZROXUFEEENEREBHAR
ﬁ*ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁiu?ﬁHBI1E+H1?§§%HE7T%Z£\‘$TE
HBBEDREBRENRE AR ZAFERE
:.iﬁ%,ﬁﬂZﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬂﬂ%ﬁ%ﬂx%ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%@%
BH (WA NBIEE - ARABETRARM
BRI - MLARFEAEH 2 IR 1) 2 R 8 (E AR FE
hn e

d AHHESHEESHRBIEENEMEERS
BAZAHHESHEEEM 2R RERE
B ARRKRLEITHHESREERSWE
WMERRER ZRFTREREE °
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() Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For.the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZLE—NF+ A =+—HILFEZ

2016 2015
—E-RE —E-RF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Wizt FET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REE
(Loss)/profit before taxation from REBFELSE XL ZREA
continuing operations (&518) @+l (210,807) 130,842
Loss before taxation from discontinued ~ REH TR ILEEEK 2 BT
operations BB 15 - (22,317)
Adjustments for: BUTHEEEL 7 -
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE#H 14,21 20,647 5,114
Cumulative gain reclassified from RELERTHEESR
equity to profit or loss upon EEAHERERN
derecognition of available-for-sale DTEEBRRKRZ
financial assets 2t 9 (22,500) (74,378)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERRE
equipment ZITE 18 14,586 7,738
Dividend income % B A 8 (1,347) (3,111)
Equity-settled share-based payment DRBEE 2RO X
expenses X 14 - 17,800
Gain arising on change in fair value of BANBE DR 2 BRE
financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABRERZ
profit or loss upon recognition of EREELATEEZDE
interests in associates 4z s 9 (17,367) —
Gain arising on change in fair value of REVERNTEEHELE
investment properties Z e 9,19 (3,733) (604)
Gain on deemed disposal of a BELE-BNBARZ
subsidiary e 9,43 8) (245,072)
Impairment loss recognised in respect ERRAEN—EEE A7
of amount due from an associate MIEZRERE ¢ 400 1,431
Impairment loss recognised in respect ERIATMEHESHERE
of available-for-sale financial assets ZHEBBRER
reclassified from equity to profit or EHAIEE
loss BR& 9 57,750 73,500
Impairment loss recognised in respect ~ BERHE ZHEFRE
of goodwill 9 - 48,492
Interest income on bank deposits RITFERZFIEWA (329) (1,386)
Interest expenses FERX 10,15 9,529 2,463
Loss arising on change in fair value of BEAVEFABRERZ
financial assets at fair value through ERMEEATE
profit or loss BHEEZEE 9 141,649 66,286
Loss on deemed disposal of an BIEEHE—BBELRZ
associate EE 9,23 21,500 =
Loss on disposal of property, plant HENE BERZREZ
and equipment Ea 9,15 - 137
Share of results of associates PEGH & 1\ R 4R - -
Write-down of inventories WREE 15,27 - 3

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2016



Consolidétéd Statement.of Cash Flows

FeBaRE
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BZE—F—~NF1+=-H=+—HIFEZ
2016 2015
—REF “E-Rf
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
Kzt FET FET
Operating cash flows before movements “E&E &S A2
in working capital REBERE 9,970 6,938
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BERD /() 4,119 (16,883)
Decrease in loans receivables W EFR D 34,314 465,072
Increase in trade receivables B 5 W IEE N (803) (47,312)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits, Be - AAREREMEK
prepayments and other receivables RIERD,/(38h) 10,584 (3,367)
Increase in financial assets at fair value ~ RAFEF ABHKRZ
through profit or loss TREEEM (206,066) (65,239)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables ESEMAZECORD) B (3,844) 24,968
Decrease in deposits received, accruals DWIRE « B ERK
and other payables Hi B RRIER D (7,840) (8,693)
(Decrease)/increase in receipts in BB CRD) /&
advance (19,492) 258,716
Decrease in deposits from customers EEEESRED - (34)
Increase in deferred revenue RAE U R IZ N - 556
Cash (used in)/generated from E(fA)/ELBE
operations (179,058) 614,722
Interest paid ERFE (10,090) (1,360)
Tax paid 2 HIE (12,333) (19,424)
Net cash (used in)/generated from "EEEH(TRA),/ EERe
operating activities FE (201,481) 593,938
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETEE
Dividend received 2lRiRE 1,347 3,111
Interest received 2 IRAE 329 1,379
Net cash outflow on acquisition of KB AT EE RS
subsidiaries T 42 - (847,455)
Net cash outflow on deemed disposal of BEHE—FEHEBELF 2
a subsidiary Bent$E 43 - (161,878)
Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits ~ REUZ [R&IRITER - 7,045
Proceeds from disposal of available-for- HERHHESREE
sale financial assets REEINE] 25 120,000 99,881
Proceeds from disposal of property, HENE BERZRE
plant and equipment P88 643 373
Purchase of property, plant and BENE  BERSRE
equipment 18 (53,705) (10,216)
Net cash generated from/(used in) REZHEE(FFRA)Z
investing activities REFE 68,614 (907,760)
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Consol‘dated Statement of Cash Flows

TEaRHeaRE
For.the year ended 31 Decémber 2016 BE-E—ANFL-_HA=1—HILEE
2016 2015
—RF “E-Rf
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
iifd FET FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES AEEE
Dividend paid to non-controlling ENFERERZKRE
interests - (3,873)
Proceeds from exercise of share options 1T 8E IR #E 2 FT{5 & - 29,205
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary fﬂﬁ?ﬂt@ﬁ’i?’ﬁﬂ%2$i &
without lost of control YA R 2 RS E 400 =
Proceeds from placing of new shares EREFTIR 1D 2 P15 018 67,000 =
Proceeds from issue of new shares upon R ITHRG 2
rights issue REEINE] - 413,002
Proceeds from other borrowings HAhf& 58 IE - 14,226
Repayment of bank borrowings RITERI (48,798) (6,116)
Repayment of obligations under finance ~BEHESEIH
leases - (443)
Repayment of other borrowings HA BRI - (3,850)
Repayment of promissory notes ARZBAN - (6,402)
Share issue expenses B ITHRX (2,514) (9,830)
Net cash generated from financing BMEZHELE RS TFE
activities 16,088 425,919
Net (decrease)/increase in cashand ~ HE2RALZEYCOHL)
cash equivalents EnFEE (116,779) 112,097
Cash and cash equivalents at BERNZRERRE
beginning of the reporting period = 509,341 384,778
Effect of foreign exchange rate ExgHsoE
changes 46,413 12,466
Cash and cash equivalents at end of HREHAZBEERES
the reporting period ZEY 438,975 509,341
Analysis of the balances of cash and BE&RBELEZEBYELDNT
cash equivalents
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFHERE 32 438,975 509,341

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the

consolidated financial statements.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2016
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)0 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z _—FE—NF+ _-H=+—HIEFFEZ

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as
an exempted company with limited liability and
its issued shares are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office, and head office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the corporate information section to the annual
report.

The principal activity of the Company is
investment holding. The principal activities
of the Company’s subsidiaries (together with
the Company referred to as the “Group”) are
distribution of films, sub-licensing of film rights,
sale of financial assets, property investment,
money lending, design and sale of jewelry
products, and sale of precious stones. The Group
was also engaged in development, distribution
and marketing of personal care treatments,
products and services, which were discontinued
on 6 November 2015.

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in thousands of units of Hong Kong
dollars (HK$’000), which is the functional
currency of the Company.

—REH

AANAABNREREIMRIZER RS
BRAT HEBTRHOEEFBBHERS
FIERAB(HBRADERLESR - AAQ
AZaMREEUARBEREERFTEE
EB MR EERSZARNER —
Bt E o

AATZEBEXBAREER - A2 T
ZHBLAT(ERARAASEE AEH])
CEIBEBARTEY HEHESEBIT
B HESREE  WERE B8
R RHEEKEERURBESER - &~
%E%@E@A EIEERE - EmRRS
CERRE - DEETBERE YER=-F
—£$+—Hﬁﬂ%¢°
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For.the year ended 31 December 2016 BZ-E—ANFL_A=+—HIULFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERNAIERUBEREEARAE
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG AIAR(TEBUBHRELEN]D
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following new and AEBRAFECHERAERBREBS
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong M EBSHMAE ) ASHEMZIET
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants EBUBRELEAREMBITA -
(the “HKICPA”) for the first time in the current
year:
HKAS 1 (Amendments)  Disclosure Initiative BREHENE 15 EHE
(BETR)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of BASTHEAZ 165 BREUERCTERBER L
(Amendments) Depreciation and Amortisation REBEHE]
383K (BT K)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants BAGTTEAE 6%  BX:EEMEY
(Amendments) REBETER
B4 H(BITK)
HKAS 27 (Amendments)  Equity Method in Separate Financial BEASEAETY  BUNERRERE
Statements (BFTK)
HKFRSs (Amendments)  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012- EANKREER “ER-CEECE-NEREN
2014 Cycle CCHES) EANKREEAZEE
N
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 Investment Entities: Applying the EANBREER REBR  ERGSARZH
and HKAS 28 Consolidation Exception £10%  BAMK IMER
(Amendments) ERAZ12%R
ERETENE8R
(BFIE)
HKFRS 11 (Amendments)  Accounting for Acquisition of Interests in BRURREES BB E KRRz ETRE
Joint Operations AREACCHES
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts S r%ﬁﬂ%iﬁfﬁﬁ' EERERR
£ 145
The application of the new and amendments RAFERBLENITEBUBREE
to HKFRSs in the current year has no material B R EBIT AU GEEMBR/RERFTEH 2K
impact on the Group’s financial performance and FERBEFERAEEMBERRER
positions for the current and prior years and/or HIFBRvERITB|EASTE -

on the disclosures set out in the consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z _—FE—NF+ _-H=+—HIEFFEZ

3. NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN
ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following
new and amendments to HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective:

Disclosure Initiative'
Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses'

HKAS 7 (Amendments)
HKAS 12 (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-
2016 Cycle®

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)  Classification and Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions?

HKFRS 4 (Amendments)  Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts?

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between

(Amendments) an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers?

HKFRS 15 (Amendments) Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Clarifications to HKFRS 15)*

HKFRS 16 Leases®

I Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018, with earlier application permitted.

S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019, with earlier application permitted.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017 or 2018, with earlier application
permitted.

Except as described below, none of these new
and amendments to HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective is expected to
have a material effect on the Group’s financial
statements and positions.

PR 15 R A R 2 ¥ R] B 8 B 3%
HEAREERTAR

SEWEREFEMALUTEEME R K
W M E BV BREERREERT

BRSTEARTHR(BIA)  REHY
ERETEAZ 2R (BITAR) RAZREERIEL

HEEE
EEUBREEN(BITX) E-HNEZ-E-
iﬁ%ﬁéwﬁﬁi
BRI EEHHES
BEEUBREENE 2 uWﬁﬁﬁx%Z\ﬁ
CHES) Kt &2
EEUBREENE 4G HEBIERELELE
CHES) AERRERERE
BUBREERE
FERTA?
BEEUBREENE N $RIA?
BERMKREENEI0%R REZHHEZNTY
BEETERE 285 RENRZEZEE
CHES) HEHTE

BEEUNBREENE 155
BEUBREENE 155

RERFENzE?
REEPAN W (%

(BETA) EEBBREER
£15%)2

BRUBBEZAZ 165 Bee

! REE—+tHE-—A-BRZEMABZFE
HEEN  ATTREEM -

2 REZE-NF-A-BRZERABRZFE
HIBEXR - A TFREEM -

8 REZB-NF-A-—BHZBRRZFE
HEER  TTFREER -

4 Ri§FHREZBRR 2 RRIE 2 FEHE

£ e
S RET—tFH=-FT-NF-A—HHZ

BEKRFEREER  ITFREER -
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For.the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZLE—NF+ A =+—HILFEZ

3. NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs
IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial
general hedge
accounting and impairment requirements for

assets, financial liabilities,

financial assets.

Key requirement of HKFRS 9 are described

below:

° all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the
end of subsequent reporting periods. Debt
instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are generally measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”). All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their
fair value at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of
an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognised

in profit or loss.
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NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs
IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

with regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the
amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of
changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. Changes in fair value attributable
to a financial liability’s credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated at fair value through
profit or loss is presented in profit or loss.

in relation to the impairment of financial
assets, HKFRS 9 requires an expected
credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39.
The expected credit loss model requires
an entity to account for expected credit
losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at the end of each reporting
period to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition. In other words, it
is no longer necessary for a credit event
to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

the new general hedge accounting
requirements retain the three types of
hedge accounting mechanisms currently
available in HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9,
greater flexibility has been introduced
to the types of transactions eligible for
hedge accounting, specifically broadening
the types of instruments that qualify for
hedging instruments and the types of risk
components of non-financial items that are
eligible for hedge accounting. In addition,
the retrospective quantitative effectiveness
test has been removed. Enhanced
disclosure requirements about an entity’s
risk management activities have also been
introduced.
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NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs
IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and
risk management policies at 31 December 2016,
the application of HKFRS 9 in the future may
have a material impact on the classification and
measurement of the Group’s financial assets.
The Group’s available-for-sale financial assets,
including those currently stated at cost less
impairment, will either be measured as fair
value through profit or loss or be designated as
FVTOCI (subject to fulfilment of the designation
criteria).

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a
single comprehensive model for entities to use
in accounting for revenue arising from contracts
with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related Interpretations when it
becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer
of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services. Specifically, the
standard introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a
customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance
obligations in the contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to
the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as)

the entity satisfies a performance
obligation

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2016
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z _—FE—NF+ _-H=+—HIEFFEZ

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs
IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue
when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied,
i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS
15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore,
extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to
HKFRS 15 in relation to the identification of
performance obligations, principal versus agent
considerations, as well as licensing application
guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result
in more disclosures, however, the directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the
timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the
respective reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 supersedes HKAS 17 Leases,

C 98 {8 [ R A B2 $ 7] B B S
HRELZREBITRE)
BERMBREENBISRERAEEFF S
Z W (&

REBBYBRELRFE165 - EER
TRBENEER (L) R ks 8
RERBFEEBNEE2ERIRE <[ £
FEIEBRTFTEFRK - BBV BREER
BISREMBRER ZEEL ERAE
A 2G| - o BEMBREER
FBIGHBERFHEFBRZIKE ©

RZZB—XEF BESHMASNEE
MBmEENEISRELESE  REE
FEERBEEE  FAEHRELE R
FREME RIS -

RARESRYPAREREBYBRE
RIS RSN ESRESE -
AM - AARESYERYEAE B
B EERE 15 RS HREREREHE
BRAZBREEREFEFEATE -

BEREUMBERERNF16RHET
BB BRELENE16RMABTBEG

HK(IFRIC) — Int 4 Determining whether an HAE17THHAE BB (EBRMBRE
Arrangement contain a Lease, HK(SIC) — Int 15 REZEY) - REFIGETZHES

Operating Lease — Incentives and HK(SIC) —
Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.

HKFRS 16 eliminates the classification by a
lessee of leases as either operating or finance.
Instead all leases are treated in a similar way
to finance leases in accordance with HKAS 17.
Under HKFRS 16, leases are recorded on the
consolidated statement of financial position by
recognising a liability for the present value of
its obligation to make future lease payments
with an asset (comprised of the amount of
lease liability plus certain other amounts) either
being disclosed separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position (within right-of-
use assets) or together with property, plant and
equipment. The most significant effect of the new
requirements will be an increase in recognised
lease assets and financial liabilities.
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NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs CEMERARERZHITE BT K
IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE WEERREEITRE)

(Continueqd)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

There are some exemptions. HKFRS 16 contains
options which do not require a lessee to
recognise assets and liabilities for (a) short term
leases (i.e. lease of 12 months or less, including
the effect of any extension options) and (b)
leases of low value assets (for example, a lease
of a personal computer).

ERMBHREERNE165RHEE (F)

ERNAETRE EEMBHRE R
55 16 5 Q4F I I B2 A A B (a) R
EEH12ARUT A& - BEEMA
ERERZEE)Rb)EEEAEAR
PR EA SRR AR AR
7 -

HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the BBV BBRELEDE 16K ABEREB
lessor’s accounting requirements in HKAS 17. S EHFE17THE2HBAASTTEER
Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its Eeo Bt HEAEBESHBEE EA
leases as operating leases or finance leases, KeEHEIMERE WEHMEHRE
and to account for those two types of leases ETTRZETRE - BollzoE ﬁ'ﬁ
differently. In classifying a sublease, an S FANHEABRTIGGESE2ED

intermediate lessor shall classify the sublease as HAMEEERKEHE  mEHEE

a finance lease or an operating lease as follows:
(a) if the head lease is a short-term lease that
the entity, as a lessee, the sublease shall be
reclassified as an operating lease; (b) otherwise,
the sublease shall be classified by reference
to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease, rather than by reference to the underlying
asset.

HKFRS 16 clarifies that a lessee separates
lease components and service components of
a contract, and applies the lease accounting
requirements only to the lease components.

DEMAEMZEERSAEA EJJ i)
BEHIBAEEHE (b )?:TEJJ : '%‘El.
FE%FHIEE?E‘*FEZEFH*E Fﬁ‘ﬁ
B MIASREBEE -

HEBMBHMEELE 165E/3/EJ¥K$HAE
DENZHERS RBBEHD  LER
HEHOEABEESTER -

Application of HKFRS 16 will result in the FE PR & 8 B 5 3R &5 2E B 2 16 SR A BB
Group’s recognition of right-of-use assets and SEARAEEHERRIEEER
corresponding liabilities in respect of many of %}Sﬁ*ﬁﬁg’é{a cHEEERABEBEHAR
the Group’s lease arrangements. These assets AR HEETHBEERRNGS KR
and liabilities are currently not required to be %ZM‘J‘IW‘H}Z? o 3 AN 4r & B 7% R 3R Ft
recognised but certain relevant information T4 R=—FE—RE+_A=+—
is disclosed to the notes to the consolidated BASEEMBAZTYERLERE  B()
financial statements. As set out in note 44 to EEREENTFERELERZ2EE4S
the consolidated financial statements, total Elﬁ?iﬁm“ﬁﬁlﬁg(rgﬁﬁ ) ZFERI R (ii)
operating lease commitment of the Group for BE 2% % A8 — g AL 30 = P 2 580 mi b 1R
office premises and the operating rights in (Tt ) oA R EIE TS
respect of (i) the rights to manage and operate CEMECEIN2KLEHERIELES
the membership-based golf club and resort in 685,024,000 7t c R AR ESFEH -

Beijing, Mainland China, (the “Club”) and (ii) ,Eﬁiﬁﬁuaﬁﬂlﬁ*ﬁtt  ER BB IR
the rights to develop and operate a piece of HERE1HEITEHAEBMEBZERE
580 Chinese acre land adjacent to the Club (the 5-/55 HHEZEROREEPET
“Subject Land”) and the rights to manage the DERGBEVMBRRARERAREES

properties erected on the Subject Land at 31
December 2016 amounted to HK$685,024,000.
The directors of the Company do not expect
the application of HKFRS 16 as compared with
the current accounting policy would result in
significant impact on the Group’s result but it
is expected that certain portion of these lease
commitments will be required to be recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position
as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BZE—F—~NF1+=-H=+—HIFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in
the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a)

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs
which is a collective term that includes
all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA.
In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) and by the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on the historical cost basis,
except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments that are measured
at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting
policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange
for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement
date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability
at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in the consolidated financial statements
is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 or value in use in HKAS 36.
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For.the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZLE—NF+ A =+—HILFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-
financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes,
fair value measurements are categorised into
Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement
date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than
quoted prices included within Level
1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs
for the asset or liability.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;
° is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the

investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect
its returns.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z _—FE—NF+ _-H=+—HIEFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FEEHBEBE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Basis of consolidation (Continued) (b) HFEEEE)

The Group reassesses whether or not
it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of
the voting rights of an investee, it has power
over the investee when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee
unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in
an investee are sufficient to give it power,
including:

° the size of the Group’s holding of
voting rights relative to the size and
dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

o potential voting rights held by the
Group, other vote holders or other
parties;

° rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

° any additional facts and circumstances
that indicate that the Group has, or
does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the
time that decisions need to be made,
including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins
when the Group obtains control over the
subsidiary and ceases when the Group
loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in consolidated profit or loss from
the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other
comprehensive income are attributed to
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to
the financial statements of subsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies into line with
the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted
for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of the assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
are recognised at their fair value, except
that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and
assets or liabilities related to employee
benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19
Employee Benefits respectively;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S M RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z _—FE—NF+ _-H=+—HIEFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, FESHEHERBE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Basis of consolidation (Continued) (b) HFEEEE)

Business combinations (Continued)

° liabilities or equity instruments related
to share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition
date; and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are
classified as held for sale in accordance
with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations
are measured in accordance with that
standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the
sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree, and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree (if any) over the net amount
of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed as at acquisition date.
If, after re-assessment, the net amount
of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of
the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in
the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

106

Business combinations (Continued)

When the consideration transferred by
the Group in a business combination
includes assets or liabilities resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at
its acquisition-date fair value and included
as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period
adjustments are adjusted retrospectively,
with the corresponding adjustments made
against goodwill. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from
additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed
one year from the acquisition date) about
facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the
contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
period and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured to fair value
at subsequent reporting period, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in
stages, the Group’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the
resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests
in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss where such treatment would
be appropriate if that interest were disposed
of.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S M RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z _—FE—NF+ _-H=+—HIEFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FEGHBERBEE)
POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Basis of consolidation (Continued) (b) HZREEE(E)
Business combinations (Continued) EHSOFE)

If the initial accounting for a business
combination is incomplete by the end
of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports
provisional amounts for the items for
which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during
the measurement period (see above), and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised,
to reflect new information obtained about
facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date that, if known, would have
affected the amounts recognised at that
date.
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subsidiaries without change of control (REHFES I EZE)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries that do not result
in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s relevant components of equity
including reserves and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted after re-attribution of the relevant
equity component, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a
subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii)
the carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company.
All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair
value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKAS 39, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for at cost less impairment. Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the interests in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
a dividend from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z _—FE—NF+ _-H=+—HIEFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the
Group has significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of
the investee but not control or joint control
over these policies.

The results and assets and liabilities
of associates are incorporated in the
consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associates used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of
the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate
is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate.
When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate exceeds the Group’s interest in
that associate (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate),
the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted
for using the equity method from the
date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment
in an associate, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised
as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied
to determine whether it is necessary to
recognise any impairment loss with respect
to the Group’s investment in an associate.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to
the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in the
investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate
and the retained interest is a financial asset
within the scope of HKAS 39, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value
at that date and the fair value is regarded
as its fair value on initial recognition. The
difference between the carrying amount
of the associate and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing the relevant interest in the
associate is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the
associate. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate on the same basis as would
be required if that associate had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associate would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) when the
equity method is discontinued.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Investments in associates (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership
interest in an associate but the Group
continues to use the equity method,
the Group reclassifies to profit or loss
the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain
or loss would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an
associate of the Group, profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised
in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests
in the associate that are not related to the
Group.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition of business is
carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing,
goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units (“CGUs”) (or groups
of CGUs) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination,
which represent the lowest level at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than
an operating segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in
a reporting period, the CGU (or group of
CGUs) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill and
then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit (or group of CGUs).
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

()

Goodwill (Continued)

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included
in the determination of the amount of the
gain or loss on disposal.

Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations

Non-current assets and disposal groups are
classified as held for sale if their carrying
amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded
as met only when the asset (or disposal
group) is available for immediate sale in
its present condition subject only to terms
that are usual and customary for sales of
such asset (or disposal group) and its sale
is highly probable. Management must be
committed to the sale, which should be
expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the
date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all
of the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary
are classified as held for sale when the
criteria described above are met, regardless
of whether the Group will retain a non-
controlling interest in its former subsidiary
after the sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale
plan involving disposal of an investment,
or a portion of an investment, in an
associate, the investment or the portion of
the investment that will be disposed of is
classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, and the Group
discontinues the use of the equity method
in relation to the portion that is classified
as held for sale from the time when the
investment (or a portion of the investment) is
classified as held for sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups)
classified as held for sale are measured at
the lower of their previous carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z _—FE—NF+ _-H=+—HIEFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

(9)

Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations (Continued)

Discontinued operations is a component
of the Group’s business, the operations
and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of
business or geographic area of operations,
or is part of a single coordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business
or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view
to resale.

When an operation is classified as
discontinued, a single amount is presented
in profit or loss, which comprises the
post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operations and the post-tax gain or loss
recognised on the measurement to fair value
less costs of disposal, or on the disposal, of
the assets or disposal group constituting the
discontinued operations.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. The
Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured; when it
is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the entity; and when specific criteria
have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical
results, taking into consideration the type of
customers, the type of transactions and the
specifics of each arrangement.

Revenue from distribution of films is
recognised when video products or master
materials of films are delivered to customers
and the titles have passed.

Revenue from sub-licensing of film rights is
recognised upon delivery of master materials
of films to customers.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from sale of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised
when sale and purchase contracts become
unconditional.

Rental income from operating lease is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Revenue arising from money lending is
recognised on a time proportion basis taking
into account the principal outstanding and
the effective interest rate applicable.

Revenue from sales of beauty products,
jewelry products and precious stones is
recognised on the transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when the beauty
products, jewelry products and precious
stones are delivered to customers. Revenue
is shown net of returns, rebates and
discounts and after eliminating sales within
the Group.

Revenue from provision of therapy services
is recognised when service are provided.
Payments that are related to service not
yet rendered are shown as deposits from
customers and deferred revenue in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Dividend income from investments is
recognised when the shareholders’ rights to
receive payment have been established.

Interest income from financial asset is
recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the excepted life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BZE—F—~NF1+=-H=+—HIFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Impairment of tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible and intangible assets with finite
useful lives to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the CGU to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual CGUs, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of CGUs for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset
(or a CGU) is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to
the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The
amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset
is allocated pro rata to the other assets of
the unit. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

(i)

Impairment of tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (Continued)

When an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(or CGU) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or CGU) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of
the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on
taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from “(loss)/profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z _—FE—NF+ _-H=+—HIEFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset realised, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred
taxes for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when
investment properties are depreciable and
are held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than
through sale.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised
in profit or loss, except when they relate
to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including
buildings and leasehold land (classified as
finance leases) held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purpose are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position
at cost, less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction
for production, supply or administrative
purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include
professional fees and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended
use.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

)

(k)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write
off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis. The principal annual rates
are as follows:

3.33%
3.33%-5%
20%-33.3%
20%-33.3%
20%
15%-20%
10%-20%

Golf courses

Buildings

Leasehold improvements
Office equipment

Motor vehicles

Furniture and fixtures
Plant and machineries

Assets held under finance leases are
depreciated over their expected useful
lives on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable
certainty that ownership will be obtained
by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease
term and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment
is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued used of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation
(including property under construction for
such purposes). Investment properties are
measured initially at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at their fair values. Gains
and losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are included
in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives
that are acquired separately are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is recognised on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on
a prospective basis.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination and recognised separately from
goodwill are initially recognised at their
fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible
assets acquired in a business combination
with finite useful lives are reported at cost
less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, on the
same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on
disposal, or when no future economic
benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition
of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z _—FE—NF+ _-H=+—HIEFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Inventories

(n)

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Costs of inventories
sold are determined using the first-in-
first-out or weighted average method as
appropriate. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised
as cost of sales in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as cost of sales in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is offset against the cost of sales
in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the
following specified categories: “financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss” (“FVTPL”), “available-for-sale
(“AFS”) financial assets” and “loans and
receivables”. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments other
than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL, of which interest income is included
in net gains or losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z _—FE—NF+ _-H=+—HIEFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL
when the financial asset is (i) held for
trading, (ii) designated as at FVTPL, or
(iii) contingent consideration that may
be received by an acquirer as part of a
business combination to which HKFRS 3
applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for
trading if:

(i) it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling it in the near term; or

(i) on initial recognition it is part of
a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

(iiiy it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial
asset held for trading or contingent
consideration that may be received by an
acquirer as part of a business combination
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

(i) such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

(i) the financial asset forms part of a
group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the
Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

(iiiy it forms part of a contract containing
one or more embedded derivatives,
and HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract (asset or
liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair
value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included
in the “other gains and losses” line item.
Fair value is determined in the manner
described in note 51 to the consolidated
financial statements.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated as available-for-sale or
are not classified as loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments or financial
assets at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group
that are classified as AFS financial assets
and are traded in an active market are
measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the carrying
amount of AFS monetary financial assets
relating to interest income calculated using
the effective interest method and dividends
on AFS equity investments are recognised
in profit or loss. Other changes in the
carrying amount of AFS financial assets
are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the
heading of “available-for-sale financial
assets revaluation reserve”. When the
investment is disposed of or is determined
to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the available-for-
sale financial assets revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividends on AFS equity investments
are recognised in profit or loss when the
Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established.

AFS equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked
to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity investments are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses
at the end of each reporting period.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z _—FE—NF+ _-H=+—HIEFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables (including
loans receivables, trade receivables,
other receivables, amount due from an
associate, and cash and cash equivalents)
are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses.

Interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate, except for short-
term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL,
are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of each reporting period. Financial
assets are considered to be impaired when
there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the
investment have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is considered to be
objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective
evidence of impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial re-
organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.
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4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial assets,
such as trade receivables, assets are
assessed for impairment on a collective
basis even if they were not to be impaired
individually. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period of 180 days,
as well as observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the amount of the impairment loss
recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the
amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Such impairment loss
will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset
is reduced by the impairment loss directly
for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against the allowance account
to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z _—FE—NF+ _-H=+—HIEFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

When an AFS financial asset is considered
to be impaired, cumulative gains or
losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised
cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount
of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the investment at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments,
impairment losses previously recognised
in profit or loss are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to an impairment loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of
available-for-sale financial assets revaluation
reserve. In respect of AFS debt securities,
impairment losses are subsequently
reversed through profit or loss if an increase
in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted
directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s
own equity instruments.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade
payables, deposits received, accruals
and other payables, other borrowings,
promissory notes, amount due to an
associate and bank borrowings) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an
effective interest basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z _—FE—NF+ _-H=+—HIEFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
only when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset,
the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in
its entirety, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in
profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other
than in its entirety, the Group allocates the
previous carrying amount of the financial
asset between the part it continues to
recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts on the date of
the transfer. The difference between the
carrying amount allocated to the part that
is no longer recognised and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss
allocated to it that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is recognised
in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between
the part that continues to be recognised
and the part that is no longer recognised on
the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting financial instrument

Financial assets and liabilities are offset
and the net amount reported in the
consolidated statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or
the counterparty.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade receivables
is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if
longer), they are classified as current assets.
If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A
provision for impairment of trade receivables
is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of receivables. The amount
of the provision is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the effective interest rate. The
amount of the provision is recognised in
profit or loss.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z _—FE—NF+ _-H=+—HIEFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents include cash in
hand, deposits held at call with banks, other
short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less,
and bank overdrafts.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for
goods or services that have been acquired
in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less. If not, they are presented
as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently carried at
amortised cost; any difference between
the proceeds and the redemption value is
recognised in profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs
of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until
the draw-down occurs. To the extent there
is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down,
the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for
liquidity services and amortised over the
period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end
of the reporting period.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of
each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the entity’s functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. At the end of
each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise except for:

o exchange differences on foreign
currency borrowings relating to assets
under construction for future productive
use, which are included in the cost of
those assets when they are regarded
as an adjustment to interest costs on
those foreign currency borrowings;

° exchange differences on transactions
entered into in order to hedge certain
foreign currency risks; and

o exchange differences on monetary
items receivable from or payable to a
foreign operation for which settlement
is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net
investment in the foreign operation),
which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified
from equity to profit or loss on
repayment of the monetary items.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting consolidated
financial statements, the assets and
liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations
are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for
the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during that period, in which
case the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of “exchange
reserve” (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e.
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest
in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, or a
partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes
a foreign operation of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed through acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and translated
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases
whenever the terms of the leases transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are
recognised as assets of the Group at their
fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability
to the lessor is included in the consolidated
statement of financial position as obligations
under finance leases.

Lease payments are apportioned between
finance expenses and reduction of the lease
obligation so as to achieve a constant rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless they
are directly attributable to qualifying assets,
in which case they are capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s general policy
on borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are
recognised as expenses in the period in
which they are incurred.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

(u)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

Operating lease payments are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed. Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are
received to enter into operating leases, such
incentives are recognised as a liability. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits
from the leased asset are consumed.

Employee benefits
Bonuses

The Group recognises a liability for bonuses
when there is a contractual obligation and
the amount can be estimated reliably.

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme
is a defined contribution scheme, the assets
of which are held in separate trustee-
administered funds.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Retirement benefit obligations (Continued)

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to
make contributions to the scheme at 5%
of the employees’ relevant income, subject
to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000. The Group’s contributions to the
MPF Scheme are expensed as incurred. 5%
of relevant income vests immediately upon
the completion of service in the relevant
service period, while the remaining portion
vests in accordance with the MPF Scheme’s
vesting scales. Where employees leave the
MPF Scheme prior to the full vesting of the
employer’s contributions, the amount of
forfeited contributions is used to reduce the
contributions payable by the Group.

Share-based compensation

The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the
share options and restricted share awards is
recognised as an expense in profit or loss.

The total amount to be expensed over the
vesting period is determined with reference
to the fair value of the share options and
restricted share awards granted. At the
end of each reporting period, the Company
revises its estimates of the number of
share options that are expected to become
exercisable and the number of restricted
share awards that become vested. It
recognises the impact of the revision of
original estimates, if any, in profit or loss,
and a corresponding adjustment to equity
in the consolidated statement of financial
position will be made over the remaining
vesting periods.

The proceeds received, net of any directly
attributable transaction costs, are credited
to share capital and share premium accounts
when the share options are exercised and
when the restricted share awards are vested.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

(w)

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for
goods or services with parties other than
employees are measured at the fair values of
the goods or services received, unless that
fair value cannot be reliably measured, in
which case the goods or services received
are measured at the fair value of the share
options granted. The fair value of the goods
and services received is recognised as
expenses with a corresponding increase in
equity (equity-settled share-based payment
reserve), when the Group obtains the goods
or when the counterparties render services,
unless the goods or services qualify for
recognition as assets.

Contingent liabilities and contingent
assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation
that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also
be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it
is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably. A
contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements. When a change in
the probability of an outflow occurs so
that outflow is probable, they will then be
recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that
arises from past events and whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control
of the Group. A contingent asset is not
recognised but is disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow
is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(x) Related party transactions

A party is considered to be related to the

Group if:

(i) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group
if that person:

(i) An e

has control or joint control over
the Group; or

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the
Group’s parent.

ntity is related to the Group if any

of the following conditions applies:

(1)

the entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others); or

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member); or

both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party; or

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity; or

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the group or
an entity related to the Group; or

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in
(i); or

a person identified in (i)(1) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity);
or

the entity, or any member of
a group of which it is a part,
provides key management
personnel services to the Group or
to the Group’s parent.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

(v)

Related party transactions (Continued)

A related party transaction is a transfer of
resources, services or obligations between
the Group and a related party, regardless of
whether a price is charged.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the
Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that the Group will be required
to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the
best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account
the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured
using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where
the effect of the time value of money is
material).

When some or all of the economic benefits
required to settle a provision are expected
to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.
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For.the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZLE—NF+ A =+—HILFEZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(z) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts
of each segment item reported in the
consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments
are not aggregated for financial reporting
purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers,
the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
reporting period are discussed below.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of intangible assets

The Group performs annual tests on
whether there has been impairment of
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 4(h) to the consolidated
financial statements. The recoverable
amounts of intangible assets are determined
based on value in use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates
and assumptions made by management on
the future operation of the business, pre-
tax discount rates, and other assumptions
underlying the value in use calculations.

Impairment of goodwill

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment at the
end of each reporting period or whenever
events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the
CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount of the CGU is
the greater of the fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. An estimation
of the value in use of the CGU involves
estimating the future cash flows expected to
arise from its continuing use and applying
the appropriate discount rate that reflects
current market assessment of the time value
of money and the risk specific to the CGU.

Estimate of fair value of investment
properties

Investment properties are stated at fair
value based on the market values, being
the estimated amount for which properties
could be exchanged on the date of valuation
between a willing buyer and a willing
seller in an arm’s length transaction or the
valuation performed by an independent
valuer. In determining the fair value, the
valuer has based on method of valuation
which involves certain estimates and
assumptions. In relying on the valuation
report, the management has exercised
their judgements and is satisfied that the
method of valuation is reflective of the
current market conditions. Should there be
any changes in assumptions due to change
of market conditions, the fair value of the
investment properties will be adjusted
accordingly.
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Assessment of economic useful lives of
fixed assets and intangible assets other
than goodwill

Fixed assets and intangible assets with
finite useful lives other than goodwill
are depreciated or amortised over their
economic useful lives. The assessment
of estimated useful lives is a matter of
judgement based on the experience of the
Group, taking into account factors such as
technological progress, changes in market
demand, expected usage and physical
wear and tear. Useful lives are periodically
reviewed for continued appropriateness.
Due to long lives of assets, changes to the
estimates used can result in variations in
their carrying amounts.

Trade receivables and loans receivables

The aging analysis of trade receivables
and loans receivables are reviewed on
a regular basis to ensure that the trade
receivables and loans receivables balances
are collectible and follow up actions are
promptly carried out if the agreed credit
periods or terms of loans have been
exceeded. However, from time to time, the
Group may experience delays in collection.
Where recoverability of trade receivables
and loans receivables balances is called into
doubts, specific provisions for impairments
are made based on credit status of the
customers, the aging analysis of the trade
receivables and loans receivables balances
and write-off history. Certain receivables
may be initially identified as collectible,
yet subsequently become uncollectible
and result in a subsequent write-off of the
related receivables to profit or loss. Changes
in the collectability of trade receivables
and loans receivables for which provisions
are not made could affect the results of
operations.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes
in numerous jurisdictions. Significant
judgement is required in determining the
worldwide provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and variable selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical
experience of selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a
result of changes in customer taste and
competitor actions in response to severe
industry cycle. The directors of the Company
reassess the estimations at the end of
reporting period.

Fair value of contingent consideration
arising from business combination

Contingent consideration arising from
business combination is valued using a
discounted cash flow model, based on the
estimated compensation received by the
Group, discounted using the applicable
prevailing market rate. The estimation of the
compensation is based on the estimated
profits of the acquiree.
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OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group’s operating segments have been
determined based on the information reported
to the Chairman of the board of directors, being
chief operating decision maker, that are used for
performance assessment and to make strategic
decisions. The Group’s operating businesses are
structured and managed separately according to
the nature of their operations and the products
and services they provide. Each of the Group’s
operating segments represents a strategic
business unit that offers products and services
which are subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of other operating segments.
The Group currently has five operating segments:

Distribution of films and
sub-licensing of film
rights

(a) Distribution

(b) Property Leasing of rental
investment properties

(c) Sale of financial Sale of financial assets
assets

(d) Money lending Money lending

(e) Sale of jewelry  Design and sale of jewelry
products and products, and sale of
precious stones precious stones

An operating segment regarding the sale of
beauty products and provision of therapy
services was discontinued on 6 November 2015.
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OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment

revenue,

results, assets,

liabilities and other

selected financial information for the years

O DDD

(.

6! IIWM/-\ %B (I’E)

= /] i=]
BE-ZE—RER=ZE-—HE+=H
= — JJ:$J* ZIK’EIE%E%%"“FJ
’JJ\ZEJ_z._iﬁ oEkE - XEC-EE A

ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 by operating BEREMEEUHEERZ2MUOT :
segments are as follows:
Segment revenue and results PEWEREE
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE-_Z—RE+-A=+—HLEFE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
BAL
b5 R E ] HEE3
Sale of Sale of
jewelry beauty
products products and
Sale of and provision of
Property financial Money precious therapy
Distribution ~ investment assets lending stones Sub-total services  Consolidated
#E
#E 2RER
#E KEER RE#
B NERE SREE #E k&R gt EBRE &
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A7 A7 iz i 2 iz iz A
Segment revenue Al - 45,174 (22,337) 49,154 89,054 161,042 - 161,042
Segment (loss)/profit F4(E8) /4R 36) 6430 (147,180) 48177 2,468 (90,138) - (90,138)
Interest income on bank deposits ROGEFZHERA 329 - 329
Unallocated corporate income FABEEUA 8 - 8
Unallocated corporate expenses FABLERR (54,335) - (54,335)
Cumulative gain reclassified from equity to profitor ~ RALBITHEESRHEES
loss upon derecognition of available-for-sale HERENIRERERL
financial assets Zitlhs 22,500 - 22,500
Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary RUFLE-BHEA T2 0E 8 - 8
Impairment loss recognised in respect of amount due BN -EREATZEL
from an associate BESE (400) - (400)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of avallable- BRI AL ELHEERE
for-sale financial assets reclassified from equity FERERENEZ
to profit or loss Bk (57,750) - (57,750)
Loss on deemed disposal of an associate RELE-ERENAZEE (21,500) - (21,500)
Finance costs BEER (9,529) - (9,529)
Share of results of associates RUEBENTXE - - -
Loss before taxation hHAER (210,807) - (210,807)
Income tax credit fiefis 2,903 - 2,903
Loss for the year REEEE (207,904) - (207,904)
KERBRERRAT

—E-NEER

%I Statements C)D
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For.the year ended 31 December 2016 BIZ-F

6.

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. B4
Segment revenue and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
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BE-_Z-RAFt-RA=+-HLEE

Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
BAL
RELGERH HEES
Sale of Sale of
jewelry beauty
products products and
Sale of and provision of
Property financial Money precious therapy
Distribution ~ investment assets lending stones Sub-total services  Consolidated
#E
#E Z0ER
#E KEER Rt
A IES SREE &5 k&R gt B 48
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A1 iz &L A A7 AT & A1
Segment revenue Pl 6 - 9,099 (14,175) 72,529 17,321 184,780 37,021 221,801
Segment (loss)/profit A58 /B 68 (eaT)  (18644) 71,882 14,838 (0353 @143 (61787)
Interest income on bank deposits RFHZAZUA 1,148 28 1,386
Unallocated corporate income FABEEHRA 506 1 507
Unallocated corporate expenses FARLEHR (73,368) (129) (73,497)
Cumulative gain reclassified from equity to profitor WAL B ESREEHR
loss upon derecognition of available-for-sale HERENIBERERL
financial assets it 74,378 - 74,378
Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary RIEHE-F MTE/I}'JZ% 245,072 = 245,072
Impairment loss recognised in respect of amount due ~ CRIEN-BELATHEZ
from an associate rﬁﬁﬁi},ﬁ (1,431) = (1,431)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of available- BRI ESHEEHE
for-sale financial assets reclassified from equity FEHERENIER
to profit or loss Bk (73,500) - (73,500)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment LENE  BERRGEZEE ) (136) (137)
Write-down of inventories HAEE - 6] &)
Finance costs BEER (1,609) (854) @, 463)
Share of results of associates ErEEAREE - -
Profit/loss) before taxation REIRR/ (BB 130,842 (22,317) 108525
Income tax expense FrEhiE% (8,259) (671) (8924)
Profit/loss) for the year REEEH/ (FR) 122,589 (22,988) 99,601
Segment revenue reported above represents YRR AR IEHE AT EE

revenue generated from external customers.

ZWss o B F R I

There were no inter-segment sales in the both

years.

Segment results represent (loss incurred)/profit
earned by each segment without allocation
of central administrative expenses including
directors’ emoluments, share of results of
investment and other income, certain
other gains and losses, finance costs and income
tax credit/(expense). This is the measure reported

associates,

Zim A o MEI S

RARRzEME=EHE -

to the chief operating decision maker for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment

of segment performance.
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6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Segment assets and lia

At 31 December 2016

bilities

6. KeEoikm)

THEERAE

CO000

i | Statements
SMEHRERME

ended 31 December 2016 BE—FE—NF+=-HA=1+—HIFE

R=B-A"E+=A=+—8H

Discontinued

Continuing operations operations

BA&L

BEREER fesy

Sale of

Sale of beauty

jewelry products and

Sale of products provision of

Property financial Money  and precious therapy
Distribution ~ investment assets lending stones Sub-total services  Consolidated

#E

#e £3ER

#E HEER Rt
& LES SHEE B8 RER Uy HERH A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr FE FEL FEr FEL 223 78T FEr

Segment assets AHEE
~ Hong Kong -&# 269 1,064 723,789 616,139 134,711 1,475,972 - 1475972
— The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC’) - REARAAE (%E)) - 2,364,162 - - - 2,364,162 - 2,364,162
269 2,365,226 723,789 616,139 134,711 3,840,134 - 3,840,134
Unallocated corporate assets FAWLEER 401,404
Consolidated total assets GREEHE 4,241,538
Segment liabilites AHER

— Hong Kong -4 ] (1,198) (12,138) (1,220 (30,719) (54,276) - (54,276)
— The PRC - %6 - (833,443) - - - (833,443) - (833,443)
M) (B464) (12,138) (1,220) @oT19  (88719) - (667,719)
Unallocated corporate liabiities FARLREE (104,680)
Consolidated total liabilties GoBREE (992,3%9)
KIERBIREBRAR

—ERFFR
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6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. REDIE)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PWEEREEB(E)
At 31 December 2015 HR-B—FHE+=-A=+—H
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
BAL
REEERE aExy
Sale of
Sale of beauty
Jewelry products and
Sale of products provision of
Property financial Money  and precious therapy
Distribution investment assets lending stones Sub-total services  Consolidated
#E
#E £3ERR
#E HEER RitgR
BT HERE tREE & k&R it B% &a

HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
7Ei -4 7T T FET 4 7T 1241

Segment assets A3EE
— Hong Kong - &% 264 1,265 797,367 594,426 134,498 1,527,820 - 1,627,820
- The PRC - e - 2,515,173 - - - 2,515,173 - 2,515,173
264 2,516,438 797,367 504,426 134,498 4,042,993 - 4,042,993
Unallocated corporate assets KABLEEE 387,853
Consolidated total assets BREREE 4,430,846
Segment liabilities AR
— Hong Kong - &8 (20) (321) (12,126) (6,424) 41,568) (60,465) - (60,465)
—The PRC - 4F - ean) - - - (600311) - 03N
R (008 (12,12 (6424 (58 (960776 N N
Unallocated corporate liabiiies RABGEEE (117,765)
Consolidated total liabiities LABEAE (1,078541)

148 ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. K&

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PHEEREEB(E

For the purposes of monitoring segment BERSMERBELEAILBESBEER :

performance and allocating resources between
segments:

— all assets are allocated to operating
segments other than interests in associates,
amount due from an associate, certain
deposits, prepayments, and cash and cash
equivalents that are not attributable to
individual segments. Assets used jointly by
individual segments are allocated on the
basis of the revenues earned by individual
segments; and

— all liabilities are allocated to operating
segments other than amount due to an
associate, current tax payables, certain
accruals, other payables and receipts
in advance that are not attributable to
individual segments. Liabilities for which
segments are jointly liable are allocated in
proportion to segment assets.

BRABE QR 2R - B — BB
ERNARE-HTEE AR
B URRERBEEEY T
BRIDERSN - FRFEEEGSEEL
080 BRI D MHLBER ZEE
BB 2 B RE oz W st o B 5 R

BRIEMN —BBEQXTFTIR - BEE
HBIE - ETRAER  HtES
FRIE K T WK IR A A @ B 2 &
S FBEREYIEELEEDE -
THMARELECBERSMBEELL
Pl B o
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6.

year end

F-AFF A=A —ALFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. REQI(&E)
Other segment information HibpEHER
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE-_E—XE+=-A=+—HLFE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
BRL
RELEER fasn
Sale of
Sale of beauty
jewelry products and
Sale of products provision of
Property financial Money  and precious therapy
Distribution ~ investment assets lending stones Sub-total services  Consolidated
#e
#e £3ER
HE KRER Rt
B nERE SHEE ] RER %y HERE ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FEr FEL 78T FEr FEL FEL 78T FEr
Amounts included in the measure of segment R (ER) /4R
(loss)/profit and segment assets AHEERRALLE
Additions to property, plant and equipment RENE  BERRE - 53,683 - - 2 53,705 - 53,705
Amortisation of intangible assets EYEEEY - (20,647) - - - (20,647) - (20,647)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 0% RERREZNE - (14,453) - - (133) (14,586) - (14,586)
Dividend income REBA - - 1,347 - - 1,347 - 1,347
Gain arising on change in fair value of financial assets at ~ EZRBEAT ERER
fair value through profit or loss upon recognition of DR ABRRZ EHER
interests in associates AHERSELE 2 WG - - 17,367 - - 17,367 - 17,37
(Gain arising on change in fair value of investment RENELTESBEL NG
properties - 3,733 - - - 3,733 - 3,733
Loss arising on change i far value of financial assets at ~ RATEABEZZERHER
fair value through profit or loss AYEEEBEEZBE - - (141,649) - - (141,649) - (141,649)

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Other segment information (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015

ODDO% y. ended 31 December 2016 B Z==
000
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R (&)

Hittn EER (F)
BE_Z-AFt-A=t—-HLFE

Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
BAL
Sale of
Sale of beauty
Jewelry products and
Sale of products provision of
Property financial Money  and precious therapy
Distribution investment assets lending stones Sub-total services  Consolidated
#e
#E 23ER
HeE KEER it
1) NERE SHEE &8 RER i) EERE 58
HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HK8'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK8'000
7Er 7T 7En Fén 7Er 7T 3 7ér
Amounts included in the measure of segment HEAB(ER) AR A PEE
(loss)/profit and segment assets fiAzeE
Additions to property, plant and equipment RENE  BERRE - 173 - - 1 7,884 233 10216
Amortisation of intangible assets EYEEEY - (5,114) - - - (5,114) = (5,114)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 0% RERREZNE - (3,747) - - (122) (3,869) (3,869) (7,738)
Dividend income LEUN - - 3,111 - - 3,11 - 3,111
(Gain arising on change in fai value of investment RENEATESDEY
properties a3 - 604 - - - 604 - 604
Impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill BEIEEZHERE - (48492) - - - (48492) - (48492)
Loss arising on change in fair value of financial assets at ~ FATE ABERZEHEE
falr value through profit or loss NYEEBEEZEE - - (66,286) = - (66,286) - (66,266
KERBRERRAT

—E-NEER
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For.the year ended 31 December 2016 BZ-E—ANFL_A=+—HIULFE

6.
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H_J

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. REQI(&E)
Geographical information i & & K
The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and AEBETERFTERTELE - XKH
the PRC. The Group’s revenue from external RitBEE S 2 REHNEFZWERE
customers and information about its non-current BEIRBEE2ERFEINT :
assets by geographical location are detailed
below:
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
Revenue from Revenue from Continuing operations Discontinued operations
external customers external customers Non-current assets* Non-current assets*
BEGexE BRLEEEH FREERR BALEEEE
RHARFARIUE eI P i1 by i-(-
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-3E ZE-RE ZE-NE ZE-RfF  ZE-7E ZE-1F CB-RF ZB-1F
HKS000 — HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000
Tér A1 -2 AT -2 74T -2 -2
Australia Ly 1979 509 - - - - - -
Europe B 9,557 10219 - - - - - -
Hong Kong B 80,829 118,692 - 37,021 504,582 725,530 - -
The Middle East hR 2,701 5,706 - - - - - -
The PRC hE 45,11 9,099 - - 217600 2,350,469 - -
The United States of America #8278 0805 455 - - - - - -
161,042 184,780 - droet 212212 3,075,099 - -
* Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets. * AR EELBIEELERIEESE -

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding
years contributing over 10% of the total revenue
of the Group are as follows:

FREIEEFZEHR

RBBAFEOASEEBUWE TR 10% 2
L2RBEFZWHEMT ¢

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—BLHFE

2016 2015
ZE-RF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Customer 1! zZF 11 31,986 21,219
Customer 22 %S 02 21,000 N/ATEMA?®
U Revenue from sale of jewelry products and precious 1 REHEEKEERLREA 2K
stones
2 Revenue from property investment 2 REWMERE 2 WS
8 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 8 R R R E AR EE AR E TR 10% L

10% of the total revenue of the Group

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2016
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For the year ended
31 December

BE+T-A=+t—BHLHFE

2016 2015
—E—-RE —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Continuing operations HEREER
Sale of financial assets at fair value HERAFEFABRRZ
through profit or loss, net TREE  FHE (22,337) (14,175)
Interest income on loans ERFE WA 49,154 72,529
Rental income HEWA 45,171 9,099
Sale of jewelry products and precious $HEKEBEERREL
stones 89,054 117,327
161,042 184,780
Revenue from sale of financial assets at fair value HERAFESTAERRZEREEY
through profit or loss is recorded on a net basis, WEH IR FEEEESH » BT
details of which are as follows:
For the year ended
31 December
BE+tZ-HA=1+—HLEE
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Proceeds from sale of financial assets $HERAFET ABR K
at fair value through profit or loss ETRMEEZBRIE 191,682 622,551
Carrying amounts of financial assets at BEZATESABRES
fair value through profit or loss sold TREEZREES MR
plus transaction costs ZEHR (214,019) (636,726)
(22,337) (14,175)

KIEREE IR EGRAA
ZEREFER
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8. INVESTMENT AND OTHER INCOME 8.
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—ANEFTZA=+—HUEFE

RERHEAMEA

For the year ended
31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLFE

2016 2015
ZEB-RF —E-HF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Continuing operations FEREEK
Dividend income g E WA 1,347 3,111
Interest income on bank deposits RITERZFEWA 329 1,148
Sundry income FETEUA 8 506
1,684 4,765
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. HihmREE
For the year ended
31 December
BZE+=-A=1+—HLEE
2016 2015
ZE-REF —E-0F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FBT
Continuing operations FELEEK
Cumulative gain reclassified from RELBRIATHEESRME
equity to profit or loss upon EAmEREN S BEE
derecognition of available-for-sale mzk 2 BT E
financial assets 22,500 74,378
Gain arising on change in fair value of ~HERNBHE N E) 2 BB IR
financial assets at fair value through "?Tﬁ‘t‘)&? mRZEH
profit or loss upon recognition of EEATEEHEEZ
interests in associates Y &= 17,367 —
Gain arising on change in fair value of REVEAFEEBELEZ
investment properties g 3,733 604
Gain on deemed disposal of a RIEHE—BHRBARZ
subsidiary Y 5 8 245,072
Impairment loss recognised in respect EMEREUN —BEEE QTN
of amount due from an associate B2 REEE (400) (1,431)
Impairment loss recognised in respect CERAAHHESRHEER
of available-for-sale financial assets EFEERERENIEZE
reclassified from equity to profit or BExK
loss (57,750) (73,500)
Impairment loss recognised in respect CEREEZBERE
of goodwill - (48,492)
Loss arising on change in fair value of ZRAFEABZRZER
financial assets at fair value through BEEAVEEDEEZ
profit or loss B8 (141,649) (66,286)
Loss on deemed disposal of an RIEHE—BBE AT Z
associate R (21,500) -
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEVE BMERSZEZ
and equipment k518 - (1)
(177,691) 130,344

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2016
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10. BMEEH

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—BLHFE

2016 2015
—E—-RE —E-—FE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Continuing operations FEREER
Interest on bank borrowings RITERZFE 9,529 1,609

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S EMOLUMENTS

The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid or
payable to the directors and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company during the year was
HK$43,358,000 (2015: HK$39,560,000), which
HK$43,358,000 was included in “administrative
expenses” (2015: of which HK$39,457,000 was
included in “administrative expenses” under
continuing operations and HK$103,000 was
included in “administrative expenses” under
discontinued operations). The emoluments of
each director and the Chief Executive Officer for
the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules
and the Hong Kong Company Ordinance are as
follows:

1. EERTRARZHE

fﬁWEH‘EFEHZIKQT%%)}ﬁE&M
H 2 M £ 4 % 543,358,000 (=
g—ﬁi 39560000,%75) H
43,358,000 Tt A[TTHE X (=&
— R 39,457,000 B T A B ERKL
EBTITHE X 1% 103, ooo;%y‘c*-r)k
ERIEEEEETITHEX ] - BF
E-NER-E-HRE+=ZA=1+— EI
LEFEE SEERTHAB ZHFHNRE
BRALEHRAREBARAMKAMKBNT -

\o

Salaries, Contributions to Equity-settled
allowances and retirement share-based
Fees benefits in kind Discretionary bonuses benefit schemes payment expenses Total
Name of director EL2] it B4 BURRAEA Ui BAEREER  REEERARIRR it
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 216 2015 2016 2015
“5-7F BRI C3-AF CR-RF C3-AF CR-RF S8 CR-IF C3-8f CR-IF C3-F CE-If
HKS'000  HKS000 ~ HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000
R TR TR FE B fEn TR TR B FE B TE
Executive directors #frEe
Mr. Lei Hong Wai,the Chief HERS
Executive Officer (fris) - = 8,250 6,600 10,000 8,000 18 18 - 1,575 18,208 16,193
Mr. Cheung Kok Wai Efton FEBLE - = 8,250 6,600 10,000 8,000 18 18 - 1,575 18,208 16,193
Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy Rzt - = 1,766 1474 3,500 3,000 18 18 - 1246 5,204 5738
Mr. Cheung Kok Fan L 120 120 960 900 80 3 18 18 - - 1,178 1,076
Independent non-executive BudnEs
directors
Mr. Wan Shing Chi FHERE 120 120 - - - - - - - - 120 120
Mr. Ng Heung Yan RECRE 120 120 - - - - - - - - 120 120
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen BERGE 10 120 - - - - - - - - 120 120
Total emoluments Hesn 480 480 19,226 15574 23580 19,038 I n - 4306 4335 39560
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The executive directors’ and the Chief Executive
Officer’s emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company
and the Group. The independent non-executive
director’s emoluments shown above were mainly
for their services as directors of the Company.

Certain executive directors and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company are entitled to
bonus payments which are determined based on
their duties and responsibilities in the Group.

The executive directors and the Chief Executive
Officer are regarded as senior management of the
Group. Their emoluments are within the following
bands:

1. EERTRAR ZME (@)

LERRZBTESRITRES 2ME
TEAREREERRARKIEHEH
RUBRE2ME LRBIFFHTES
WEETEZERAREFERETQTAESTREMAR
Bz -

RABETHTESRITHAREEE
BIRAL DREFENRAEE ZBBER
BEEEE -

HITESRITHARREAEE 25 R
EEBAE - HMENFUTEE :

Number of individuals
AE
2016
—E-RE

2015
—ZE-HEF

HK$0 - HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 - HK$3,000,000
Over HK$3,000,000

T3 0% 1,000,00038 7T _ _
1,000,001 }#3T % 3,000,000 & T 1 1
3,000,000 & 7T 5L |

During the year ended 31 December 2016, none
of the director was granted share options, in
respect of their services to the Group under the
share option scheme of the Company. During the
year ended 31 December 2015, certain of the
directors were granted share options, in respect
of their services to the Group under the share
option scheme of the Company. Details of the
share option scheme are set out in note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements.

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015, no emoluments have been paid by the
Group to any of the directors and the Chief
Executive Officer as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group as compensation for
loss of office. None of the directors and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments in the year
ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

No transaction, arrangement and contract of
significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company or any subsidiaries of the
Company was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2016
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12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

Of the five individuals with the highest
emoluments in the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016, four (2015: three) were directors
of the Company whose emoluments are included
in the disclosures in note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements. The emoluments of the
remaining one (2015: two) individuals were as
follows:

12. B BREHEES

B
o
[
A
|
>F
_|_
N
I
Il
_|_

=X =

§ 111 Tt

o) o #
Hu
> ik IO

Ea
mE(=F—AF:
B REZHE
HEE - B F—B(=
Zﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬂ'

E - RAEERR
=)

E'i o
| 2
\4
S
%}g
=
ﬁlr

‘W
[
H
o
3
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For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—BLHFE

2016 2015
—E—XRE —E-FHEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FiET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in e ERERBEYREF
kind 813 1,347
Discretionary bonuses EBTEAL 274 3,000
Contributions to retirement benefits EIRGEF T EIHER
scheme 18 36
Equity-settled share-based payment DR EEE 2 R0
expenses 53 - 2,564
1,105 6,947

The number of the highest paid employees who
are not the directors of the Company whose
emoluments fell within the following bands is as
follows:

MENFUTHEZRS
EEEHEWMT :

HEAQNAE

Number of employees

BEAY

2016 2015

—E-RE —E-HF

HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 /& 7t 2 1,500,000 /& T 1 —

HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 /& 7t £ 2,000,000 /& 7T - —

HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7t £ 2,500,000 /& 7T - —

HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T Z 3,000,000 & 7T - -

HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 & T £ 3,500,000 & T - 1

Over HK$3,500,000 3,500,000 TA £ - 1
During the year ended 31 December 2016, BE-_ZE—R"E+ZA=1+—HLHE
no share options was granted in respect of E - MEREARATBERESTE M@K
employee services to the Group under share CERMz2EEREELBERE - B2
option scheme of the Company. During the year —E-AF+ZBA=+—HLEEFEE &
ended 31 December 2015, certain non-director FTHEERITHRAEARSFHFME
and non-chief executive highest paid employees E EREADABRETEROARE
were granted share options, in respect of their EiREREMERBRE - BRESTE

services to the Group under the share option HIBERES

scheme of the Company. Details of the share
option scheme are set out in the note 45 to the

consolidated financial statements.

B RERIRMIFE 45 ©
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13. INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE)

13. Fi8BiE % (FA%)

For the year ended
31 December

BE+T-A=+t—BHLHFE

2016 2015
ZE-RF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Continuing operations HEREER
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBNER
— Current tax — ZREAFRIE (1,477) (8,832)
— Over provision in prior years — BAFEBRZEE 20 21
(1,457) (8,811)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax RS
— Current tax — ZNHERFEIE (1,699) (1,012)
Deferred taxation credit (note 40) IRIERRIEIK R (f1aE 40) 6,059 1,570
2,903 (8,253)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of
the estimated assessable profits for both years.
The subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC are
subject to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax at
25% for both years. The subsidiary incorporated
in Dubai Multi Commodities Centre of United
Arab Emirates enjoys a 50-year tax holiday
for corporate income tax from the date of
incorporation.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2016
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13. INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE)
(Continued)

The income tax credit/(expense) for the year can
be reconciled to the (loss)/profit before taxation
from continuing operations per consolidated
statement of profit or loss as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HFE—FE—ANF+=-HA=+—HIFE

13. IBHESR (BX) (&

AEEMBBESE (X)) BFESER
RAZKFEREXB 2KRBA(EE),
EAEIRAT

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—BLHFE

2016 2015
S L
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Continuing operations BEREEK
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT(BE), TR (210,807) 130,842
Taxation at domestic income tax rate  LAE b TS R5HH (34,983) 17,435
Taxation effect of: BB E:
Income not taxable for tax purpose Biis L BARBIWKA (9,835) (76,566)
Expenses not deductible for tax BB LEARATMNBAX
purpose 50,287 66,933
Estimated tax losses not recognised RERATTRIEESE 2,087 2,494
Utilisation of tax losses previously B LRI R ERBIIEE B
not recognised (4,380) (452)
Over provision in prior years BIFEBZRE (20) (21)
Deferred taxation credit EEBIEIR R (6,059) (1,570)
Income tax (credit)/expense Fre®ti (%) Bx (2,903) 8,253
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14. (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM 14. REFEREERZ2EAFE(BR)
ONTINUING OPERATIONS 7R
(Loss)/profit for the year from continuing AEEREBELCEER 2 (FB) &
operations has been arrived at after charging/ FIBHME GtA)UTREEZEY :
(crediting):
For the year ended
31 December
BE+T-A=1t—HLEE
2016 2015
—E—REF —Z2—EHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Continuing operations FEREER
Amortisation of intangible assets mEEEHE 20,647 5,114
Auditors’ remuneration: ZEMME
— audit services — ZERE 990 860
— non-audit services — FRERE 636 2,698
1,626 3,558
Cost of inventories sold EHEREE 24 73,542 92,798
Depreciation of property, plant and M- BMEREZEZITE
equipment 14,586 3,869
Net foreign exchange loss PE &5 18 558 131 145
Operating lease rentals in respect of FHEYE o KEHEHS
rental premises 2,072 1,955
Operating lease rentals in respect of K& LCLHEHRS
operating rights 16,622 4,318
Less: operating lease rentals B BEERMLEEHERS
capitalised (10,996) (2,856)
5,626 1,462
Equity-settled share-based payment BB RIS U EEE 2 ]
expenses in respect of consultancy PR
services - 5,400
Staff costs (including directors’ EIRA(BRFEESHE) !
emoluments):
— salaries, allowances and benefits — Fe  EHEREVER
in kind 30,158 23,214
— discretionary bonuses = E’JTE? 4 25,053 23,585
— contributions to retirement BRREFGT B
benefits scheme 464 360
— equity-settled share-based — UREEE 2RO R
payment expenses B - 12,400
55,675 59,559
Gross rental income from investment REREVYEREEES
properties and operating rights R A (45,171) (9,099)
Less: direct operating expenses B FREEESBAZE
incurred for investment EYERREEEE
properties and operating rights ZHEERERY
that generated rental income
during the year 19,890 2,950
Less: direct operating expenses B ERAWEEEHESWA
incurred for investment ZREYERKERE
properties and operating rights ECHEBEKERX
that did not generated rental
income during the year 194 45
(25,087) (6,104)

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 6 November 2015, SkyNet Group Limited
(“SkyNet”, stock code: 8176), a then 70.18%
owned subsidiary of the Company, allotted and
issued 345,000,000 new ordinary shares and
30,000,000 new convertible preferred shares
to six subscribers. As a result, the Group’s
shareholding interests in SkyNet was diluted from
70.18% to 12.51% and SkyNet has ceased to be
a subsidiary of the Company. SkyNet carried out
all of the Group’s sale of beauty products and
provision of therapy services operations.

The loss for the year ended 31 December 2015
from the discontinued sale of beauty products
and provision of therapy services is set out
below:

15. ERILREXK

/

7

%

g— F+—HBAH' —BXK
EREART0.18% 2K B A 7 fin 2=
_FLH“ lﬁﬁﬁﬁi(rﬂﬁfﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁjﬁ
X SE : 8176) [0 /N B R BB A B 2
2% 17345,000,000 B& 37 % BREOR
30,000,000 B% %7 7] 2 B2 £ AR  H I
ﬁ’ilw}nﬁ B2 IR 70.18%
BWEZ1251%  MMEEBEABAERLD
AZMBAT - NEBFREHEEZRE
MR IRHEEREERIHME GBE
1T

n/
H}II

E%iﬁé%%@énu&hfn&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%#
BHZE —hEF+ZA=+T—HLEE
ZE‘E?E%E?’JZZDT

For the year ended
31 December

2015
BE-Z-4F
+=-B=+—H
IEFE
HK$’000
FHET
Loss on sale of beauty products and HEXRERRIEMER
provision of therapy services operations for  RIEEH 2 AEEEE
the year (22,988)
Gain on deemed disposal of sale of beauty REHEHEEZTERR
products and provision of therapy services 12L& IR RIEEE
operations (note 9) 2 W as (M 9) 245,072
222,084
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15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)
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15. BRI E XK (&)

The results of the discontinued operations for the MNBEFE  CRUEKEER CEED
prior year are as follows: T :
For the year ended
31 December
2015
%:I:— =< ﬁﬂf
+=—BA=+—H
IEFE
HK$°000
FET
Revenue Y 5 37,021
Cost of sales SHERAK (26,694)
Gross profit EF 10,327
Investment and other income REREMKA 239
Other gains and losses Hitl = R ESE (139)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX (2,004)
Administrative expenses THEAX (29,886)
Loss from operations REEHE (21,463)
Finance costs RIEE A (854)
Loss before taxation RR%L AT 18 (22,317)
Income tax expense FriSFip X (671)
Loss for the year from discontinued RECKRIEREEK
operations rEEEE (22,988)
The cash flows of the discontinued operations for NBEAEE CRIEKEEE2RER
the prior year are as follows: W :

For the year ended
31 December
2015
BE-—ZT—8fF
+=ZA=+—H
LFE

HK$°000

FHET

Net cash inflow from operating activities
Net cash inflow from investing activities
Net cash outflow from financing activities

FEE— Ei’ﬁﬁ%mu)\;?%ﬁ
?Xﬁ/%@]ﬁ;%/ﬁ)\/?gg
REEERS ML T

130,409
5,312
(342)

Net cash inflow

HERANEE 135,379

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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T
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15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 15. BERIEREEK (&)
Loss for the year ended 31 December 2015 from ERIIREEBRBZE_ZE—HF+=
discontinued operations had been arrived at after A=+—BLEFEEZEBEEDIHKRTIE
charging: HEEH :

For the year ended
31 December

2015
BE-ZT-—-h1#F
+=—RA=+—H
IHFE
HK$’000
FET
Auditors’ remuneration ZE AN & 29
Cost of inventories sold 2HEHEFEHAR 5,192
Depreciation of property, plant and M BERZBZITE
equipment 3,869
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BERZEZ
equipment 518 136
Write-down of inventories WOR1E & 3
16. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 16. ER(FE) &R
From continuing and discontinued operations REFERLREROCRIEREEER
The calculation of basic and diluted (loss)/ KANTHEEAELRBEFELERDERK
earnings per share from continuing and HREEER CBREARBE(EER)
discontinued operations attributable to the BRTIIEBEUTEETE :
owners of the Company is based on the following
data:

For the year ended
31 December
BEt+t-A=1+—HLEE

2016 2015
ZEB-RF —Z-h%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(Loss)/earnings for the purpose of RETEGRELXREE
basic and diluted (loss)/earnings (Ei15) B FBFAT 2
per share (E1E)  &F
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to A2 B#EHE AL AREE
owners of the Company (B518) & Al (207,902) 105,256
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For.the year ended 31 December 2016 Eé’_t-— =2
16. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
(Continued)

From continuing and discontinued operations
(Continued)

—AFF A+ ALEE

16. BR(E1R) " BF (&)

REFERERCRIEREXRK (EF)

For the year ended
31 December

BE+t-A=+—-HLFE

2016 2015
ZEB-RF —E-RF
’000 ’000
FR FR
Number of ordinary shares ZERE A
Weighted average number of ordinary RETESREAR(EE),
shares for the purpose of basic BRETA2EBR
(loss)/earnings per share InfEF 9% 3,145,711 1,131,842
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BEEEERR o TE .
shares:
Share options iR rE - 32,144
Weighted average number of ordinary RETESREE (FE),
shares for the purpose of diluted BRRFTAZERBR
(loss)/earnings per share INFEFTE 3,145,711 1,163,986

The calculation of diluted loss per share does
not assume the exercise of the Company’s
outstanding share options as they had an anti-
dilutive effect to the basic loss per share for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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_For the year ended 31 December 2016 HFE—FE—ANF+=-HA=+—HIFE

T

16. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 16. SR (FE) BRI (&)
(Continued)
From continuing operations REFELSEEL
The calculation of basic and diluted (loss)/ ARNREEAEBLREFELSEXEK
earnings per share from continuing operations BREARBE(EB) BFTIREN
attributable to the owners of the Company is TEIETE

based on the following data:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—BLHFE

2016 2015
R AY:S —Z—-hfF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
(Loss)/earnings for the purpose of Rt EGREAXREE
basic and diluted (loss)/earnings (Ei15) B FIBFHT 2
per share (Ei15) ZF
(Loss)/profit for the year from TEEREFELEEK 2
continuing operations (BE|),&5F (207,904) 122,589
Less: loss for the year from continuing & - FEIERIEREMMAEE
operations attributable to REFERLEXBT 2
non-controlling interests K518 2 —
(207,902) 122,589
The denominators used are same as those FFAYBHEEERFEREFELERD
detailed above for both basic and diluted MIPREER CBRERNREF(EE)
(loss)/earnings per share from continuing and /EJ%IJF)?T:KFH%*EH °

discontinued operations.
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For.the year ended 31 December 2016 Eé’_t-—v —NFE A= HIEFE
16. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 16. SR (&8 BF (&)
(Continued)
From discontinued operations RECKRILREE
The calculation of basic and diluted loss per AATEEAEBLEREE R EREXK
share from discontinued operations attributable ZERERAREEHBEIDREUT &IE
to the owners of the Company is based on the HE %

following data:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—BLHFE

2016 2015
—E-RF —Z—-hfF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Loss for the purpose of basic and R EGREXR
diluted loss per share BB E S I AT 2 EiiR
Loss for the year from discontinued AFEERBERIEREXETE
operations ZEE - (22,988)
Less: loss for the year from discontinued & - JE4% PR HE 35 FEAE 3R B A<
operations attributable to FECOARIEEEER 2
non-controlling interests BiE - 5,655
- (17,333)
The denominators used are same as those FTABEEMGTERBEELERD
detailed above for both basic and diluted RIEREEBRcERERAREBE(ER)
(loss)/earnings per share from continuing and S BRERAEMER -
discontinued operations.
17. DIVIDENDS 17. KR
The directors of the Company do not recommend ARARESAFEBRBBE-Z— A
the payment of any final dividend for the year F+-A=+-BLEFEZEAREAR
ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil). B(ZZE—H&F  8])-
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

18. M1% - BERRE

Plant Furniture
Golf Construction and  Leasehold Office Motor and
Buildings courses inprogress  machinery improvements  equipment vehicles fixtures Total
BF BEARE  HBIR HERME REVEEE  BLTRE FE  BHREE it
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
7AT 741 FAT 741 A1 741 741 741 741
Cost A
At1 January 2015 R_Z-RE-F-R - - - 4,003 10,399 1,223 1,050 3,29 19,970
Acquistions through ERERANNE

busingss combination WE0)

(note 42) 173 431 67,89 145,141 1,19 33,800 - - 1,859 423,922
Addtions during the year ~ EAFE - - 1,667 1,405 - 1,060 - 84 10216
Derecogntion upon REfLE-BHEAR

deemed disposal of a BALRED

subsidiary (note 43) (i) = - - (4729) (7,786) (1,777) - (2,06 (16,368)
Disposals e - - - (643) - - - (14) (189)
Exchange alignment EjE2 B3 (34 28] ) (649 (] - w6
At31 December 2015and  H=2-RE

1 January 2016 t2p=t-BR

ZE-7E-f-H 170,101 66,991 150,541 1,187 35,764 498 1,050 2,985 429317
Addtions during the year ~ EARE - - 53,39 - - 66 - - 53,705
Disposals HE - - - - (643) - - - (649)
Transfer &2 - - (643) - 643 - - - -
Exchange aignment Exge logsn @Ay 6% i @i 2 £ (AT
At 31 December 2016 RZE-RE

tZR=t-R 159,264 62,348 193,845 1,665 33,652 564 1,050 2848 455,236
Accumulated ZifERAE

depreciation and

impairment
At 1 January 2015 WZE-TF-f-H = - - 803 3,304 304 1,080 1435 6,896
Charge for the year KEENE 1,901 749 - 1472 2514 3 = 39 7738
Eliminated on deemed WRfELE-BHEAE

disposal of asubsiciary B

(nots 43) (W343) £ - -y e (167 - w8
Written back on disposals ~ tHEREE - - - (244 - - - (31) (279)
Exchange alignment EifE 29 (1) - (12 (1) - - () (66)
At31 December 2015and  H=2-RE

1 January 2016 TZA=1-AR

ZE-7E-B-H 1812 38 - 136 3,180 250 1,080 1,307 8,533
Charge for the year KEENE 7,348 2793 - 448 3,387 76 = 534 14,586
Exchange alignment R (426) (164) - (3) (183) - - (39) (859)
At 31 December 2016 H=8-7E
TZA=t-H 8,19 3,367 - 551 6,384 326 1,050 1,788 22,260
Carrying amounts Euf
At 31 December 2016 RZE-RE
tZR=t-R 150,470 58,981 193,845 1,114 27,268 28 - 1,060 432,976
At 31 December 2015 WoE-1f
tZA=1-A 168,229 65,853 150,541 1,651 32,584 28 - 1,678 420,784
KERBRERRAT
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Group has capitalised operating lease rentals of
HK$10,996,000 (2015: HK$2,856,000).

All of the Group’s buildings, golf courses and
construction in progress are located in the PRC
held on medium-term leases.

18. 1% - WEKKRE (&)

A A

’_‘Drﬁl =

JC w)I'“,L

RBEZ=-ZE—-—<"E+=HB=+—HLt
FE - ANEE110,996,0008 T (=
—FF :2,856,0008 ) 2 KEHENR
SERE o

AEERART SHARSREEZT
RAURPE - WAPHHEYES -

=

=

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. BEWE
2016 2015
— R —E—-IF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Fair value ATE
At 1 January m—A—H 595,448 =
Acquisition through business FREKS TR
combination (note 42) (Kt 42) - 606,858
Gain arising on change in fair value RERRBERZATEED
recognised in profit or loss (note 9) EE W (Kt 9) 3,733 604
Exchange alignment ER e (38,092) (12,014)
At 31 December Rt+t=-—BA=+—H 561,089 595,448
Unrealised gain on change in fair value it ABBRZRZIREVWE
of investment properties included in NP EEBEEZ
profit or loss R 3,733 604
2016 2015
— R —E-—E1F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Investment properties located in the N ERAFRBENFE
PRC held on medium-term leases ZIREYHE 561,089 595,448

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rental income or for
capital appreciation purposes are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

The Group’s investment properties have been
pledged to secure bank borrowings granted to
the Group.

Details of the Group’s investment properties are
as follows:

CN@ nr_

) i
D@ lNotes to the Corrsolldated Fmancral Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE=Z
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19. REWE (&)
AEFEREULEHEEERIESKBA

RERBEZAAMERRIIRAAF
EEXGHE  TRERIRASRENE -

AEEREVEECEFARTFAEER
TERZIERR -

REBEREMEZFBHIIWT ¢

Attributable
interest to the

Location Existing use Tenure Group
b B BREEAR FH rEEEGER
No. 33 Nonglinxia Road Commercial Medium-term lease 100%
Yuexiu District [GES RHEIEL

Guangzhou

Guangdong Province

The PRC

PEEREEMHEFSERMAT I 335
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 EELF

20. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(a)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s investment properties measured
at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs
to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement
date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than
quoted prices included within Level
1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs
for the asset or liability.

NoTes to the Consolldated FlnanC|aI Statements

—ANEFTZA=+—HUEFE

20. REMEZ LAFEFE

Level 1
F1H&
HK$’000
FET

(a)

DFEER

TREINAGERBEHRIZER
MEEXNEBZREVEQAFE X
REQAFEFEGARBE ZIEE
RERGAHBEHAVEFERRE
CEEMDEARE1 F2WES
A& BRI -

o FIHWMABBIIEENTE
B ESz2HEEESRER
REBTERRERRE
)

o F2HWMABBEDNEESERE
ZUBEESHEREES2
WMARE(E1RFARER
) 5 R

s HIXMARBNEENERE
ZAAEERESZHMARE -

Level 2 Level 3 Total
F24k EIR st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET

At 31 December 2016 R=ZT— &

+=-A=+—H
Fair value on a BEHEEFSEZ
recurring basis AST]

Investment properties NRPBEZRE

located in the PRC LES

- 561,089 561,089

At 31 December 2015 RZZB—FHF

+=-—A=+—H
Fair value on a KEMEEFEZ
recurring basis ASS]

Investment properties NRFEzRE

located in the PRC LYES

= 595,448 595,448

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—=

20. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(a)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016,
there were no transfers between Level 1
and Level 2, or transfers into or out of
Level 3 (2015: Nil). The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair
value hierarchy as at the date of the events
or change in circumstance that caused the
transfer.

The fair value of the Group’s investment
properties at 31 December 2016 and
2015 had been arrived at on the basis of
a valuation carried out on the respective
dates by Colliers International (Hong Kong)
Limited, a firm of independent qualified
professional valuers not connected to the
Group.

In determining the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties, the executive
directors of the Company work closely with
Colliers International (Hong Kong) Limited
to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques, assumptions and inputs to the
model. The valuation results and cause
of fluctuations in the fair value of the
investment properties are discussed at the
end of each reporting period.

In estimating the fair value of the investment
properties, the highest and best use of the
investment properties is their current use.

B el NP N P

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB R

—ANEFZA=+—HUEFE

20. REMEZ AFEHFTEE)

(a)

DNFEERE

¢f %1%&&%’2?&2%‘1*&%%%
B TEBEAFEHEIR(=F
—FHE:HE)o ZIKQ‘EZBZ%?%E(\‘
EREANEHER 2 BRERS
?;E*EI  BRARFESE ?&2?32?5

AEER-ZE-—RFR=-Z—1F
tT-RA=+T—B2ZREWELVE
CRAEAEESBEAE RIS
BEREXMGEMITS BRI ERE
B(EB)BRLBDNSE BHET
ZfhEEE o

REEXREEREME 2D FE
B ARAHTESES HERY
XEB(BEB)ERQXAENERE
LU B E G ERMN - R R
BWARE - HES %Xi?xﬁ%%
’D\M?{E/EZEJJJ?IIE"’{#E Hi RS

nﬁﬂ°

RIEFHTREMEZ A FEE - RE
MEZESREERRINSHEA
R
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For.the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZLZ=E

20. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b)

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements

—ANEFTZA=+—HUEFE

20. REMEZ AFEHFTEE)

(b) EEAEIRAFEAEZEH

Valuation Significant
technique unobservable input Range
fREERTS EXTABRERARE #€E
Investment properties Income Capitalisation rate 2016: 3.75% to 4.75%
located in the PRC approach (2015: 3.75% to 4.75%)
URPE 2 REME WA ER{L®E —A~EF 1 3.75% E 4.75%

Capitalisation rate is taking into account of
the capitalisation of rental income potential,
nature of the property and prevailing market
condition. The fair value measurements are
negatively correlated to the capitalisation
rate.

The directors of the Company believe that
any possible changes in input values would
not cause significant change in fair value of
investment properties.

The following table provides a reconciliation
of the movement between opening and

(ZE—FHF :3.75% £ 4.75%)

B RTDETFTNBEEES WA
BERE - MEMERENTRE L
ZHR RV EFEREEN LR

PR ©

ARBEBERE - FAEAREE
BE2EATRSHETIEEBHRE
MENFEZERET -

TRIIRFEABEERTTHESR
AEE Zfﬁfﬁ?ﬁlﬁ;@:ﬁg} 845

closing balances of investment properties BMENFEEE 3%&2&%4@%
classified under fair value hierarchy of Level Fﬁﬁ%}]&,ﬁﬂﬂ{z,, LS BYEER -
3, measured at fair value using a valuation
technique with significant unobservable
inputs:
HK$’000
FHET
At 1 January 2015 R-ZE-—HFE—-—H—H -
Acquisition through business combination FEREKEONE
(note 42) (Bt 42) 606,858
Gain arising on change in fair value REZRBERZAFEHED
recognised in profit or loss (note 9) EE W (BaF9) 604
Exchange alignment R (12,014)
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 RZBE—FHF+ZB=+—HRK
—® - ANE—F—f 595,448
Gain arising on change in fair value RERREIAZATEEZH
recognised in profit or loss (note 9) EE W (HE9) 3,733
Exchange alignment Rk (38,092)
At 31 December 2016 R=-B-XRE+=A=+-—H 561,089

172 ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E_—E—ANF+=-F=+—HILFE
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21, BREE
Operating Operating
rights in rights
respect of the in respect of Software
Subject Land the Club and
in the PRC in the PRC licenses Total
RAEZ RHEZ
TRBRCEE BffEEE RHRER @t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK’$000 HK’$000
FEx FEx T FEr
Cost A
At 1 January 2015 R-E-1%-F-AR = = = =
Acquisition through business BRERSHKE
combination (note 42) (Miz42) 938,061 57,948 4 996,050
Exchange alignment ERAR (18,011) (1,112) (1) (19,124)
At 31 December 2015 and RZB-RF+ZA=1-H
1 January 2016 RZE-~E-F-H 920,050 56,836 40 976,926
Exchange alignment ERAR (58,617) (3,621) () (62,241)
At 31 December 2016 RZB-RE+ZA=1-H 861,433 53,215 37 914,685
Accumulated amortisation and RHBERAERE
impairment losses
At 1 January 2015 RZE-1E-F-H - = = =
Charge for the year KEEYH 4,737 372 5 5,114
Exchange alignment EAR (70) (6) - (76)
At 31 December 2015 and R=E-ZF+-A=1+-H
1 January 2016 R=E-~E-A—H 4,667 366 5 5,038
Charge for the year KEEYH 19,127 1,501 19 20,647
Exchange alignment ERAZ (1,097) (86) 2) (1,185)
At 31 December 2016 RIB-AE+ZA=1-H 22,697 1,781 22 24,500
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 December 2016 R=Z2-x+=A=+-H 838,736 51,434 15 890,185
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RFE+-A=1-H 915,383 56,470 85 971,888
The above intangible assets have finite useful timpEEEARENFEATH 2%

lives. Such intangible assets are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the following periods:

B EENERRRUT HEETHE

Operating rights in respect of the

Subject Land

Operating rights in respect of the

Club
Software and licenses

47 years

37 years

3 years

BT R 47 &
EREfzRERE 37F
B R AR 3F

KIEREE IR EGRAA
“E—REFER
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For.the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZLE—NF+ A =+—HILFEZ

21.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Operating rights in respect of the Subject
Land

Operating rights in respect of the Subject Land
was acquired through a business combination
completed on 6 October 2015. The operating
rights represent (i) the rights to develop and
operate the Subject Land, which is a piece of
580 Chinese acres land adjacent to the Club, and
(i) the rights to manage the properties erected
on the Subject Land up to 30 January 2062
granted to dbtRILHNFEHEBEIEBR AT (Beijing
Bayhood No. 9 Business Hotel Company Limited,
“Bayhood No. 9 Co”), a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, under the cooperation
construction and operating agreements. The
cost of the operating rights of HK$938,061,000
represents the fair value of such asset valued
by American Appraisal China Limited, a firm of
independent qualified professional valuers, as at
6 October 2015, being the completion date of the
business combination.

Operating rights in respect of the Subject Land
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Operating rights in respect of the Club

Operating rights in respect of the Club was
acquired through a business combination as
completed on 6 October 2015. The operating
rights represent the rights to manage and operate
the Club located in Beijing, the PRC, which is
a membership-based golf club and resort, up
to 31 December 2051 granted to Bayhood No.
9 Co under the cooperation construction and
operating agreements. The cost of the operating
rights of HK$57,948,000 represents the fair value
of such asset valued by American Appraisal
China Limited, a firm of independent qualified
professional valuers, as at 6 October 2015, being
the completion date of the business combination.

Operating rights in respect of the Club are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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BREE &)
FRTREEER

ERERSHNBEERTIRBHR 2KE
BERAZZE—HFE+AARNEEK ZLE
EERBEFERRELEHBRFAL
AZEMB AR NEEKE
EERATTIHIOEATNEBE=Z
ANZFE—BA=Z+H2A () RELH
#RFT 2580 A EBE R 2R ;5 K (i)
EETEMB ECEYE R - ZL
& HE > B 7~938,061,0008 TIEB LS
EREEGEMEXEAFTEERATARS
EZ-RE+ANB(MEBEHZTRA
L2 EBEEZATFE -

BRI REBR 2 EERTIBRAMATT
BN RIPREBR(ME) 25 -

FREMzRER

BREBSHBBEFES R EEER
“E-AFETANBRER - 2EERE
RESFERRKEBZR TIMON
NABE=FH-Ft+ZRA=t—-HZ
REERKEUNPELER 2SR 2B

A ZEMASEH SR RBELETRE
JE o 2R & 2 B A< 57,948,000 % Tt 5

BYSEREXMGEMEXETERRL
AR-ZE-AF+AXNHE(MEBSHZ
ERAMFE2EBEEZAFE

BRS o RERDBRAAR R #H
RRFBESE(WE)Z5 -



0000 C

N — ()

ﬁ% Sl
%g@pw

==
('“i__JO

O
cial Statements
?mnﬂﬁﬁim& 0o

N Fﬁr the year ended 31 becember2016 BE _—_F—ANF+_F=1—HIFE

e

8@

22. GOODWILL 22, BHE
Total
et
HK$°000
FET
Cost A
At 1 January 2015 R-EB—-—HFE—-—F—H 89,265
Acquisition through business combination FEREKE OIS
(note 42) (HtaE42) 410,466
Derecognition on deemed disposal of a RBELE—RBNEARRAL
subsidiary (note 43) R (B 43) (89,265)
Exchange alignment & WA (7,938)
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 R-Z-HF+-A=+—-HK
—E—XRE—H—H 402,528
Exchange alignment Rk (25,626)
At 31 December 2016 R-B—-—XRE+=-H=+—H 376,902
Accumulated impairment losses ZFtREEE
At 1 January 2015 N-ZZE—RHF—HF—H =
Impairment loss recognised EERBEEE 48,492
Exchange alignment B AR (736)
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 R=Z-RF+t=-A=t—-HK
—E—-XR&E—H—H 47,756
Exchange alignment b X (3,043)
At 31 December 2016 R-ZBE-XRNFE+=-HA=+—H 44,713
Carrying amounts AREE
At 31 December 2016 R-B—XRE+=-H=+—H 332,189
At 31 December 2015 R-ZB—RFE+-_HA=+—8H 354,772
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22. GOODWILL (Continued) 22. BHEE)
Impairment test of goodwill EERENR
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill RETHEIR  BECoREMES
has been allocated to two individual CGUs, VESEXEN BEMEVERES
comprising two subsidiaries in the property BzHBAT - R—E—RNRER_Z
investment segment. The carrying amounts of —HAF+-HA=+—H 2WMEZEE
goodwill as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 BB 2REENT :
allocated to these units are as follows:
2016 2015
—E-XEF —E-hF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Property investment in Beijing RIRERZMERE
— Smart Title Limited (“Smart Title”) — Smart Title Limited
([ Smart Title |) 274,463 293,138
Property investment in Guangzhou REMZYHRE
— Best Volume Investments Limited — Best Volume
(“Best Volume”) Investments Limited
([Best Volume J) 57,726 61,634
332,189 354,772

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
directors of the Company determine that there
is no impairment of goodwill in relation to CGUs
of Smart Title (2015: HK$48,492,000) and Best
Volume (2015: Nil).

As stated in the Company’s circular dated 31
August 2015, the directors of the Company have
noticed the consideration for the acquisition of
Smart Title exceeds the valuation of the Club and
the proposed project of hotel villas and high-end
hotel apartments to be erected on the Subject
Land as at 31 March 2015. The directors of the
Company consider that the excess represents a
premium paid to the vendor in consideration of
the time consumed and resources employed by
the vendor in consolidating operating rights in
respect of the Subject Land and the Club as a
single piece of asset, which provides the synergy
effects of having the Club and the Subject Land
as disclosed on pages 41 to 42 of the circular
and bringing the first phase development at a
substantially completed stage. At 31 December
2015, the directors of the Company consider
that the impairment loss recognised in relation
to goodwill arising on acquisition of Smart Title
represent the premium paid to the vendor.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2016

BE-_Z—-—XR"E+=-BA=+—-HBLHF
E> ARAEERAEEBESmart Title
(ZE—HF : 48,492,00078 ¢ ) & Best
Volume (2015 : ) 2R EEL BN Z
EEMERE -

HUOALANTDBEBHA=-ZT-—FHTFENA
=t+t—HZBREML  ARAREBIE
DU EE Smart Title 2K EBRBEMRE
Bt FFTE 2 BIESHEE R & iREE A
BEvEFEAR-E-—AE=RA=1+-—
AztE AATEETAEBHIBO S
MEBEFXTZEE EAEITRTEH
BEEFMEAE—EESHKEREE
HEFBLBBEERZ2RE  50HHEBE
REZBEREMNBIREFRBREZERR
FEMBIERGRENE TR AERT
Bl AE—HERE - WN=FE—HFE+=
B=+—HB ' AQASEETAHRAWE
Smart Title M A EEZREESEENRE
BER ST ZEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BZE—F—~NF1+=-H=+—HIFEZ

22. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment test of goodwill (Continued)

The basis of the recoverable amounts of
the above CGUs and their major underlying
assumptions are summarised below:

Property investment in Beijing - Smart Title

Upon completion of the acquisition of Smart Title
on 6 October 2015, goodwill on acquisition of
HK$347,567,000, which represents the excess
of the sum of the fair value of the consideration
transferred over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed measured as at their fair
value, was recognised.

The recoverable amount of the CGU of property
investment in Beijing — Smart Title has been
determined based on value in use calculation
with reference to the two valuation reports
prepared by American Appraisal China Limited,
a firm of independent qualified professional
valuers. One of the calculations uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved
by the directors of the Company covering a
35-year period (2015: 36-year period) which is
the term of the cooperation construction and
operating agreements in respect of the Club,
and discount rate of 11% (2015: 11%) per
annum. The other calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved
by the directors of the Company covering a
45-year period (2015: 46-year period) which is
the term of the cooperation construction and
operating agreements in respect of the Subject
Land, and discount rate of 183% (2015: 13%)
per annum. Other key assumptions for the value
in use calculations relate to the estimation of
cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted
rental income and related operating expenses,
such estimation is based on Smart Title’s past
performance and management’s expectations for
the market development.

The impairment loss recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2015 solely relates to the
CGU of property investment in Beijing. The
goodwill allocated to the CGU of property
investment in Beijing — Smart Title has been
reduced to its recoverable amount that is
HK$293,138,000, equivalent to RMB245,509,000.

22. BE#E)

AERENSE

UERESEABENZARBREERAEE
EHERREERLMT ¢

RIETZYERE — Smart Title

RZZE—FF+ ANHTKWE Smart
Title® » E F 52 UK 8 75 2 347,567,000
BTHEEREZAFEBRERKER
HEeEWBRATEFEZUBIINEER
EREEBEFEZSE -

RIERT2YFEKRE — Smart Title 2R £
EEEBEzO WO ECREFREER
TEMEBEE KSZHBILISEREE
HEMTEXBEFEERATARE RN
HERS HEF-—BEFEEAZRER
EFADERALATESHAZ=TH
FHE(ZZE—1%F : =+ F8/8) (A
EffcEEERREEHE 2FH) K
HERBEREEE1IR(ZE—RF:
11%) c HtstEHR A2 RS R ETE A
DERAQARESHECN+ EFHH
(Z2E—HF: N+ FHE)(AEE
Wi SERRREEHZE 2 FH) BTN
EEREBEREFI1I3% (ZE—HF:
13%) - EAEBEEFE2HEMEE/RR
BBRYBESRA RHzhst B8FRE
SHEWAREBEEERY  BEMAE
ThE A Smart Title 2 BERBREEE
HMGHREARMmMES -

BE-_Z—HF+-_A=+t—HLEF
EEREIABEEEEERLEZR2YE
REZHRSELEENEH 2mMER
bR z¥ERE — Smart TitlezBBE
ELXEVsBECREZEETRE £
%6293,138,0008 Tt HE R AR ¥
245,509,000 JT °
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22. GOODWILL (Continued) 22, BB (&)

178

Impairment test of goodwill (Continued)

Property investment in Beijing — Smart Title
(Continueqd)

EERERNR (&)
RIETZYERE — Smart Title (&)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, BE-Z-X"F+ZA=+—HLHF
the directors of the Company believe that B RARESRE AJKWESEES

any reasonably possible change in any of
these assumptions on which the recoverable
amount is based would not cause the carrying
amount of the CGU of property investment in
Beijing — Smart Title exceeds the recoverable
amount that is HK$278,011,000, equivalent to
RMB248,684,000. Thus, no impairment loss was
recognised for the year ended 31 December
2016.

Property investment in Guangzhou - Best
Volume

M2 ENZEBRR 2B EZE S
FEEHHNIETE — Smart Title 2%
REZHSELENREERBAWE
{E{E278,011,0008 T - *E:QEA}\EM
248,684,000t - Hk » BEZZE —
g;iﬁiﬂ'—ﬁtilgﬁﬂﬁﬁhﬂﬁ
'5’\ o

REMzZYXKRE — Best Volume

Upon completion of the acquisition of Best RZE-—RAEFE+-—B+ZHERWK
Volume on 12 November 2015, goodwill on B& Best Volumet# » © # 52 Hﬁl i
acquisition of HK$62,899,000, which represents 62,899,000 & jt BN & u%éfﬂ;EZ’D\SFEﬁﬁ
the excess of the sum of the fair value of the ﬁ?ﬂ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂﬂiﬂﬁﬂz Eﬁ%zﬁj

consideration transferred over the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed measured
as at their fair value, was recognised.

The recoverable amount of the CGU of
property investment in Guangzhou — Best
Volume has been determined based on value
in use calculation with reference to a valuation
performed by Colliers International (Hong
Kong) Limited, a firm of independent qualified
professional valuers. That calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by directors of the Company covering a
five-year period and discount rate of 6.2% (2015:
5.8%) per annum and cash flows beyond the five-
year period are extrapolated using a 3% (2015:
3%) growth rate. This growth rate is based on
the relevant industry growth forecasts and does
not exceed the average long-term growth rate
for the relevant industry. Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculations relate to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include
budgeted rental income, such estimation is based
on Best Volume’s existing tenancy agreements
and management’s expectations for the market
development.

The directors of the Company believe that any
reasonably possible change in any of these
assumptions on which the recoverable amount is
based would not cause the carrying amount of
the CGU of property investment in Guangzhou —
Best Volume exceeds the recoverable amount.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2016

WA EERIAEREFEZEH

NEMNZYEIRE — Best Volume 21
SEABEVZANELECREERE
EftEMEE  K2ZHBIGERKE
EGEMTESIEBRYERE(E8)AE
FRAFETZEE ZtERACES
REFEADERAARESH EZEF
HEVHREEREEREF6.2% (=ZF
—0fF :58%) MEFHEEzZRES
REDFAI% (ZZE—HF :3%)ER
RETHE - ZEREDREBEMEBRTE
R 788 Hﬂﬁ$ﬁi@$ﬁ%§??¥2$i’§
RPEREZ - FHEAEAMEZHMEE
BEDEBEHBEESRA R 25t

BEETHESERA EEGTIER
Best Volume 2 RBHAREEELH M

SR 2 TAEAMAIES ©

AKAREZHRE JREE£E 2 EMZ
EBRRFEHBEZEMNESEARES T -
BAREEHRREMN2WERE — Best
Volume 2 & EL BV ZEREEBHT
W[ £ %8 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEF —E—ANEF+=-HA=+—HIFE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

23. RBE QT 2 EH®

2016 2015
—EB-XEF —E-REF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAET FET
Unlisted kLt
Cost of investment in an associate RE—BEE QT ZHA 600 —
Share of post-acquisition profits and  FE{SUWNEEERR
other comprehensive income, net of Hith 2 mE RS
dividends received HREWR S - —
600 -
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had REEHRR XEEBRUTEE QA H
interests in the following associates: BEERER

Proportion of
ownership interest

Country/place of Principal place of and voting power held  Principal
Name of entity incorporation business by the Group activities
AR AR L REERGREERER
BRZR Bx/ 4% TEEERY REELA TEER
2016 2015
“EB-RE ZE3-1f
Unlisted
FLEM
Spark Concept Group Limited British Virgin Islands Hong Kong 49% 49%  Catering
(“Spark Concept”) (Note () (#32()) HBELZEE Bk £
China Hong Kong Money Limited (“China  Hong Kong Hong Kong 30% NATEA  Investment
Hong Kong Money”, formerly known &8 & holding
as Universal Asia Properties Limited) REER

(Note (i)
TEEERAG(HBE] A
BRGNEXERAT)
(B (i)

Notes:

(i) On 15 December 2011,

The Group is able to exercise significant influence
over Spark Concept because it holds 49% of the
issued share capital of Spark Concept and has
appointed one director to the board of directors of

Spark Concept.

the Group acquired 49%
of the issued share capital of Spark Concept at
a consideration of HK$49. Spark Concept is an
investment holding company and its principal
subsidiaries are principally engaged in catering.

()

R=ZF——F+-A+HAB > AEEUK
{B497%8 jt W B8 Spark Concept & 21T %
X2 49% ° Spark Concept® — B &R E
ERAR MEFEMBAREZEHREE
& o

A AR £ E ¥ F Spark ConceptB 31T
B Z249% 3 B Z £ — {1y E E & Spark
ConceptEEEGvEE MAEETH
Spark ConceptiEE AL -

KERBEIRERRAF

R ety L
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23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

On 21 December 2016, China Hong Kong Money,
a then 60% shareholding interest subsidiary of the
Company, allotted and issued 1,000,000 new shares
at an issue price of HK$1.00 per share to an another
shareholder of China Hong Kong Money. As a result
of the allotment and issue of the new shares, the
Group’s shareholding interest in China Hong Kong
Money diluted from 60% to 30% and the Group was
deemed to dispose of 30% shareholding interest in
China Hong Kong Money. Following the resignation
of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton as a director of
China Hong Kong Money, the Group was regarded
as having significant influence in China Hong Kong
Money. The Group reclassified the investment
in China Hong Kong Money to the interests in
associates.

All of associates are accounted for using the
equity method in the consolidated financial
statements.

Aggregate information of associates that are
not individually material

23. RBE DT 2R (/&)

waz -

(i)

FrE

(#&)

RZBE-—ARE+ZA=Z+—RB: HBE&E
(RABEREE0%REZKMBAR )L
BER1.00BT 2R TERREES — AR
3R fid 2% & 2% 17 1,000,000 BR#F AR 10 - AR
EREETHRG  AEERPBEZR
EHE0%MEEI0%  MAEBWIRS
HERBEZ30%KRE - BEREELE
BEIFBEESE%R  AEEBEEAHPE
BEEEAYE - AEEERPBEZRE

ENDBEANBE QT 2 o
e DR AZRERS VB RRE

ERELRE e

I

BERAEAZHENRAREEN

2016 2015
—E-RF —E-0F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
The Group’s share of loss and total Zliﬁlﬁg'ﬂﬁiwréﬁé&éﬁ
comprehensive loss for the year E84 - -
Aggregate carrying amounts of the AEBRILEBENT 2~
Group’s interests in these associates @ 2 4 U,EEE 600 -
Unrecognised share of loss of associates that WIFEAERZE ABERAELTEEZE DT
are not individually material BB
2016 2015
— R —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Unrecognised share of loss of i R R FREEE QT
associates for the year 518 (1,145) (1,337)
Cumulative unrecognised share of loss R KRB EILEE QT
of associates &8 (6,397) (5,252)

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2016
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23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Change in ownership interest in China
Healthwise Holdings Limited (“China
Healthwise”, stock code: 348 and formerly
known as Haier Healthwise Holdings Limited)

On 12 September 2016, the Group acquired
500,000,000 shares in China Healthwise.
The 500,000,000 shares in China Healthwise
represented approximately 8.45% of the issued
share capital of China Healthwise and were
accounted for as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss for financial reporting
purposes. Following the appointment of Mr. Lei
Hong Wai and Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton as
executive directors of China Healthwise on 11
October 2016, the Group was regarded as having
significant influence over China Healthwise and
the 500,000,000 shares in China Healthwise were
accounted for as investment in an associate for
financial reporting purposes.

Following the resignation of Mr. Cheung Kwok
Wai Elton as an executive director of China
Healthwise on 16 December 2016, the Group
was regarded as losing significant influence over
China Healthwise and China Healthwise ceased
to be an associate of the Group. Accordingly,
the Group’s investment in China Healthwise has
been accounted for as available-for-sale financial
assets whose fair value at the date of deemed
disposal was HK$113,500,000, which was based
on the closing price of HK$0.227 per share
in China Healthwise as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on 16 December 2016. The deemed
disposal has resulted in the recognition of a loss
in profit or loss, which is calculated as follows:

23. RBERNTI 2R (&)

THEERREERERARA(PEERE
REE (R 1 348) - AIBEW & e
REZBRERARREEEDZ 22T

P

“E-RXEARBTZ=ZH KEEWE
& B & RE 4 & 2 500,000,000 & B% 17 °
[ & BE f B 2 500,000,000 R BR 19 14
FEESERECBITRANSL45%
BUBEREMS  ARARAFETA
BRnRkztmEE BEZHELER
RRELENR=-Z—-—<E+HA+—BE
ZREATHEEREZHTEEER K
EERERIEHTHEERREEEATE
Ho BB REME  RPESERR
2 500,000,000z I 2 E ABRB R — &
BENTZRE

R [ et

BEERRELENR=-Z—~"EF+=-8
T AEBBETREERECHTES
% AEBWREREHIRESERE
CEREEH MHPBEEEREE B
AREEcHENT - At NEBR
FTEEREBRECRECARAETHEE
tREE NBEEFLHEEHZAFE
£113,500,0008 T € B E R =
E—RNETZ A+ ASAEBEIAAHRSD
BERERE2WHESR0.227 8 T i
Ho REHECERREZRIERS
B HEEWT :

2016

—E-XEF

HK$’000

FET

Fair value of investment retained REBZ2RAFEEE 113,500
Less: carrying amount of interest in China B RREBERZENZHR

Healthwise on the date of loss of FESREREERZ
significant influence (135,000)
Loss on deemed disposal of an associate = R{EHE—BHE AT 2 EE (21,500)

MBI AR AT
B REEH
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For.the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZLZ=E

24,

25.

DEPOSIT FOR INVESTMENT

Deposit for investment represents a refundable
deposit of HK$60,000,000 paid to Huayi Tencent
Entertainment Company Limited (“Huayi
Tencent”, stock code: 419 and formerly known
as China Jiuhao Health Industry Corporation
Limited), pursuant to the conditional sale and
purchase agreement dated 11 December 2014 (as
amended and supplemented by the supplemental
agreements dated 30 March 2015 and 12 June
2015 respectively) entered into between the
Company as purchaser, Unique Talent Group
Limited (“Unique Talent”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of Huayi Tencent, as vendor and Huayi
Tencent as guarantor relating to the acquisition
of the entire shareholding interest in Smart Title
and the assignment of the shareholder’s loan due
by Smart Title. The acquisition was completed on
6 October 2015. Details are set out in note 42 to
the consolidated financial statements.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS

""‘T". Jk _,\

|' |[

—ANEFTZA=+—HUEFE

24, RE®RS

RERSEONEERBAIREER LA
(TEEBA | ROKKE: 419K A
BAEIORRBREEXEERAB)XINZ
60,000,000 T AJ R E & % ° kIR
BEAA-—ZFT—NEF+=-_A+—HBH
RAARMERER  r HEHEEBAZZ2ENW
B A A Unique Talent Group Limited
([Unique Talent){EAEH UK EE
BAIERBERANT LZERHEEHZ
(RAPSRB-_E—RE=A=+8EK
—E-RAFAATZHAZEARBREE]
k#fx) AEEBEWESmart Titlez
ZHIFRESZREZE Smart TitleEX 2
BREER WEEER-_ZF—HF+A
RETK - FRHRGEHBERRWT
42 ©

25 AHESHEE

2016 2015
ZE-RF —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Listed equity securities in Hong ERALITRARS
Kong, at fair value BRAFE
At 1 January K—A—H 262,500 68,715
Reclassification from deemed BRIELE—REMEAR
disposal of a subsidiary (Note c) EHoE(MHEC) - 336,000
Reclassification from deemed RIELEBE N RERN
disposal of an associate (Note f) DEHES) 113,500 -
Disposals (Notes b and e) HE(HZbKe) (120,000) (99,881)
Net gain/(loss) arising on revaluation  AItHESRMEEEGE
of available-for-sale financial £z (E58)F58
assets (Notes d and g) (Bfazd R g) 109,000 (42,334)
At 31 December Rt=R=+—H 365,000 262,500
Unlisted debt security Fk EmEKRES
Club debenture (Note h) SES (Bt h) 172 172
At 31 December BR+=—BA=+—H 365,172 262,672
The fair value of the Group’s listed equity REZEmeMBERERA AL K
securities in Hong Kong at the date of approval EEEELTRAZBZZATFES
of the consolidated financial statements was 291,672,000 Jt °

HK$291,672,000.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2016
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25. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)

25. AAHHESREE &)

Notes: Mat -

Listed equity securities are stated at fair value. Fair
value of listed equity securities is determined based
on quoted bid prices in the Stock Exchange.

In April 2015, the Group disposed of 70,840,000
shares in Lajin Entertainment Network Group Limited
in a series of transactions on open market for
an aggregate gross proceeds of HK$99,881,000,
representing an average selling price of
approximately HK$1.41 per share and recognised a
cumulative gain reclassified from equity to profit or
loss upon derecognition of available-for-sale financial
assets of HK$74,378,000 in profit or loss.

On 6 November 2015, SkyNet allotted and issued
345,000,000 new ordinary shares and 30,000,000
new convertible preferred shares to six subscribers
pursuant to the conditional subscription agreement
dated 17 February 2015 entered into between
SkyNet, Xing Hang Limited, Goldenland Mining
& Investment Limited, Silver Empire Holding
Limited, Truly Elite Limited, High Aim Global
Limited and First Bonus International Limited (as
amended and supplemented by the supplemental
agreements dated 19 June 2015 and 28 August 2015
respectively). As a result, the Group’s shareholding
interest in SkyNet was diluted from 70.18% to
12.51% and SkyNet had ceased to be a subsidiary of
the Company. The Group’s investment in 52,500,000
ordinary shares in SkyNet has been accounted for
as available-for-sale financial assets. At 6 November
2015, the fair value of the investment in SkyNet was
HK$336,000,000, which was based on the closing
price of HK$6.40 per share in SkyNet as quoted on
the Stock Exchange on that date.

At the end of 31 December 2015, the Group
remeasured its investment in 52,500,000 ordinary
shares in SkyNet at the closing price of HK$5.00
per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on
31 December 2015 and recognised an impairment
loss of HK$73,500,000. The directors of the
Company considered that such decline in fair value
is significant to its carrying amount and indicates
that the investment in SkyNet has been impaired.
Therefore, the impairment loss was reclassified from
equity to profit or loss.

EHRAESGEDFEIER - EHRAE
BEZAFEDERBIAZEAEE

=~

E o

R-ZZE-—FFWA  AEBMEBRART
ST — BB R 5 H 70,840,000 i 1
TRREEMARATDRNG  BEBHERS
X IE 48 %5699,881,00058 T FHEELN
BERERM1.418 1 THREZREIR
RIEBRATEHESHEEAAESEH
PEZEERm K ZETWEE 74,378,000
5T e

R=ZZ-—HEF+—-ARH REMZEE
B - BHAPR AT ~ Goldenland Mining
& Investment Limited * Silver Empire
Holding Limited ~ Truly Elite Limited »
High Aim Global Limited & First Bonus
International Limitedi A =& — f £ =
BttBAIYzERGRBHZ(D 5
KREAAR=—ZE—HFERATABR=Z
—HAFENBZ+NBZERHEIERT R
7)) MEEBOSERE AR KRBT
345,000,000 AR 7 & #8 % & 30,000,000 iR
FABRBRELR Bl AEERMEER
B B IRAER B 70.18% #EE 12.51% »
EMZEEBHABRARARZHB AR o &
£ E A M= BB 252,500,000 i & & K&
BB ZREEARIAATHEESHE
E-R=-Z—AF+—-ARB RHMIZEH
Bt 2 1R & 2 A F {E % 336,000,000 % T
(M Z= BB A Z B BT B 3 P PR iR
BEER6.40BTFTE) ©

RZE—HF+=ZA=+—H ' XEEE
HatEHERMZE B 252,500,000 i &
BREMEA=Z-—FE+=-A=+—
BEBIAAHR2WHESRS5.0058T)
2 BE - IR E & 573,500,000 8
T ARTEERAEEAFETHRER
HEMEBEATRARMEEE 2RE
BRE - Bt > ZEREZBEFEHE
HEFPEEEER -

KERBREBRAR
—E-RFFRH
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25. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)

AHHESRMEE#)

Notes: (Continued) Kiat o ()

On 30 November 2016 and 5 December 2016,
18,750,000 shares and 6,250,000 shares in SkyNet
held by the Group were placed to two independent
investors respectively at a placing price of HK$4.80
per share pursuant to the placing agreement dated
23 November 2016. Upon completion of the placing,
the Group recognised a cumulative gain reclassified
from equity to profit or loss upon derecognition of
available-for-sale financial assets of HK$22,500,000
in profit or loss.

Following the resignation of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai
Elton as an executive director of China Healthwise
on 16 December 2016, the Group was regarded as
losing significant influence over China Healthwise
and China Healthwise ceased to be an associate
of the Group. Accordingly, the Group’s investment
in China Healthwise has been accounted for as
available-for-sale financial assets whose fair value at
the date of deemed disposal was HK$113,500,000,
which was based on the closing price of HK$0.227
per share in China Healthwise as quoted on the
Stock Exchange on 16 December 2016.

At 30 June 2016, the Group measured its investment
in 52,500,000 shares in SkyNet at the closing price
of HK$3.90 per share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange and recognised an impairment loss of
HK$57,750,000. Therefore, the impairment loss
was reclassified from equity to profit or loss. At
31 December 2016, the Group remeasured its
investment in 27,500,000 shares in SkyNet and
500,000,000 shares in China Healthwise at the
closing price of HK$9.40 per share and HK$0.213
per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 30
December 2016.

The club debenture has indefinite useful life and no
amortisation has been made and is stated at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, if any. The fair
value of the club debenture at 31 December 2016
has been arrived at with reference to comparable
sales evidence as available in the relevant market.
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
did not identify any impairment loss related to the
club debenture should be made (2015: Nil).

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2016

RIE—RE+—-A=+HAR=ZZE—XE
+=ZBEA REBPA-ZFT—<F+-—
B+ =AzBREH#  AEBSERM
2 5 B2 18,750,000 )8 % 6,250,000 ;R 2
RIBEREEER480BTIHIEETME
ﬁi&%% c REETHKE  REEER
RETBIATHEESCHEERHERE
%ﬁ“*ﬁiﬁﬁﬁz,ﬁ%ﬂ&ﬁ 22,500,000
/%713 O

BEERBEELENR=-Z—"F+=A+~
BRIPESEEECHITESR &
EEWPEERAEHTESEREEARY
1 MABEZSHEREETIBAREEZ
BEAT e Bt NEBRTEEEER
ZRECARBAHEESREE  NE
fEHE B8 22D FEAB113,500,00058
T SEBRER=ZE—A~"E+=B+xB
EBRRFBRTESEREZRTESR
0.227 BT E -

RZBE-RNEX~NA=1TH A"EEKRHE
REFRBTESRIETHTEELRN
52,500,000 BRI B AR 1D 2 R E W FE
SR {EE 8 57,750,000 Bt o Fit o R
EFEEHESZEFIEZERR N=F
—A"E+ZA=1+—H8  AEEZER=F
—RNE+ A=+ AEBRFAABRKHE
FR.40BTRER0.2138 T - BH
EHAMZE B 227,500,000 8% % 17 &
MR B E 2 500,000,000 BEER D °

EMESYEEEREAFY  BORMER
$Ho RERAHNKERABRESR@E)
iR - R=ZE—AR"F+=A=+t—-H 8
FERzAFEDESZHETSREZ
ALHERREE - BE-_T - F+=
B=+—BLLFE  KAEBERED HEM
FHEMESZREBR(ZE—0%F:
&) o
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26. LOANS RECEIVABLES 26. EWER

2016 2015

—E—-XF —E2-EF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Loans to customers BEEFRHEZER 446,355 480,456
Accrued interest receivables FE U FEST I B 4,808 5,021
451,163 485,477

Less: impairment loss recognised i BHRERBEEE - .
451,163 485,477

All loans are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
The loans receivables carry effective interest
ranging from 8% to 20% per annum (2015: 8% to
15% per annum). A maturity profile of the loans
receivables (net of impairment loss recognised,
if any) at 31 December 2016 and 2015, based on
the maturity date is as follows:

FFEERYUBTHE BRERZE
MERBNF 8N E20% (ZE—FHEF :
FRE8%E15%) c RZBE—RERZ
E-—AFE+=-A=+—0: ®RIHBEE
PREWEF(NKRECEIANERSE o
B)IEHERET :

2016 2015
—E-RE —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current assets REBEE
Within one year —FR 312,663 23,021
Non-current assets FRBEE
Over one year but not exceeding —F U EEBREB
two years ks 138,500 462,456
451,163 485,477

At 31 December 2016, certain loans amounted
to HK$53,500,000 (2015: HK$58,000,000) are
secured by personal guarantees and the pledge
of the customers’ properties.

In determining the recoverability of the loans
receivables, the Group considers any change in
the credit quality of the loans receivables from
the date credit was initially granted up to the
reporting date. The concentration of credit risk is
limited due to the customer base being large and
unrelated.

R-ZB-XF+=-A=+-H ' &F
& 453,500,000 xT(= & — &1 F:
58,000,000 T) I A BAEREEF
MRAEER -

RETRWER 2 ATKREEE  AEH
SZRARERERBHBEARHEER
HEEHRERMEEERZEMNES -
HAEFERBEXEREE  SERR
SEHERIR -

KERBREBRAR
—E-RFFRH
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INVENTORIES 27. F&
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—FE
HK$’°000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Raw materials R A 15,098 15,750
Work-in-progress TH®m 232 3,160
Finished goods KR m 30,306 30,348
45,636 49,258

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses
and included in “cost of sales” under continuing
operations amounted to HK$73,542,000 (2015:

HK$92,798,000).

28.

BRABAXAAAGBECLEERTIHE

B |2 FE

5 R £ 73,542,000 T (=

T—HF 192, 798000/%75)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, no BE=-Z2—-—XR"&E+=A E-I- = ==
inventory was obsolete that could not generate B #SIBFECBE BLIEERRK
future economic benefits. (2015: a write-down BAFZ(ZE—RF: WEXTEB 00078
of inventories HK$3,000 was recognised in TIEREBCRIEREER 2[1THHA
“administrative expenses” under discontinued Z)e
operations.)
£
TRADE RECEIVABLES 28. HABKHE
2016 2015
—E-XEF —E-hF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Trade receivables g 5 EWFIE 63,160 62,233
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B REREE - =
63,160 62,233

The following is an aging analysis of trade
receivables (net of allowance for doubtful
debts, if any) at the end of the reporting period
presented based on the invoice dates:

REZAHP2INBEHRZEZ R
ylE(?DB?%E—EﬁN% mE) 2z kiR DM
nr :

2016 2015

—E—RE —E—FE

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

0-30 days 0Z30H 9,634 23,055
31-60 days 31£60H 8,055 20,326
61-90 days 61Z90H 3,299 11,345
91-120 days 91£120H 3,026 5,776
121-180 days 121 £180 H 7,081 965
Over 180 days 180 B k£ 32,165 766
63,160 62,233

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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28. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group allows credit period ranging from 0 to
180 days to its customers. The Group assesses
the credit status and imposes credit limits for the
customers in accordance with the Group’s credit
policy. The credit limits are closely monitored
and subject to periodic reviews.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$35,956,000 (2015: HK$1,292,000) which are
past due at the end of the reporting period for
which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss. The directors of the Company believe that
there has not been a significant change in credit
risk and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable as these customers have good track
records with the Group. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

Aging of trade receivables which are past due
but not impaired:

28. ESEWIE#E

AEBAFAEEFRHZEEHNF
0£180 B - "EBEREHEE BRI
%ﬁZFﬁHHﬁ}R&?ﬁUEﬂ*E%‘EF’ﬁt%
FEEEEETHIENRERBE

AEEEZBRUREZEHANBER
H # ﬁ35,956,000/§75(— —HF:
1,292,000/ T ) 2 &% TR |E B
REBH - ANEE YN EFRESEFED
BE - ARAESAR  ARZEERF
HASEERFAR  WEERBHTE
k 28 MAERSHRNESTEZHR
? o AKB Y RMZEARETHEMIE
fam e

ERBETEREZE S EVRFIEZIR
BR

2016 2015
ZE-RF —E-0F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Less than 30 days past due 2R PR30 H 12,997 531
30 to 90 days past due EEH30Z 90 H 1,962 406
Over 90 days past due EEH#EE 0 B 20,997 355
35,956 1,292

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts FRARERERESHOT

during the year is as follows:

2016 2015
—E—RE —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1 January n—A—8 - 396
Amounts written off as uncollectible TRy UR Bl 2 #i8E & X8 - (396)
At 31 December Rt+t=—A=+—8H — _

KIEREE IR EGRAA
“E—REFER
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29. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 29. &% -

RECEIVABLES

s ._JL_JL/\..._,“ K_z

: }[ H'-—\Il ‘.._‘
#|nahc|al étatements

000

FEAY TR B E A B WK

2016 2015
—E—-XREF —E-RfF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Deposits & 10,656 11,496
Prepayments FEASRIE 2,545 8,827
Other receivables H b fE W IE 89,621 86,197
102,822 106,520
Less: prepayments classified as B DBRIRBEEZ
non-current assets FEASRIE (1,561) (7,979)
101,261 98,541
30. AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE 30. FEWN — R E#Z N BT
Details of amount due from an associate are as FER—EBE AT RIBE BT
follows:
Maximum
amount
outstanding
during the year
FRAREERE 2016 2015
ZEBEZH —E-RE —E-HF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FBT FET FET
Spark Concept Spark Concept 7,393 7,393 7,393
Less: impairment loss B BHERREESE
recognised (5,696) (5,296)
1,697 2,097
The carrying amount of amount due from FEUL Spark Concept 718 2 BREE J3 R

Spark Concept is reduced to the recoverable
amount which is determined by reference to the
estimation of future cash flows expected to be

generated from Spark Concept.

The amount due from an associate is unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

During the year ended 31

impairment loss of HK$400,000 was recognised

(2015: HK$1,431,000).

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2016

December 2016, an BEExE_F—7

—H%F

FELIQ— FEJH?M"

SEAWEEE  TREESEDNLSE
FEHA#% A Spark Concept B4 2 st &
RIBESHREEE °

FREREERAF 25

NE+TZA=+—HL#E
E  BERERREEIE400,0008 T (==
1,431,000/ T) °
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31. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 31. RAFEFTAERRZEHMEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2016 2015
—EB-ARF —E-hF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Equity securities classified as held S EAFFEEREX
for trading investments: RAFS :
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong, &# EHRAES -
at fair value BOFE 544,442 597,658
At the end of the reporting period, financial NIMPEHR A FESFAEREERZSE
assets at FVTPL stated at fair value. Fair values MEEUAFEYE - EmEEZ2AF
of listed securities are determined with reference BEZ2EZHMEMBNTmERE -
to quoted market closing price.
During the year ended 31 December 2016, a BE-_ZEZ—-—XR"E+=ZHA=+—8 1L
loss arising on change in fair value of financial FE REZEEIRAFEEFES A
assets at fair value through profit or loss of Ei ERZEMEELTFEEHE S
HK$141,649,000 was recognised in profit or loss ZE1E 141,649,000 T(=ZE—HF :
(2015: HK$66,286,000). 66,286,000 78 T ) °
The fair value of the Group’s equity securities RNEZEREeBHRRMEBRE K
listed in Hong Kong at the date of approval EEEBLFTRAEZBSZLAEES
of the consolidated financial statements was 466,589,000/§7l:°
HK$466,589,000.
32. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 32. BERESEZEEY
2016 2015
—EB-REF —E-0F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFEESE 438,975 509,341
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and AIREHIR  REFBUARE(ARE )
bank balances of the Group denominated in ST EZ2REESRETHE:A32,316,0008
Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to HK$32,316,000 TT(ZZ—FRF : 55,222,000 7t) ©
(2015: HK$55,222,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other ARBAABEHRHLBAHMER - A
currencies, however, under the PRC’s Foreign > R PEINESIBEH &L E&
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration EERNESEREE  AEBEEREBEA
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign EEEERIEEZEBRZ2BRITHEARER

Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted BAEHMEE o
to exchange RMB for other currencies through

authorised banks to conduct foreign exchange

business.

KIEREE IR EGRAA
“E—REFER
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32. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

33.

(Continued)

800w

Bank balances earn interests at floating rates
based on daily bank deposit rates. The bank
balances are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default.

SHARE CAPITAL

33.

Movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are as follows:

/?-EJ*'J

—h ._,JL_J\._,,,\..,_,JI ,’K_a"-_-'-._ -

: }[ H'-—\Il ‘.._‘
#|nanc|al étatements

—AEF At —AULEE

&N
RRBBRARFRNZEEBHMOT -

Number of shares

32. RERBEEEW#E)

RITERBRRBRBRITAES
5t B o $RT

OO0

GIESE
TRBERNEBR
7 L3 E 3 S 4030 88 2 4R AT o

Share capital

BRH&A [N
2016 2015 2016 2015
—-R"E —E-EHF —X"E Z—E-IE
’000 000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Fi FK FET FET
Ordinary shares of BRMEE0.01ET
HK$0.01 each (ZZ2-50F  BREE
(2015: HK$0.01 each) 0.01BT)2ERR
Authorised: REE
At 1 January and R—B—HK
31 December +=A=+—H 10,000,000 10,000,000 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EZTRHAE :
At 1 January R—B—H 2,680,006 547,673 26,800 5,477
Exercise of share options TR
(Note a) (HEa) - 42,330 - 423
Issue of new shares upon (A it i B2 17 5 AR 9
rights issue (Note b) (Biatb) - 590,003 - 5,900
Issue of consideration shares i Wi — BB A &
in relation to acquisition of TR ERHD
a subsidiary (Note c) (B c) — 1,500,000 - 15,000
Placing of new shares (=230 a)
(Note d) (#izd) 536,000 - 5,360 -
At 31 December ®+=ZBA=+—H 3,216,006 2,680,006 32,160 26,800

190 ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

On 19 June 2015, 22 June 2015 and 30 June 2015,
11,660,000, 24,290,000 and 6,380,000 new ordinary
shares were allotted and issued at an exercise
price of HK$0.69 per share respectively pursuant
to the exercise of share options granted under the
Company’s share option scheme.

On 24 August 2015, the Company allotted and
issued 590,003,243 new ordinary shares at a
subscription price of HK$0.70 per share by way of
rights to the qualifying shareholders of the Company
on the basis of one new ordinary share to every one
existing ordinary share held on 28 July 2015. The net
proceeds from the rights issue of HK$403,172,000
were used for settling part of the consideration for
the acquisition of the entire issued shares in and the
shareholder’s loan due by Smart Title on 6 October
2015.

On 6 October 2015, the Company allotted and
issued 1,500,000,000 new ordinary shares at an
issue price of HK$0.70 per share to the shareholders
of Huayi Tencent pursuant to the exercise of the
share entitlement note issued to Huayi Tencent
in satisfaction of part of the consideration for the
acquisition of the entire issued shares in and the
shareholder’s loan due by Smart Title. The fair value
of each new ordinary share is HK$0.485, which is
based on the closing price of HK$0.485 per share as
quoted on the Stock Exchange on 6 October 2015.
Details of the acquisition are set out in note 42 to
the consolidated financial statements.

On 18 February 2016, the Company allotted and
issued 536,000,000 new ordinary shares at a price of
HK$0.125 per share to five individual investors, who
are independent third parties, and one corporation
investor, whose ultimate beneficial owner is an
independent third party, by way of placing of new
shares under general mandate. The net proceeds
from the placing of HK$64,486,000 were fully utilised
for financing the granting of two new loans pursuant
to the loan agreements dated 19 February 2016 and
23 May 2016.

33. & (&)

(b)

R-ZE—RFRATHAE - ZZ—HEFR
B-+-—HER=-Z—FHEAXB=+H"
BREXRNATBERESETEERZER
¥+ 7 5111,660,000 f% ~ 24,290,000 A% &
6,380,000 B3 E BIRIZEIR0.698 T2
TEERERET -

RZE-FFENA=Z+HEH  X2QF
BERIIOBT2RBER R R 1T
590,003,243 EZEIR - EERZNZ
ZE-AFtA-+N\NBEEE—RREELE
BRER -—BRIZTBERETHE - #RAT
B FRIE HEE 40 403,172,000 8 Tt A 1S
EBR=Z—HF+ A/<HYE Smart Title
ZEBERTROREEIZBRRERZ
D RAE o

N-ZE—RF+AAH  BETEOESE
BT ROESZZE  RERKR0.70%
TZBETEEEEREM 2R RE R BT
1,500,000,000 i #T Z WAL - LUBE W EE
Smart Title 2ZIEHITRIOREE X 2
BREFZDBHONRE -ERFEERZA
FEA04858 NER=-ZF—HE+
BARBERATS®2 WM ESR0.485%
o BENBEE HERNGE MER
KHFEE42 o

RZZB-—REZA+NB  AAFRE—
BIREUREHBRH 2 XNIRER0.125
8 T 2 B 1% B % & 3 17 536,000,000 f%
FEERFRBENREZ(BBILE=
FIR—BATEREE(HBRKREZHEE
ABBUE=ZA)BEZMEREFE
64,486,000 8 TR B AEREBEBRHAZ
E-—REZAT+HhhBER=ZZE—X"EHA
=R ERBEBAIREMEFE

=)
o
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34. TRADE PAYABLES 34. EZEMARE
2016 2015
—E—-REF —E2-EF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Trade payables B 5 ENFIE 36,532 40,220

=

35. DEPOSITS RECEIVED, ACCRUALS AND 35. clike ESTERAREMESR
OTHER PAYABLES b |
2016 2015
—RE —ZE-hF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Deposits received B¢ 2,205 2 356
Accruals FEstE R 42,881 21,903
Other payables H fth FE (S FRIB 214,081 229,050
259,167 253,309
Less: other payables classified as B D E%JQFMLEJEEZ
non-current liabilities EMEﬁ (85,670) (92,290)
173,497 161,019

The following is an aging analysis of trade

BRZAMIINBERAR2EZEN

payables at the end of the reporting period FIBZRER DT
presented based on the invoice dates:
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-hEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FBT
0 - 30 days 0Z30H 3,255 13,819
31 - 60 days 312 60H 3,681 12,500
61 - 90 days 61 290 H 9,385 4,661
91 - 120 days 91 £120H 6,525 4,894
Over 120 days 120 A £ 13,686 4,346
36,532 40,220
The average credit period on purchase of goods BEERREREBEZEHEEHAE120
and services is 120 days. The Group has financial KXo AREBCEREREKLEERE
risk management policies in place to ensure that DR EENRERGEEEEEER
all payables are settled within the credit time EfE .

frame.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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36. PROMISSORY NOTES 36. AL EE
2016 2015
—E-XEF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET

At 1 January H—H—H 30,000 6,069

Imputed interest on promissory notes  EREE 2 HEFE - 351

Repayment of promissory notes ARRBER(MiTa)

(Note a) - (6,420)
Issue of promissory note (Note b) BITERRER(KZED) - 30,000
At 31 December Rt+t=-—BA=+—H 30,000 30,000
Notes: Kiat -

(@) Two promissory notes issued by SkyNet in the @ MEEHEXT2MEASLBESR
aggregate principal amount of HK$4,028,000 and 4,028,000 7t K% 2,392,00078 Jt 2 & X,
HK$2,392,000 were matured on 30 June 2015. EEER-E—FHFEANA=THIE - &
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Z-E-—FF+-_A=+—HIEE
guaranteed profit was fulfilled by China Honest EBRFEMEEK s 2ERBARRRD
Enterprises Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of X¥ERATERK  RAREECR=-_ZE—F
SkyNet, and the promissory notes were fully repaid FRA=1THZEEE-
on 30 June 2015.

(b) On 12 November 2015, the Company issued a by RZZE—FHF+-—B+ZH > ZA2QFMH
promissory note of HK$30,000,000 to Gome Finance BEXcrmMEERARATEEZSE |,
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Gome Finance”, formerly AMBERIZEZERAERAR)RTEAHREE
known as Sino Credit Holdings Limited) as part of 30,000,000 7T » 1EA WS Best Volume
the consideration for the acquisition of the entire ZEMBEBRITBRAZIBHNAE - ZEHE
issued share capital of Best Volume. The promissory BAGRE EERBNAREEEESRTRE
note is non-interest bearing, unsecured and maturing AREBEEMAZAFRNEBRNRPEERE
within three business days after the date of a final BMTHSEEMTEIBFEZRENE
and effective judgement or an effective and binding ([BMNYEDEEEYNETETREZ
settlement agreement of the lawsuit between the FAAESRARBRHARIFTEMR A
Group and a construction engineering company in HWROZNEHRE=FAELEBREE -

respect of not paying certain payment under the
construction contract of the Group’s investment
properties located at No. 33 Nonglinxia Road, Yuexiu
District, Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, the PRC
(the “Guangzhou Property”).

KERRABRAT
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37. DEFERRED REVENUE

QDDDDDW_ WO

) ) )Notes to the Consolldated FlnanC|aI Statements-;

—ANEFTZA=+—HUEFE

2016 2015
—B-ARF —E-hF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1 January MR—HB—H - 24,000
Sales contracts entered into during the ANEEITV ZHEEY
year (Note a) (it a) - 33,767
Revenue recognised upon the REZEERERER RS
provision of therapy services (M&tb)
(Note b) - (30,126)
Revenue recognised upon expiry of ENEEEEREMERR
prepaid treatment packages WA Ktz e)
(Note c) - (2,638)
Revenue recognised for sales and EEIAEERBEEZER
redemptions of beauty products A E - (144)
Refunds of treatment packages EBEEZERA(Witd)
(Note d) - (303)
Derecognition upon deemed disposal RREHE—RBEKHE A 76
of a subsidiary (note 43) IR (ML 43) - (24,556)

At 31 December

R+=—A=+—H

Notes:

=
Hlt

194

(a)

The amounts represent receipts from provision of
therapy services to clients during the year which
were to be settled via credit cards, Electronic
Payment System, cash and instalment payment
arrangement.

The amounts represent revenue recognised in profit
or loss as a result of therapy services rendered to
clients during the year ended 31 December 2015.

The amounts represent revenue recognised in profit
or loss for prepaid service packages expired in
accordance with the contractual service periods
stipulated in the respective sales contracts, which
mainly last for three months to two years from the
invoice date of the sales contracts.

The amounts represent refunds of treatment
packages as a result of certain clients’ claims
in relation to treatment outcome assessed with
reference to individual physical conditions and
treatment progress on a case-by-case basis.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2016

(a)

(b)

(d)

ZERBEF AR F R A EE R W
2B ZEREEBERF  EFXA
i RERIHMARZHES -

ZEeBEEREEZE-_ZE-—HF+ A
=t+—BLFERFEFRHEZEREmN
BmRERWE -

ZeHEERBEBHEESNRENELOR
K (FEABHEESNZHEAHEST
“EREME) REERZEMNERSE
FRNRBERERWE °

ZEREETEFPREREER(K2EZE
ASBRRREREEMREREELETF
) RHEFARMEI R EEERRN °
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AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE

Detail of amount due to an associate is as
follows:

ey gy o A S W

D U[“ V_"__"Jr__rf_n':*. 000
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38. B —EHE N RIE
FE1 — RSB A =)

RIBZHBMOT ¢

2016 2015

—E—RE —E—FE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FBT

China Hong Kong Money hBE 991 —

The amount due to an associate is unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

F&ﬁ—%ﬁﬁﬁ*#"

RIEBEERT 2L

BANK BORROWINGS 39. RITER
2016 2015
—E-RF —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Secured bank borrowings SRR ITES 145,081 184,007
Carrying amounts repayable: REERAME :
Within one year —FHUR 27,203 29,054
More than one year, but not —FULEFBBME
exceeding two years 27,203 29,054
More than two years, but not MELLERBBRE
exceeding five years 81,608 87,161
Over five years AEUE 9,067 38,738
145,081 184,007
Less: amounts shown under current B ETARBEEZ IR
liabilities (27,203) (29,054)
Amounts shown under non-current FAERBEBEZR
liabilities 117,878 154,953

Bank borrowings are carrying floating interest
rate at the benchmark interest rate of The
People’s Bank of China upward by 10% per
annum, secured by the Guangzhou Property and
maturing on 21 April 2022.

Bank borrowings are denominated in RMB.

RITERERTEARRBITEERRNF
FZEA10% 2FEFHE » JTHEMYEE
HKHEYR B _FNB -+ —HEH -

RITIERAARESHE -

KIEREE IR EGRAA
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195



29966606 0IMne 8 0e pwf%fﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁw

7( WFV—NT("(_V OO0 fa e R 1 . )

) Notes to the Consolldated FlnanC|aI Statements
BAMBERME

For.the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZLE—NF+ A =+—HILFEZ

40. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 40. EEBIEEE BE
For the purpose of presentation in the ARZVRNGEMBRRER & TELER
consolidated statement of financial position, EEERAME T UES - M B®E
certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have Ms @ UTHELEFRBEEGR DM :
been offset. The following is the analysis of the
deferred tax balances for financial reporting
purposes:
2016 2015
—E-REF —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Deferred tax assets BEEBIRERE 4,738 3,792
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE (339,398) (364,612)
(334,660) (360,820)
The followings are the major deferred tax UTATECRRAELHEEBREE
liabilities and assets recognised and movements REZT :
thereon:
Fair value
Revaluation adjustment  Amortisation
of investment on acquisition  of operating
properties  of subsidiaries lease Total
Eff  WBKEAF ge
REME ZOVERE REHH @t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THEr FiEx TEr TEr
At 1 January 2015 R-E-HF-f-H - - - -
Acquisition through business BRERAGIE
combination (note 42) (Wit 42) (106,423) (265,926) 3,543 (368,806)
(Charge)/credit to consolidated (B)/FAGEERE
statement of profit or loss (151) 1,399 322 1,570
Exchange alignment EHAZ 2,108 4,381 (73) 6,416
At 31 December 2015 and R=B-ff+-A=+-BkK
1 January 2016 —E2-"¥-B-H (104,466) (260,146) 3,792 (360,820)
(Charge)/credit to consolidated (M8)/;tABABHER
statement of profit or loss (933) 5,753 1,239 6,059
Exchange alignment EH A 6,695 13,699 (293) 20,101
At 31 December 2016 R=B-x~E+-A=1-AH (98,704) (240,694) 4,738 (334,660
At 31 December 2016, the Group had unused R-ZZ2—R"E+ZA=+—HB XxKE
estimated tax losses of HK$142,346,000 (2015: B ARE A BLIRE5 18 142,346,000 8
HK$156,243,000) available for offsetting against (= F — B F : 156,243,000 # 5t )
future taxable profits. No deferred tax asset AHIKE R RERMN G o BREE
has been recognised due to the unpredictability BEFE R 2N BMBERERELH
of future profit streams. The unrecognised tax HEE AERBDNEGEBUERBRE
losses could be carried forward indefinitely B MHRER-—ZEERIPP RS
except for the tax losses arising in the PRC of BEERAUKERRERN & F 2B
HK$26,283,000 (2015: HK$35,391,000) that will 1H 518 26,283,000 B L (ZFE—HF
expire in one to five years for offsetting against 35,391,000 T) °

future taxable profits.

196 ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 41. ARFIZHBEMRRERRRAEES
AND MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the (a) &2 R ZBEARRT
Company
2016 2015
—R"E —E—FE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
ASSETS
Non-current asset ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries KRB ARz R 2,520,592 2,462,042
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments FAfTRIE 502 436
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEY 167 302
669 738
Total assets EEH&AE 2,521,261 2,462,780
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable to 7~ T#A A E{L R
owners of the Company K f#E
Share capital [N 32,160 26,800
Reserves e 2,186,756 2,132,147
Total equity EREE 2,218,916 2,158,947
LIABILITIES =
Current liabilities REBAE
Accruals FEETE R 2,519 3,997
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASFE B X Bl TR I8 299,826 299,836
302,345 303,833
Total liabilities BEHHE 302,345 303,833
Total equity and liabilities ERkEERE 2,521,261 2,462,780
Net current liabilities REBEETFHE (301,676) (303,095)
Total assets less current liabilities ZEEZAERRBARE 2,218,916 2,158,947
On behalf of the board of directors: REEFTE
Lei Hong Wai Chan Kin Wah Billy
YA BR 2
Director Director
EE EE

KIEREIRERRATR
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 41, KRRz BERRKRERERE
AND MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE (#&)
COMPANY (Continued)
(b) Reserves of the Company (b) AQTFFEE
Equity-
settled
share-
based
Share  Contributed payment  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses Total
HRELE
2R
RiaE EdEs X iR @it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn FHr TEr FEr FEn
(Note a) (Note b)
(Hrita) (fiitb)

At 1 January 2015 RZE-RE-H-H 519,543 488,016 20,237 (25,001) 1,002,795
Loss and total comprehensive ~ RAEEEER2EEX

expense for the year &% - - - (27,002) (27,002)
Exercise of share options TiEmRmRE 33,724 = (4,942) - 28,782
Issue of new shares upon rights  ftRE&THRA

issue 407,102 - - - 407,102

Issue of consideration shares ~ FUE—-EHEAT
in relation to acquisition ofa ~ BTREREH

subsidiary 712,500 - - - 712,500
Share issue expenses RABIREY (9,830) - - - (9,830)
Recognition of equity-settled ~ BALRELEE 2 RH

share-based payment 5T - - 17,800 - 17,800
Release on lapse of equity- NREGEZROXH

settled share-based KR

payment - - (5,447) 5,447 -
At 31 December 2015 and RZE-1F

1 January 2016 +ZA=+-BEk

ZE-5E-A-H 1,663,039 488,016 27,648 (46,556) 2,132,147
Loss and total comprehensive ~ RAEEEER2EEX

expense for the year Lk - - - (4,517) (4,517)
Placing of new shares RERRH 61,640 - - - 61,640
Share issue expenses Ri#TER (2,514) - - - (2,514)
Release on lapse of equity- NRBEEZRB L

settled share-based RHERE

payment - - (17,800) 17,800 -
At 31 December 2016 RZE-5E

+=A=t+-H 1,722,165 488,016 9,848 (33,273) 2,186,756
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—=

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Reserves of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

(b)

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the difference between the
underlying net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired by the Company as at the date of the
group reorganisation and the nominal amount
of the Company’s share capital issued as
consideration for the acquisition as well as the
net amount transferred from share capital and
share premium to accumulated losses pursuant
to the special resolutions passed at the special
general meetings held on 22 August 2003, 30
April 2008 and 12 December 2011.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended), the Company shall not declare
or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out
of contributed surplus, if there are reasonable
grounds for believing that:

(i) the Company is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(i)  the realisable value of the Company’s
assets would thereby be less than its
liabilities.

Equity-settled share-based payment reserve
represents the fair value of services estimated
to be received in exchange for the grant of the
relevant share options over the relevant vesting
periods, the total of which is based on the fair
value of the share options at grant date. The
amount for each reporting period is determined
by spreading the fair value of the share options
over the relevant vesting periods (if any) and is
recognised as staff costs and related expenses
with a corresponding increase in equity-settled
share-based payment reserve.

e M BB R

—ANEFZA=+—HUEFE

M. ARAZHBRARRREEEE

(&)

(b) AR T (E)

pit :

(@)

BRER-ZZE=FNA=+=H"
—EENFONA=THRZ=F——
FTZA+T-RETZRREBAKX
ELEEBBZREIRER  AREZ
BERRREALTACKEBHE QR
REBEARMRzEERE  BEAR
REAERPBAERBRITRAZE
BEREBRARROEEBRE R
BREESFHRBER -

BREABRE-NN—FRREEKE
) MARRESEEAMEEE R
EUTER AR SRBARES
EIRSIRAT R E A 2K

() MFEHIIRERADEEERE
EEEERIMAE S

(i) AARAEEZATLRESE
REEME -

URESE 2RO XA EERE
@Ew%%ﬁ?ﬁbﬂ*ﬁ@ﬁﬂﬂxﬁéu?ﬁﬁy
REtEEERB 2D TE  HEH
DREBERERREBHZAFE
FAHE - R|MEM2ESHIBEBBE
REAFERERZBEH(WE)A
BoEE  AEIABETIMARME
B MURESE 2R K
B MEAEFEIE D o
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Acquisition of Smart Title

On 11 December 2014, the Company as
purchaser entered into a conditional sale
and purchase agreement (as amended and
supplemented by the supplemental sale and
purchase agreements dated 30 March 2015 and
12 June 2015 respectively) with Unique Talent
as vendor and Huayi Tencent as guarantor
relating to the proposed acquisition of the
entire shareholding interest in Smart Title
and the assignment of the shareholder’s loan
due by Smart Title at a total consideration of
HK$1,650,000,000, in which HK$600,000,000
was settled by cash and HK$1,050,000,000 was
settled by the issue of the share entitlement note.
The share entitlement note entitled the holder
thereof to call for the issue of 1,500,000,000
new ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01
each at an issue price of HK$0.70 per share.
The acquisition was completed on 6 October
2015. This acquisition has been accounted for
using the acquisition method. Smart Title is an
investment holding company and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the provision of
recreational and wellness services through the
management of the Club.

Smart Title was acquired for expanding the
Group’s property investment business into the
PRC.

HaMBGHRERME
For.the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZLE—NF+ A =+—HILFEZ
42, BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 42, EBES6
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE-_Z—HF+-A=+—HLEE

Y5 Smart Title

R-ZZE-—NE+=-A+—H X271
A E FEUnique TalentfE BB A R &
HEAIEAERAN LEKGESHE
(KR A=-ZE—RF=RA=+H
F—E-FERNA+T-ZHZHBZTES
WEAIET RER) AREBEEZW
BESmart Titlez 2 FEREZ R EZE
Smart Title &R ZBRREF - ?@ﬁtﬁ%
1,650,000,00078 7t @ & # 600,000,000
BT LLIR &€ 45 5 m 1,050,000,00058 JT
DBITROAEZZEEE ROBEZE
ERFEESEAEINEREZERO0.70
7B T 2 % {718 % 17 1,500,000,000 i% =
BREECOIB T ZALNAHEER -
WEEER-_ZE—HE+ASHAERK
ZWEBEEEFAWEE AR > Smart
Title%}””“} BARREMBLATEE
REZBEESFEEELRRER -

Smart Title # Y& LA R R EB R A
Y EREEF o

Consideration €18
HK$°000
FET
Cash consideration HERE 600,000
Issue of consideration shares (note 33) BITRERD (A7 33) 727,500
Total consideration BRE 1,327,500

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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42. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Continued)

Acquisition of Smart Title (Continued)

As part of the consideration for the acquisition of
the entire issued share in and the shareholder’s
loan due by Smart Title, 1,500,000,000 new
ordinary shares were allotted and issued to the
shareholders of Huayi Tencent pursuant to the
exercise of the share entitlement note issued to
Huayi Tencent. The fair value of the consideration
shares, determined using the quoted price
available at the date of the acquisition, amounted
to HK$727,500,000.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to
HK$6,425,000 have been excluded from the
consideration transferred and have been
recognised as expenses during the year ended
31 December 2015 within the administrative
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the
date of acquisition

42, (S0 (&)

BE_FT-AF+T-A=T—-RHLFE

(/IE
Y g Smart Title (&)

1€ & W B Smart Title 2 232 24T &
REEX cRRER 2B KRE
1,500,000,000 R FZERE RIBEITER
inﬁﬂ%uﬂﬁ’ﬂ—z}glfﬁ*gﬁm#ﬁaﬁﬁﬁ
TFEHEBAZRER - RERMBD 2R F
EBENANAWEEERH 2 UESHREME
E » £727,500,00058 5T ©

U B% 48 B8 X 4~ 6,425,0008 T F B IE &
BERER IERIALAGSERR
ZITHBE X 2B Z=E—HF+=A4
=+—HIEFEZHEX -

RUKBAHEKEBEEER EERERE

HK$°000

FET

Property, plant and equipment (note 18) M - BMERRME (ML 18) 423,922
Intangible assets (note 21) BILEE(MFE21) 996,050
Deferred tax assets (note 40) IEERIEEE (M2 40) 3,543
Inventories FE 9,285
Deposits, prepayment and other receivables  1&#%& - A 708 Kk H A FERFIE 82,929
Cash and cash equivalents ReEkREE F‘WZJ 54,522
Trade payables g5 EARIE (2,901)
Deposits received, accruals and other payables B UiE< - FEstE R R EMENTIE (250,637)
Tax payables FESBiE (70,854)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 40) EERIEE & (M 40) (265,926)
Shareholder’s loan RERE R (1,076,218)
Fair value of identifiable net liabilities assumed FiAIE A B EEFE 2 A FE (96,285)

KIEREE IR EGRAA
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42. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Continued)

Acquisition of Smart Title (Continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition of Smart Title

42, ¥ 806t (&)

ﬁ:l:—?

(/IE

EFF+ZA=+—-HLEFE

Y i Smart Title (#)

W i% Smart Title B4 2 BE

HK$’000
FET
Total consideration “mRE 1,327,500
Add: fair value of identifiable net liabilities o0 FREEAEEEREE
assumed NS 96,285
Less: shareholder’s loan assigned to B EBERETFAREBZRRER
the Group (1,076,218)
Goodwill arising on acquisition (note 22) WESEEE 2B (FZ22) 347,567

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Smart Title
because the cost of the combination included a
control premium. In addition, the consideration
paid for the combination effectively included
amounts in relation to the benefit of expected
synergies, revenue growth and future market
development of Smart Title. These benefits are
not recognised separately from goodwill because
they do not meet the recognition criteria for
identifiable intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition is
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Net cash outflow on acquisition of Smart Title

W B Smart Title EE 2B TIHNE G
RABEEGRERNE - i BE 6t
FIxftzREER LEESREDHE
M > Smart Title 2IRAEBRE R AKH
BRER2EHE HEMNZIEEEESD
HER BAEZSENEL TS AE5
B EEZERER

MEAWBEHEEL CHEERB T
£ o

W g Smart Title 2 3 2 71 1 E5E

HK$’000

FHET

Cash consideration paid 2NEENRE (600,000)
Less: deposit for investment B RERE 60,000
cash and cash equivalents acquired EWECEERESEEY 54,522

Net cash outflow WERHFEE (485,478)

202 ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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42. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Continued)

Acquisition of Smart Title (Continued)

Included in the profit for the year ended 31
December 2015 is HK$2,126,000 attributable to
the additional business generated by Smart Title.
Revenue from continuing operations for the year
includes HK$5,456,000 generated from Smart
Title.

Had the acquisition of Smart Title been
completed on 1 January 2015, total revenue
from continuing operations of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2015 would have
been HK$201,698,000 and profit for the year
ended 31 December 2015 would have been
HK$102,626,000. The pro-forma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily
an indication of revenue and results of operations
of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed
on 1 January 2015, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future results.

In determining the “pro-forma” revenue and profit
of the Group had Smart Title been acquired
at the beginning of 2015, the directors of the
Company have calculated depreciation of
property, plant and equipment acquired, and
amortisation of intangible assets acquired on
the basis of the fair values arising in the initial
accounting for the business combination rather
than the carrying amounts recognised in the pre-
acquisition financial statements.

42, (S0 (&)

BE_FT-HAF+T-A=T—-RLHFE

(/:E

Y g Smart Title (&)

BE-_Z—HRF+-A=+—HILEE
= A B 1 2,126,000 7% T 53 B 7 Smart
Title 2 HILEBEE - NFEERBIFE
KEEK 2R E F 5,456,000 5T J)
=4 B Smart Title ©

i YL BE Smart TitleE A= —H F —
B—HE/K G AIXAKEEBRZE=-Z—1F
+TZA=+T—HILEFERBFELSLHE
2B A& £201,698,000/8 7T ¢ M
@E_ —EF+ZA=+—-HLFE
= A i £ 102,626,000/8 T HEZEH
EM%% F—ERARBREREEIED
NR=-=E-—HRE—H— EE&Z%&T$
SEERFTSURERERXEZEE
TAEEAMAEBRREE 2 FER o

MR =ZF— 8 FF49E W HESmart
Title REEAEBEEZ JWARRF
B AARESCREKSH AL
HE 4 2 A F{E (M 36 3 7 U B A B 75 3R
RERAZEREBE)GTECRBYE - BE
REREZ2NERCWIBREEE 28 -

Xig "Bl"*?x BEHRAT
T—RFFIR
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42. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Continued)

Acquisition of Best Volume

On 7 September 2015, the Group as purchaser
entered into a conditional sale and purchase
agreement with Gome Finance as vendor
relating to the proposed acquisition of the
entire shareholding interest in Best Volume at
a total consideration of HK$400,000,000, in
which HK$370,000,000 was settled by cash
and HK$30,000,000 was settled by issue of a
promissory note. The acquisition was completed
on 12 November 2015. The acquisition has been
accounted for using the acquisition method. Best
Volume is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in property
investment.

Best Volume was acquired for expanding the
Group’s property investment business into the

42, (S0 (&)

ﬁ:l:—?

(/IE

EFF+ZA=+—-HLEFE

Y58 Best Volume

R-ZEBE-—FFNLBAtH AEBHEH
EFEBEEERERAERITLEGRY
EEWME NEEBEER &ﬂﬁBest
Volume 2 & 3 # Ik *Eﬁé  BMREA
400,000,000 jt © & 370,000,000
Bt JhHIE£EE 0 30,000,000 % T
DHBTERAZEEE - WESERZ
Z-hF+—A+ZHER  ZWRES
HEFAUWEEE AR ° Best Volume %
REZBRAGAREMNBAGRETEREY
ERE o

Best Volume WL E AR EB R
Bl EREE -

PRC.
Consideration 1t
HK$°000
FET
Cash consideration RERE 370,000
Issue of promissory note (note 36) BITHRNEEE (M 36) 30,000
Total consideration BRE 400,000

Acquisition-related costs amounting to
HK$615,000 have been excluded from the
consideration transferred and have been
recognised as expenses in the year ended
31 December 2015, within the administrative
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2016
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42. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Continued)

Acquisition of Best Volume (Continued)

42, (B BHE)

BE_T-HAF+T-A=T-RHLFE

(/IE

Y i Best Volume (#&)

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the RKERHEREEEREEHRERE
date of acquisition
HK$°000
FET
Investment properties (note 19) REMEMEZE19) 606,858
Trade receivables ES 996
Other receivables 22,745
Tax recoverable &
Cash and cash equivalents RERREZEY 8,023
Deposits received, accruals and other EU&?E@ s EETE AR H AL
payables (4,910)
Bank borrowings (190,191)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 40) L?RIEEE(/WH4O) (106,423)
Fair value of identifiable net assets acquired CUWIEBAHBIEETE 2N FE 337,101
Goodwill arising on acquisition of Best Volume Y #E Best Volume E4 2 EHE
HK$’000
FET
Total consideration AHIE 400,000
Less: fair value of identifiable net assets B BERBAEREEFEZ
acquired (337,101)
Goodwill arising on acquisition (note 22) WESEEE 2EHE(FZ22) 62,899

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Best Volume
because the cost of the combination included a
control premium. In addition, the consideration
paid for the combination effectively included
amounts in relation to the benefit of expected
synergies, revenue growth and future market
development of Best Volume. These benefits are
not recognised separately from goodwill because
they do not meet the recognition criteria for

identifiable intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition is

expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

U 8% Best VolumeEA 2 EEIHARE
PR EIEESEERS - i BE
R 2REER LE8FES RFEHH
E% % - Best Volume 2 I A & & &
RMBRRE2EHE HERNRIWMERY
EoMER BAZSFEALTFEY
AP BT EE 2RARER -

MEZEWEESEELE CEEESBT
HF o
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42. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Continued)

Acquisition of Best Volume (Continued)

Net cash outflow on acquisition of Best Volume

42, (B BE(E)

ﬁ:l:—?

(/IE

EFF+ZA=+—-HLEFE

Y i Best Volume (#&)

Wi Best Volume 2 3 % 7 1558

HK$°000

FET

Cash consideration paid 2NEERE (370,000)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired EWBzREREEEEY 8,023
Net cash outflow BEnHF5E (361,977)

Included in the profit for the year ended 31
December 2015 is HK$2,201,000 attributable
to the additional business generated by Best
Volume. Revenue from continuing operations for
the year includes HK$3,643,000 generated from
Best Volume.

Had the acquisition of Best Volume been
completed on 1 January 2015, total revenue
from continuing operations of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2015 would have
been HK$209,758,000, and profit for the year
ended 31 December 2015 would have been
HK$111,875,000. The pro-forma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily
an indication of revenue and results of operations
of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed
on 1 January 2015, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future results.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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BHE-_ZE—HF+-HA=1T—HLEE
&= A 'E R 2,201,000 78 JT 57 B A H Best
Volume EE 2 HIBEF - AEERBE
BEREEE 2INFEE F 3,643,0008 T
JyE 4 B Best Volume ©

{5 U B Best VolumeB R=—ZE—HF —
B—BRR > IXAEEEBEZE_Z—1F
+ZA=+-— Emirmaﬁ,ﬁ;,ﬁg%%
¥ 2 #AUW & £ 209,758,0008 T
BEZE_Z-—HAF+-A=+—HLEFE
A BE111,875,0008 T - HEEHR
EHz2E F—ERABREWEEED
R=-B-—FRE—-—A— Elmﬁlzzr%,RTﬁ
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43. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31 December 2016
China Hong Kong Money

On 21 December 2016, China Hong Kong Money
allotted and issued 1,000,000 new shares at
HK$1 each to an another shareholder of China
Hong Kong Money. Upon the allotment and issue
of the new shares, the Group’s shareholding
interest in China Hong Kong Money was diluted
from 60% to 30% and was deemed to dispose of
a 30% shareholding interest in China Hong Kong
Money. The deemed disposal was taken place on
21 December 2016.

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which
control was lost

43. HEKWB A =

BE_Z-—AF+-A=+—-HLEFE
HEE

RZE—R"E+ZAZ+—H  ##
ERHPBES —BERREZR BT
1,000,000 R ER1BITHIRMD - BER
BITHRAMDE  AEBRPBEZER
ERBE0%HMEE30% » WRIEHER
FEBE30%ERiER - RIFEHESHE
REZEBE—RE+ZHA=+—HZERK°

REZZHEFEERBEBZGH

HK$’000

FET

Amount due from a shareholder Bl — B RERRIE 991
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 991

Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary

BIEH & — RIH B 2 5] 2 i 25

HK$’000

FET

Fair value of investment retained EREBEREZATE 600
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE (991)
Non-controlling interests FEEZRER 399
Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary RIEHE—BEMBE ARz W& 8

For the year ended 31 December 2015
SkyNet

On 6 November 2015, SkyNet allotted and issued
345,000,000 new ordinary shares and 30,000,000
new convertible preferred shares to six
subscribers. Upon the allotment and issue of the
new ordinary shares, the Group’s shareholding
interests in SkyNet was diluted from 70.18% to
12.51% and was deemed to dispose of a 57.67%
shareholding interest in SkyNet. The deemed
disposal was taken place on 6 November 2015.

BE-_Z-HAFt-RA=T-HLEE
Az T

RZE—FFE+—HAH MZE=HFEMD
N BB AL K #17345,000,000 i%
¥ 8 IR B% 19 &2 30,000, OOOHﬁﬂéﬁ—Hﬁ’Hx
BER FERBITHZERKRME
AEBRMEEH 2FRERB70.18%
HEZ12.51% @ WIRIEHERMZE BB
ZE57T67T%EHERER - REHESER
“E-RF+—HAARNHREK-

KIEREE IR EGRAA
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43. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 43. HEMBE D F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE_FT-HAF+T-A=T-RHLFE

(Continued) (&
SkyNet (Continued) MG (E)
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which RELEZEHBEIGEEERBEZDH
control was lost

HK$’000

FET

Property, plant and equipment (note 18) M MERRE (M 18) 10,608
Gooduwill (note 22) BB (Mt 22) 89,265
Restricted bank deposits ZIRHRITER 12,656
Trade receivables g 5 EWRIR 3,307
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables &% ~ BB R H A FERFRIE 14,986
Inventories 7E8 4,190
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEY 161,878
Trade payables B 5 EARIE (865)
Accruals and other payables FEstE AR HMmEARIE (17,269)
Receipts in advance FE U R IR (144,602)
Tax payables Fsﬁﬁlﬁ (2,174)
Other borrowings HAt a5 (14,226)
Obligation under finance leases RMEREER (12)
Deposits from customers BEFZ® (46)
Deferred revenue (note 37) EREW S (M 37) (24,556)
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 93,140

Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary

RIEH & — BB 2 7l 2 Wi

HK$°000

FET

Fair value of investment retained ERBREZAFE 336,000

Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE (93,140)
Release of exchange reserve upon deemed  ERIEHE—RBKHBA I mMED

disposal of a subsidiary R (59)

Non-controlling interests FEIE R 2,267

Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary RIEHE—BHRBARZIE 245,072
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43. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Continued)

SkyNet (Continued)

Net cash outflow arising on deemed disposal of
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- IO O
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e M BB R

—ANEFZA=+—HUEFE

43. HEWB QT (&)

BE-Z-AFT-A=+T—-HLHFE
(/IE
MZET I (E)

RIEH EMZET BEL 2 H L0 FH

SkyNet
HK$’000
FET
Cash consideration received EWRERE —
Less: Cash and cash equivalents disposed of i - EHECZRERREZEY (161,878)
Net cash outflow RERHFHE (161,878)
44, COMMITMENTS 44, &I
(a) Lease commitments (a) FHERIE
The Group as lessee KEBERAFAA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group RIFERR » AEBZ T A HEHEKZ

had commitments for future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

EHERAREZARREAETR
ZEBBERMT

2016 2015

—E—-REF —E-FF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Within one year —F PR 13,384 14,253
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFLF

(BEEEME) 48,851 53,148

Over five years HEFELE 622,789 678,313

685,024 745,714

Operating lease payments represent rentals
payable by the Group for its office premises
and the operating rights in respect of (i) the
rights to manage and operate the Club up
to 31 December 2051 and (ii) the rights to
develop and operate the Subject Land and
the rights to manage the properties erected
on the Subject Land up to 30 January 2062.
Leases in respect of the office premises
are mainly negotiated for an average term
of three years and rentals are fixed for an
average of three years. The Group does
not have an option to purchase the leased
premises and the operating rights in respect
of the Club and the Subject Land at the
expiry of the lease period.

REHENREAEERERQIE
MERKEERE  BOBE-FH—
F+ZA=+-—HZAEERKE
SRR (NVBE=ZTR-F—
B=1tHzA  RBREEEEM
"o REEZTIRMREEEEYHE
ZEANENZHE -WAEWEZ
HYETRBRE2EBFHR=F
MmBEFEIF=FFE - AEEIL
BEERNEEHERGIBEEE
EERSEMRIBHR QLR
BB
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44, COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

—ANEFTZA=+—HUEFE

44, FEYE(HE)

Lease commitments (Continued) (a) FHEERIEE)
The Group as lessor AEFEZLH A
Rental income from investment properties FRARMZBENVEREMEEZ
and the assets of the Club earned during HELW A E45,171,0008 T (==
the year was HK$45,171,000 (2015: — R :9,099,000/87T) ° FIEAR
HK$9,099,000). All of the Group’s investment SEZREMEDFEHRERE -
properties are held for rental purposes. TEHREYETFEEEL431%
The investment properties are expected —E-HF:061%)2HEWE
to generate rental yields of 4.31% (2015: o REVMENKRRENFHEBE
0.61%) on an ongoing basis. The investment *”#H}E(:i BEAF) e
properties have committed tenants for the
next eight years (2015: nine years).
At the end of the reporting period, the Group RI|BEBRR XEEFR T ARE
had contracted with tenants for the following REENREEFFTY ¢
future minimum lease payments:
2016 2015
ZEB-RF —Z-hfF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Within one year —FR 24,219 27,002
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZERF
(BRERMEF) 85,723 101,757
Over five years HEUE 47,170 65,624
157,112 194,383
Other commitments (b) HtzHEE

At 31 December 2016, the Group had other
commitments of HK$58,190,000 (2015:
HK$52,329,000) relating to the capital
expenditures for the Subject Land which
were contracted but not provided for.
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45. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by
the shareholders on 12 December 2011, the
Company adopted a new share option scheme
(the “Option Scheme”) to replace the share
option scheme adopted on 21 January 2002. The
Option Scheme will expire on 11 December 2021.
The purpose of the Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant share options to selected
eligible participants as incentives or rewards for
their contribution or potential contribution to the
Group.

Under the Option Scheme, eligible participants
are full time or part time employees of the Group
(including any directors, whether executive or
non-executive and whether independent or not,
of the Company or any subsidiary); any holder
of any securities issued by the Group; and any
business or joint venture partners, contractors,
agents or representatives, consultants, advisers,
suppliers, producers or licensors, customers,
licensees (including any sub-licensee) or
distributors, landlords or tenants (including any
sub-tenants) of the Group or any person who, in
the sole discretion of the board of directors of
the Company, has contributed or may contribute
to the Group.

The overall limit on the number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all share options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company must not exceed 30% of the shares
in issue from time to time. Subject to the above
overall limit, the total number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all share options
to be granted under the Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company
must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the
shares in issue as at the date of approval of the
Option Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”).
The Company may refresh the Scheme Mandate
Limit subject to approval of the shareholders
in general meeting, provided that the Scheme
Mandate Limit as refreshed must not exceed 10%
of the shares in issue as at the date of approval
of the refreshed limit.

/|

45. URERE ZROXARZR S

RERRR-"ZF-——F+-A+-HE
BreEBRRR  ARARMA—IAHE
BRAETE(THBRESTE D UBRAR=
EE_F At -HEMZBREST
g BREABAEN _-"Z_—-F+=A
tT—HE®R BREFEEESAAT
TRAEECAERSEERHBRE
EABREHAEEZEMUVELETER 2
REIRN -

REBRETE  SERBEED/LE
BBy RBES (BERQXA[EM
MEBRARZEMES  TwHTRED
T RAWREBY)  AEBR#T
FAEZ2EMAFEEA RAKE 2
AXBREERHE - ABH - REHIAK
*Ef - EAA HEF RAEBH
REA-FFP EREABEEMER
ERBEN)SHBRITH  FEREF (B
EAIEEF) XA LT ESS2ED
BRAECERAEHAEEEHER 2
EMAL e

RIOERBEREFERAQIEME
fERETEREMERITEZFERE
REETFHRTZRMOEE ZE LR -
TEBBABERITRMZ30% - £ £
MEBRERIERRT » RITERBER
REET 81 & A 2 B E A H 4th B8 IR A2 51 8148
FRECFHEBREZTTFRIT2RAG
wmE . SHAESEBBRETEELE
EHERITRHA210% ([T B #ER
HD ERRASEEREH#ESL K
DR EHTEREREE MEHEZ
TERERBATLSEBEEHREAELE
EHERITRMEZ210% °

MBI AR AT
B REEH
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45. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Unless approved by the shareholders, the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the shares options granted to each
eligible participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period
up to and including the date of grant must
not exceed 1% of the shares in issue. Where
any grant of share options to a substantial
shareholder of the Company or an independent
non-executive director or their respective
associates and if such grant would result in the
total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the share options granted and
to be granted (including share options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of grant to
such person (i) representing in aggregate over
0.1% of the shares in issue and (ii) having an
aggregate value, based on the closing price of
the shares at the date of each grant, in excess
of HK$5,000,000, then the proposed grant must
be approved by the shareholders at a general
meeting, with voting to be taken by way of a poll.

A non-refundable nominal consideration of
HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee upon
acceptance of the grant of share options. Share
options may be exercised at any time during the
period to be determined and identified by the
board of directors, but in any event no later than
ten years from the date of grant but subject to
the early termination of the Option Scheme.

The exercise price is determined by the board of
directors of the Company, provided that it shall
be not less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant; (ii) the average closing prices of the shares
for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of
the Company’s shares.

At 31 December 2016, the Company has not
adopted any share option scheme other than the
Option Scheme.
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45. LUREBE 2RD XA 2R 5 (/)

BRIFERRME  BRBERHER (8
BZRA)LEM12EABER 8858
ERSBEMIEERT 2BRERE
BETERERTEZBRE) RECHTR
BTRITZROBE  TEBBERT
Btrz1% ° B A DB EZRREE
NFHTESIREREZ2BHEALR
HEMBRE  MXEEEBRESLS
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ZB)LEM1I2ERBHER - RITES
RHESFREZBRE(REBESTE
AERERITEZBRE) RS RTRS
FROIZBROVEBHHEHBEBERTR
MRHBZ201% > RI)EROHNRZIRE
A8z W mEE - #/E81 5,000,000
B IRBRHEARBRRRRRAE
EURERRT AL o
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45. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 45. IRBEEEZBRBIRZRX G (&
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Details of specific categories of share options are BEERIEBRECFBNT :
as follows:
Share
option type Date of grant Exercise period Exercise price
BRESER REAH 1T TEE
2007A 22 March 2007 22 March 2007 to 21 March 2017 HK$1,470.308*
—EELF=A=+=H “EELHF=A-+=HE 1,470.308 & T*
—E2—+tH=fF=+—H
2007B 31 May 2007 31 May 2007 to 30 May 2017 HK$2,188.687*
“EZtH¥HA=+-H C—ZEZLFHRA=t—-HZ 2,188.687 8 0"
“E-tFHA=TH
2014A 8 January 2014 8 January 2014 to 7 January 2015 HK$0.84
—E-NE-ANE —Z-NE-ANRE-Z-HF—-A+tA 0.84 87T
2014B 2 September 2014 2 September 2014 to 1 September 2015 HK$0.655*
—E2-MENAZA TE-MENAZREZZ-AFNA—H 0.655 87T
2015A 25 November 2015 25 November 2015 to 24 November 2016 HK$0.237
“E2-HE+-A=-tEH ZEB-AF+—-A=-+EHHE 0.237 87T
—E-AFt-A=t+HmA
2015B 9 December 2015 9 December 2015 to 8 December 2016 HK$0.2532
—E-AF¥+ZANA “E-RF+ZANBZE 0.2532& T
ZE-RFE+ZANE
* The exercise prices are adjusted to reflect the effect * TREEEEHFEURBR -ZE—FHE/
of rights issue completed on 20 August 2015. A=+ HZR RS2 o
During the year ended 31 December 2016, no BE—_ZEZ—XR"Et+-_HA=+—-BLHE
share options was granted. B SEFEHERE -
During the year ended 31 December 2015, share BE-Z-—HF+=-A=+—HLHF
options were granted on 25 November 2015 and E BER=-Z—AHAF+—A=-+EBEK
9 December 2015. The estimated fair values of “E-hAFEt+ZANBREERE - R
the share options granted on those dates are ZERHREzEREZATAFESD
HK$3,313,000 and HK$14,487,000 respectively. 71173 3,313,000 /& T & 14,487,000 B T ©
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45. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The fair values of the share options granted
on 9 December 2015 and 25 November 2015
were measured, using a binomial option pricing
model, by Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited. The
variables and assumptions used in computing
the fair value of the share options are based on
the directors’ best estimate. The value of a share
option varies with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions. The following table lists
the inputs to the model used:

—ANEFTZA=+—HUEFE

45. URERE 2RO X R 2R 5 (&

R-ZB-AF+T-ANBR=-ZF-—51F
T-B-+hHARHZEREZLATE
THRPRFEERDIARMA AR
EERAUFTE - AEBREZAFEMR
A28 RBRIIUNESZREMTS
EE - BRE2BEARTETEIBR
R2BEMAE R AR 2EE - TR

MR R AR

Share option type

BRESR

2015B 2015A
Share option life 1 year 1 year
85 i 1 58 1 16 16
Grant date share price HK$0.235 HK$0.236
R ABRE 0.23578 7T 0.236 8T
Exercise price HK$0.2532 HK$0.237
TEE 0.2532 & T 0.237 /&7t
Expected volatility (%) 77.91% 75.38%
TR IR (%)
Expected life of share options 1 year 1 year
BB IR FE 2 TR A R AR 16 16
Dividend yield (%) 0% 0%
REWKEE (%)
Risk-free interest rate (%) 0.68% 0.67%

32 [ B R 2= (%)

Expected volatility was determined by using
historical volatility of the Company’s share price
over the previous one year.

The fair value of the share options granted
during the year ended 31 December 2015 was
HK$17,800,000 which had been expensed as
equity-settled share-based payment expenses.
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45. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 45. IRBEEEZBRBIRZRX G (&
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
For equity-settled share-based payments with EJ@{EELAthﬁ@EzﬁE L R EEE
parties other than employees, the Group has ZBROERME  HREAQXREERAE
rebutted the presumption that the fair values of HE%%QQ%ZEI;E ERSEHETE K&
the services received can be estimated reliably as BEHEMAERKE AT EREA EHb G
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, FF2BER e Atk REBRBRES A
the fair value of the services cannot be reliably SERHEEHRRBEER  2REA=-E
measured. Accordingly, the Group measured ANAEEEERNSHZ2EREBREZ
the services received from these parties, with DNIE TERZEEE L ES ZRE -
reference to the fair values of the share options
granted using the binomial option pricing model,
at the date these parties rendered related
services to the Group.
The following table discloses movements of the TREEAQAEE - EERERARSE
Company’s share options held by directors of the AFFERAGBIREZ ST !
Company, employees and consultants during the
year:
Number of share options
ERESE
Outstanding at Granted Exercised Lapsed Adjusted  Outstanding at
1 January during during during for rights 31 December
Share option type 2016 the year the year the year issue 2016
R=B-7% N R-B-5E
AH ] i ) B4E  TAZt-8
EREER HATE REARKE RERTTE REREH fEitE% WATE
2007A 4,835 - - - - 4,835
20078 25,309 - - - - 25,309
2015A 54,700,000 - - (54,700,000) - -
2015B 267,800,000 - - (267,800,000) - -
322,530,144 - - (322,500,000) - 30,144
Exercisable at the end of
the reporting period
REEHRTFAE 30,144
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.44 - - HK$0.25 - HK$2,073.46
nETIGEE 044 %7 - - 02587 - 2073467
IE kﬂ]k?x‘éﬁﬁﬂ/_\j 2-15
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45. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 45, URBEECROIRZR S (&
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Oc

HELT-AEt—f=f—ALEE

Number of share options

BREHA
Outstanding at Granted Exercised Lapsed Adjusted  Outstanding at
1 January during during during forrights 31 December
Share option type 2015 the year the year the year issue 2015
R=Z-1% R-E-1fF
-A-A AR +=A=t-H
BREER I RATE RERKH RERTTE RERXHN feiti BB I R AT
2007A 4,588 - - - 247 4,835
2007B 24,013 - - - 1,296 25,309
2014A 26,360,000 - - (26,360,000) - -
2014B 46,220,000 - (42,330,000) (4,100,060) 210,060 -
2015A - 54,700,000 - - - 54,700,000
2015B — 267,800,000 - - — 267,800,000
72,608,601 322,500,000 (42,330,000  (30,460,060) 211,603 322,530,144
Exercisable at the end of the
reporting period
REZHRTF7E 322,530,144
Weighted average exercise price HK$1.61 HK$0.25 HK$0.69 HK$0.82 - HK$0.44
MEFHETEE 1.61%7% 0.25:8% 0.69787 0.82:8% - 0.448%
At 31 December 2016, the Company had 30,144 RZEBE-X"F+ZA=+—-RB XA
share options outstanding (2015: 322,530,144), AAE30,144 D ERTHEZERE(ZSE
representing 0.001% (2015: 12.03%) of the — B :322,530,144) ' {5 XD T E
issued share capital of the Company at that date. HE s ?)‘_I B& 40.001% (=& — HF :
12.083%) °
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46. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

47.

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group has
set up a defined contribution retirement scheme,
the MPF Scheme for all the eligible employees of
the Group. The Group did not provide retirement
benefits for its employees prior to set up of the
MPF Scheme.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employees are
required to contribute 5% of their monthly
salaries up to a maximum of HK$1,500 per
employee and they can choose to make
additional contributions. The employer’s monthly
contributions are calculated at 5% of each
employee’s monthly salaries up to a maximum of
HK$1,500 (the “Mandatory Contribution”). The
employees are entitled to 100% of the Mandatory
Contribution upon their retirement at the age of
65 years old, death or total incapacity.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31
December 2016 are set out as follows:
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46. R KR FHE

47.

BE-ZZZHF+-F-H AEEH
FEEEREERY —HAEHICRIK
8 — BmESEE RRYBESE
%’ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁéﬁfﬁﬂ RAKE
|| o

REBETTE  BEHAREAHZ
5% (LEBHEEHRZ 1,500 8 T AR)E
HER - WAREFREMER - BE
BRAZHREBRERAFH 25% (&S
1,500 8 T RR)FTE(MABIMEHER]D -
BEARNESmENR - HHHTRERET
fERE D s 2 BUEBURFIMEHERK o

MEBQRZFE

RARAMBLRAN=F—
=t—HAZHEBHINNOT :

~NE+ZA

Class of Proportion of
Country/place of shares held/  ownership interest and Issued and fully
incorporation or registered voting power held by paid share capital/
Name of subsidiary operation capital the Company registered capital  Principal activities
B AR BERR,/ ADARE2RERERER CRORBERE/
MEARER feEvER /4% EARRKER RRZELH R TERHE
2016 2015
“E-XF —E-IF
% %
Adelio Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands  Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Investment holding
ABRLRS 5B E REER
Angel Wish Group Limited  British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Investment holding
B e LE 1%% RELZR
Bayhood No. 9 Co* The PRC Registered 100 100 RMB50,000,000 Provision of recreational
EHH AT hE it AR®50,000,0007  and wellness
services through the
management of a
membership-based
golf club and resort
FEEREsHEEAR
SRR E R AR
ERRRERS
Best Season Holdings British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 75 75 US$100 Dormant
Corp. EBELHS &E 100%7% TEEX
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47. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 47. B RARZFHE (&)
(Continued)
Class of Proportion of
Country/place of shares held/  ownership interest and Issued and fully
incorporation or registered voting power held by paid share capital/
Name of subsidiary operation capital the Company registered capital  Principal activities
B BERB/ RARREZRERERS CRORBERE/
MEARER BEvExR/HE  FRRAEH R EELA BLIEN TEER
2016 2015
:g_ /;\ﬁ 2 £ EE
% %
Best Volume British Virgin Islands  Ordinary 100 100 USS1 Investment holding
B aeids EE 1£% REER
Bluelagoon Investment British Virgin Islands  Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Investment holding, sale
Holdings Limited ABRUEE L@ 1%5n of financial assets,

distribution of films
and sub-licensing of
film rights

REER  HESHE
B BOEYRER

EYRTE
China Jiuhao Health Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$1 Investment holding
Industry Group Limited ~ &8 L& 187 REER
HEIFREEXER
BRAF
Eternity Finance Group British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 100 100 HK$100,000,000 Investment holding
Limited ABRUEE Eri 100,000,000 70 REER
KERBEEBRAR
Gainful Fortune Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 99.99 99.99 HK$160,000,100 Dormant
ABRUHE 5B 160,000,100 ~ EEE¥
Golden Stone British Virgin Islands  Ordinary 100 100 USS$1 Investment holding
Management Limited ~ KBRZEES L EF REER
(“Golden Stone”)
Hong Kong Builders Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$2 Money lending
Finance Limited B LB 28T &
BEUBERAR
K E G Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Investment holding
ABRLES LE (3 REER
K E Group Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$10,000 Design and sale of
EEEBERAR 5A i 10,0008 7T jewelry products
and sale of precious
stones
Rt RBEREERIAR
HEER
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47. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 47. B AR ZFH15(#&)
(Continued)
Class of Proportion of
Country/place of shares held/  ownership interest and Issued and fully
incorporation or registered voting power held by paid share capital/
Name of subsidiary operation capital the Company registered capital  Principal activities
Gl KERB,/ KAABEZRERRES CRORBERE/
MEAR LR feEzER /4% EARRKER REFELH B TERHE
2016 2015
ZE-AF ZB-1F
% %
KEG ME DMCC United Arab Ordinary 100 — AED50,000 Design and sale of
Emirates =G 50,000 BB @AE  jewelry products
MAREAERE and sale of precious
stones
Rt REEREEMIR
#EBA
Legend Rich Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 100 100 USS$1 Investment holding
ABRLES HE 1%% REER
Max Winner Investments ~ Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$1 Investment holding
Limited &8 i 187 REER
JEREERAA
New Cove Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Investment holding
ABRLES LE (3 REER
OM Gem Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$10,000 Design and sale of
e gl 10,0008 jewelry products
and sale of precious
stones
Rt RAEREERIAR
HEER
One Synergy Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$1 Investment holding
(“One Synergy”) e LE 1871 RERR
Open Heart Investments ~ British Virgin Islands  Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Investment holding
Limited ABELRS 8 1%7 REER
Radiant Beauty Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$1 Investment holding
EEEARAT & EE 187 RE#ER
Rexdale Investment Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$10,000,000 Property holdings
Limited (“Rexdale”) BA L& 10,000,000 BENE
Riche Advertising Limited  British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Sale of financial assets
By e LE (E HESCHEE
Riche (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands  Ordinary 100 100 US$1,000 Investment holding
ABRLHS HE 1,000 %7 RERR

M EZMIREERAT
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47. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 47. B AR 215 (#&)
(Continued)
Class of Proportion of
Country/place of shares held/  ownership interest and Issued and fully
incorporation or registered voting power held by paid share capital/
Name of subsidiary operation capital the Company registered capital  Principal activities
Gl KERB,/ KAABEZRERRES CRORBERE/
MEAR LR feEzER /4% EARRKER REFELH B TERHE
2016 2015
ZE-AF ZB-1F
% %
Riche Distribution Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$1,000,000 Sub-licensing of film
EXBTERAR B LiE 1,000,000 7% fights and sale of
financial assets
BERYRTRREES
REE
Riche Multi-Media Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$2 Distribution of films and
EXZERERAT £l L& 2B other video features
BREPRAMTLGE
Riche Pictures Limited British Virgin Islands  Ordinary 100 100 USS1 Investment holding
AERZES i 1%% RE#ER
Riche Video Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$1,000 Distribution of video
R ERAR 7 =G (HK$2,000,000 products
non-voting BIEEAER
deferred shares®)
1,000 1T
(2,000,000
BT ERZREE
ERSG*)
Simple View Investment British Virgin Islands  Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Investment holding
Limited EBRZEES EE 1% REBR
Smart Title British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Investment holding
ABELRS HE (E REER
Stable Income Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$1,000,000 Dormant
BHBRAR ) L& 1,000,000 & 1T gRex
Victory Peace Holdings British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Investment holding
Limited ABRLHS HE 1£7 REZR
Virtue Crest Investments  British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Investment holding
Limited ABRZES Ea 1% REER
BEREBRAA
Yuan Shun Investments British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Investment holding
Limited AERZES BB 1%7 REER
TEREBRAF
MR (R) 883t The PRC Registered 100 100 RMB6,657,085 Investment holding
BRAT* e atfft AR®6,657,085 1 REZR
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47. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

e M BB R

47. BB 215 (&)

participate in any distribution on winding up.

A limited liability company (solely invested by
Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macao legal person)
established in the PRC.

A limited liability company (solely invested by legal
person) established in the PRC.

A limited liability company (solely invested by foreign
owned enterprise) established in the PRC.

Other limited liability company established in the
PRC.

(Continued)
Class of Proportion of
Country/place of shares held/  ownership interest and Issued and fully
incorporation or registered voting power held by paid share capital/
Name of subsidiary operation capital the Company registered capital  Principal activities
Gl KRS,/ ADARERERERER CRORBERE/
HWEARER FEzExR/HE  ERRAEH R ERELA EfRE TEXK
2016 2015
ZB-5¥ ZZ-If
% %
BEBRALER(IR)  The PRC Registered 100 100 RMB100,000 Investment holding
BRAR® e atfft ARM100,000r  REER
BNBHREEAERAR' The PRC Registered 100 100 RMB500,000 Trading of
EF aft AR 500,000 environmental
protection products
EERREM
BNXBREERERAR® The PRC Registered 100 100 RMB50,000,000  Property development
e atfft AR¥50,000,0007T #EmE
EMRERRNEBRAT The PRC Registered 100 100 RMBS5,000,000 Trading of
$ﬂ atfft AR®5,000,000t  environmental
protection products
EERREM
BN OGERZREER  The PRC Registered 100 100 RMB16,000,000  Property development
g e aEfft AR¥16,0000007T MR
The non-voting deferred shares, which are not held @ S m i gﬁgﬁg_;ﬁﬁ} Dz =] ztxﬁ Ek=3
by the Group, carry practically no rights to dividends B)EWRITEDZ S BEREXRESEES
nor to receive notice of nor to attend or vote at PR A Tﬁﬁﬂﬁikﬁ,ZiEi_RHjlﬁ?ké_R
any general meeting of Riche Video Limited nor to REerTREIRER > FNEESBIEZHET

AR ZFEF] o
RPBERI2EREFERA(BERZEA
BE) °
RABERIZBEREEATCEABE) °
RPBRI2EREEARDIERER
XBE) -

RAPBERY 2HMWEREEAF °

KIEREE IR EGRAA
“E—REFER

—ANEFZA=+—HUEFE
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47. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 47. B D8 2715 &)

(Continued)

The Company directly holds the interest in Riche
(BVI) Limited. All other subsidiaries are indirectly
held by the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities at the end of the year, except for
Golden Stone, which has issued the promissory
note in the principal amount of HK$30,000,000 to
Gome Finance on 12 November 2015.

Except for SkyNet, the directors of the Company
consider that Best Season Holdings Corp. and
Gainful Fortune Limited, the non-wholly owned
subsidiaries that have non-controlling interests,
are not material to the Group. Accordingly, the
financial information of Best Season Holdings
Corp. and Gainful Fortune Limited is not
separately presented in the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of the material non-wholly owned
subsidiary that has non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of the material
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group that

AN T E#EEFERiche (BVI) Limited 2
e TEEMKBARNEHEALTM[
EEE -

BMR=-—Z—HF+— A+ =HGolden
StoneBE B E X RMBETAESHES
30,000,000 % jT 2 A& X EE N - BT
BABRERFERBITEMERES

BRALZE B BN - A QR E SR A Best
Season Holdings Corp. K& Gainful
Fortune Limited (BB ZERER 2
FLENBLARHAEEMSLHFE
K o EIt Best Season Holdings Corp.
¥ Gainful Fortune Limited ZB1#&& %
WENAZEFREVBBRERTOHES -

BEXEREBEZEXFZENBAA
2wt

TRHEIAEEETEBEERFERE
HmZBEAFZEMBARZHE -

has material non-controlling interests:

Proportion of

ownership interests and Accumulated

Name of Place of voting rights held by  Loss allocated to non- non-controlling
subsidiary incorporation non-controlling interests ~ controlling interests interests
FEREZFSRER PEFHER
WEAAER AL RERRRELH G 5d o ZitFERER
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-NE ZE-1f ZE-NE ZB-1f ZE-RXE ZE-If
HK’000 HK’000 HK’000 HK’000
W TEr FEn TEn
SkyNet The Cayman Islands and - - - (5,654) - -
Mz continued in Bermuda
FERERRERERE

299 ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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47. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 47. B R B 2715 (&)

(Continued)

Details of the material non-wholly owned
subsidiary that has non-controlling interests
(Continued)

The summarised consolidated financial
information in respect of the SkyNet that has
material non-controlling interests is set out

BEFEREZCERFZENBAA
215 (&)

BEERFERBBECMEEB 2GRS
MBERNBERIINT

below:
2015
—E-HF
HK$’000
FET
Current assets EBEE -
Non-current assets FRBEE -
Current liabilities REaE -
Non-current liabilities FRBEE -
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A2 B#HE AEERER -
Non-controlling interests FERES -
For the
period from
1 January
2015 to
6 November
2015
B-Z-A1F
=J5=[EZ&
—E-FRfF
+—AABHH
HK$’000
FET
Revenue I & 37,021
Loss from operations EKEE (21,463)
Loss for the period &R (22,988)
Loss for the period attributable to owners of  ZAA T HHE A ELEARIEE
the Company (17,333)
Loss for the period attributable to FERERELBEER
non-controlling interests (5,655)
Loss for the period HEEE (22,988)

Other comprehensive expense attributable to A2 A #A A EBIGEM 2 EE %

owners of the Company

Other comprehensive income attributable to ~ JEIERERE(EE M2 E G

non-controlling interests

Other comprehensive expense for the period  HIBE M2 EE X

KIEREE IR EGRAA
ZEREFER
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47. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 47. B AR ZFHE (&)
(Continued)
Details of the material non-wholly owned BEHERESBCEREZEMNELT
subsidiary that has non-controlling interests 2B (E)
(Continueqd)
For the
period from
1 January
2015 to
6 November
2015
BE-ZE-1F
—A-A%
—E-HEF
+—AXBHEH
HK$’000
FET
Total comprehensive expense attributable to  AQ R HE AELZEA A4
owners of the Company (17,334)
Total comprehensive expense attributable to  FFIEREREEZEBI X EE
non-controlling interests (5,655)
Total comprehensive expense for the period A2 E R X 4% (22,989)
Dividends received from SkyNet during the HACWMERE ZRE
period -
Net cash inflow from operating activities RETHEEZHSRANFHE 130,409
Net cash inflow from investing activities REZDEEZHERATE 5,312
Net cash outflow from financing activities METHEE B RHFEE (342)
Net cash inflow BERNFE 135,379
On 6 November 2015, SkyNet allotted and issued RZZE—HF+—AH MEEHAE
345,000,000 new ordinary shares and 30,000,000 2% & 3 17345,000,000 f% 31 = @ IR AR
new convertible preferred shares to six 7 % 30,000,000 A% %7 o] #2 B 18 %&£ IR F
subscribers. Upon the allotment and issue of the NERBA MBEREBETHSERRS
new ordinary shares, the Group’s shareholding B AEBRMEEE 2 EREZRCEH
interest in SkyNet was diluted from 70.18% to 70.18% #EZE 12.51% » WHREHER
12.51% and was deemed to dispose of a 57.67% MZEEH257.67T%EBRER - RIEH
shareholding interest in SkyNet. The deemed EETEER-E-—HF+—BBEK °

disposal was taken place on 6 November 2015.
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48. TRANSACTION WITH

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

On 30 March 2016, China Hong Kong Money, a
then wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
allotted and issued 599,999 new shares and
400,000 new shares at an issue price of HK$1.00
per share to Open Heart Investments Limited, a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and an
independent third party respectively. As a result
of the allotment and issue of the new shares,
the Group’s shareholding interest in China
Hong Kong Money reduced from 100% to 60%
and the Group was deemed to dispose of 40%
shareholding interest in China Hong Kong Money.
The Group recognised non-controlling interests
of HK$400,000 in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

On 21 December 2016, China Hong Kong Money,
a then 60% shareholding interest subsidiary of
the Company, allotted and issued 1,000,000 new
shares at an issue price of HK$1.00 per share
to an another shareholder of China Hong Kong
Money. As a result of the allotment and issue of
the new shares, the Group’s shareholding interest
in China Hong Kong Money diluted from 60% to
30% and the Group was deemed to dispose of
30% shareholding interest in China Hong Kong
Money. Following the resignation of Mr. Cheung
Kwok Wai Elton as a director of China Hong
Kong Money on the same date, the Group was
regarded as having significant influence in China
Hong Kong Money. Upon the deemed disposal
and resignation, China Hong Kong Money
ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company. The
Group derecognised non-controlling interests
of HK$400,000 in the consolidated statement of
financial position and recognised China Hong
Kong Money as an associate of the Group.
Details of deemed disposal of China Hong Kong
Money are set out in note 43 to the consolidated
financial statements.

48. FERERZRXZ

t’i

—~"E=ZB=1tH ' HBEE(K
’“7EHTZ%§WJ*’AT)&§§?'HE§
% 1.00 % T 7 Bl it 8% % 3% 17 599,999 Ik
AR K 400,000 RF M FARAAZR
& Mf & X B Open Heart Investments
Limited X —BBIUE=T o Al Kk 2
THRERGO® XEERPBEZFRE
HEMB100%AE60% @ WHREHER
¢%§240%%Ex$§£ﬁ°$%l}?‘.qn
iﬂﬁ%ﬂkﬂ%ﬁiﬂﬁﬁ 2400,000 78 JT IE #= A
B °

RZE—XRE+ZA=Z+—H BBE
(AN EREEO%REZHEAR)
LER1.00BT 2B TEOTBES —
% 3R B 3% & 2% 17 1,000,000 R # BR 19 ©
HREERBITHRGD  AEBRDE
BroERRBERHGO%EEZ30% > m
AEEHRGEEHERBE Z230%KRHE -
BEEREELENBERIHBEES
B AEBWEAHPBEREEAY
o N REHERBETER FBETH
%$ﬁ12%%ﬁ7 REBREGE Y
AR 0 R AR LE #E 52 400,000 58 T 2 3F
&W%m'lﬁ BEAKREE 2
4Aﬂoﬁ¢&¢¢%§zﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ
SRR MEE 43 o

Xig "Bl"*?x BEHRAT
T—RFFIR

225



000000000 WO

]DOOW’WDQOH OO

/Notes to the Consolldated FlnanC|aI Statements .'"'E

100

226

GEMBEEME

For.the year ended 31 December 2016 BZ-F—~F+=

49. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group entered into
the following material related party transactions
during the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015:

Loan (from)/to related parties are as follows:

.I H_J
I :_f.\ ,Jr
A=1—HIFE

49, EXEABALIRS

BREGESMBHREREAME D FIRESE
REBEZZE—ARER=ZZE-—HFE+=A
=+—ALFE AEBEFTLTHEK
BEALIRS :

BEEAL(KER), " REERMOT :

2016 2015
—RF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Amount due from an associate FEUR — R B & X B 5k IE
(Note a and note 30) (Hiata R Kzt 30) 1,697 2,097
Amount due to an associate e — R B & A Bl 5k IE
(Note a and note 38) (K7t a K izt 38) (991) —
Notes: Kzt
(@) The financial assistance provided by the Group to (a) AEEHMO-EHEEATREZGEERL

an associate is not a connected transaction under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(o) During the year ended 31 December 2015, interest
on interest bearing other borrowings of HK$6,000
was paid to Koffman Investment Limited (“Koffman
Investment”), which was 50% owned by Mr. Yu
Zhen Hua Johnny (a former executive director
of SkyNet). The financial assistance provided by
Koffman Investment to EDS Distribution Limited is
a connected transaction fully exempted from the
connected transaction requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules as the terms of the loan are
better than the normal commercial terms and the
loan is not secured by the assets of the SkyNet.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2016

FEMRAUFV4ATET Z2HERS °

(b) BEZE—RAE+-A=1+—HILFE:
EOeEREEERAG(SEREE))
i%ﬁﬁB 000 T2t EHEMERZAE

ERREHMZEB BT %%?ﬁi
%i%ﬁm%ﬁﬁoééﬁﬁﬁﬁws
Distribution Limited - BIEEBE
—E%%ﬁ%g%tﬁﬁM%MAﬁﬁT
BEXZREZBEERS  JTHREXR
BREREEFMEGKT  REF r*mm
TE EERF
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49. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE=Z

e M R R B

—NFF A=+ —HIEFE

49. EXRBABA LIRS (#)

Compensation for key management personnel FTEEEASEHMH
The remuneration of executive directors and i@ ’;ﬂﬁ%gﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ(%ig%ﬁ
the Chief Executive Officer, who are key AB)ZMEMT -
management, during the year was as follows:
2016 2015
—EB-REF —E-hEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Director’s fees EEwe 120 120
Salaries, allowances and e EBEREYREF
benefits in kind 19,226 15,574
Discretionary bonuses ﬁ’] TETEAL 23,580 19,038
Contributions to retirement benefits ERBRIETEIHR
scheme 72 72
Equity-settled share-based payment  LIRELEE 2 RO ZFHBIx
expenses - 4,396
42,998 39,200

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs”
(see note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements).

The remuneration of executive directors and
the Chief Executive Officer is approved by the
board of directors on the recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee having regard to the
duties and responsibilities of individuals.

& TiEt AT B TRA [( RS BB IR
RMFFE1T)

HITESROTBRAR - HME I HESS
BRFMEES CHBREBERZEEAZ
BHERBERE -

KERBEIRERRAF
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49. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Other transactions

(a)

During the year ended 31 December
2015, EDS Distribution Limited, a non-
wholly subsidiary of the Group, paid
rental of HK$25,000 to Koffman Corporate
Service Limited, which is wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Yu Zhen Hua
Johnny (a former executive director of
SkyNet). The transaction is a continuing
connected transaction fully exempted
from the continuing connected transaction
requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules as all the percentage ratios
(other than profits ratio) in respect of the
transaction are less than 5% and the annual
rental payment for each year during the
22-month tenancy ending on 31 January
2016 is less than HK$3,000,000.

On 9 September 2016, Mr. Lei Hong Wai,
the Chairman of the board of directors and
an executive director of the Company, made
a cash advance of HK$30,000,000 to the
Group for financing the short-term funding
needs of the Group. The cash advance
was non-interest bearing and unsecured.
On 5 October 2016, the Group repaid
HK$30,000,000 to Mr. Lei Hong Wai.

50. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Group had the following major non-cash investing
and financing activities which are not reflected in
the consolidated statement of cash flows:

(a)

part of the consideration for the acquisition
of Smart Title was settled by (i) the allotment
and issue of 1,500,000,000 ordinary shares
of the Company at an issue price of
HK$0.70 per share to the shareholders of
Huayi Tencent and (ii) the utilisation of the
deposit for investment of HK$60,000,000
paid to Huayi Tencent during the year ended
31 December 2014. Further details of the
acquisition are set out in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements; and

part of the consideration for the acquisition
of Best Volume was settled by the issue of
the promissory note in the principal amount
of HK$30,000,000. Further details of the
acquisition are set out in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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49. EXRBABALRZ (#)

HthX 5

()

REBZ-_ZE—HF+=-BA=+—H
EEE > REEZHFE2ENBER A
EDS Distribution Limited & @ F
EEEEMEEBMAHITES)
2ENERHEECEEREELH
R B R A 7 X £25,0008
Lo ZRZB—EBEEEHRET L
MRAFEMAZETRFEBRERS
HREZEERERS  JTHNRERH
ZRXBZHERADERGFIBERR
IMNEBERSN REBE=ZE—~FE—H
=t+—HIE22@BENPEFE2F
EHE€ XK 3,000,0008 T ©

RZZBE-—ARFAANB XD TE
ERTIERVITESTHELLER
AEBzEPELERRHEESM
@< &£ E4E £ 30,000,000 TR £
AR -BHERFARERERM o
R-ZB—AR"FE+HAHERB - AEEE
[e] Z= ## {2 5t 4 1€ # 30,000,000 8
7’E o

50. EEFRERH

REBE-ZFZ-—HF+-A=+t—HLHF
E AEEEUTELRRGERERE
REMzEBIRERERBMETE

(a)

W B8 Smart Title = ZB3KAE LA (i) 1%
FRO.708B T 2R TEOEHEBET
2 PR 3R E % K 2% 47 1,500,000,000
BAANBEBRKRG)E BARE
E_E-—NE+ZHA=+—HI
FECENEEEA2RERS
60,000,000 8 THEAE - BRAZIK
BEE E—SHBIARGET
WEME42 ) &

B Best Volume 2 ZB19 K18 LA 3¢
177X € %8 /2 30,000,000 & JT &2 &
AEBELEE - FRAZWEBEEZ
E-—SHEBEHRGSMBERRMT
42 o
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51. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern and maintain
healthy ratios in order to support its business
and enhance shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it, in light of changes
in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue of new shares or
redemption of existing shares as well as raise
or repay debts. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The Group monitors its capital structure by
reference to its gearing ratio, which is the
Group’s total borrowings over equity attributable
to owners of the Company. The gearing ratios as
at 31 December 2016 and 2015 were as follows:

51. EXEBER

AEBEREACTEERAREALSE
SEEE RIS EFTRBLL R B
EEEBREARRES -

AEBEEHERAGERBRIRBEBEER
SFHARE  EFRAABRELS
B AEESREARRRBZRE
BRRVEBEAS RTHRIAERES
BROUREENEEEH - -BLFE
FEBEZBRERBESTE -

AEESZHEEEBR(AAEEBG
RBERUARDAHEEAEGEES) E
WHER - RZE-—ARFR=-ZF—FHF
+ZBA=t—HEEEBLERNT :

2016 2015

—E—-RE —E—FE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Total borrowings (Note) BTRABER (EE) 175,081 214,007

Less: cash and cash equivalents B ERERREEEY (438,975) (509,341)

Net cash REFH (263,894) (295,334)
Equity attributable to owners of the RNAHEE AEEERE

Company 3,249,145 3,352,310

Gearing ratio EESBRLE 5.39% 6.38%

Note:

Total borrowings include promissory notes and bank

borrowings.

ERREOEALRERBTHER

KERBREBRAR
—E-RFFRH
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

52. $@TH

Categories of financial instruments ST EER
2016 2015
—E-REF —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Financial assets TREE
Loans and receivables (including cash EBREEKRZE(ERRER
and cash equivalents) REZEW) 1,044,616 1,145,345
Available-for-sale financial assets AtHEEREE
— Listed equity securities — FHRARES 365,000 262,500
— Unlisted debt security — LM EKRES 172 172
Financial assets at fair value through S EABEEEREZ
profit or loss classified as held for BATPESABRES
trading investments EREE
— Listed equity securities — L HRAES 544,442 597,658
Financial liabilities EREE
Amortised cost 85 RS 471,771 507,536

The Group’s major financial instruments include
loans receivables, trade receivables, other
receivables, amount due from an associate, cash
and cash equivalents, available-for-sale financial
assets, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss classified as held for trading investments,
trade payables, deposits received, accruals and
other payables, amount due to an associate,
promissory notes and bank borrowings.

Loans receivables, trade receivables, other
receivables, amount due from an associate and

AEBCTESHIEGERKER
B EWRARE  HMEWFIE - EWRE
ERNARE -BehRBSEEY —H,\
HESMEE  PEARTEEERE Z
1&’&$Tﬁ“l‘)\¢ﬁﬁﬁ%§2%mﬁl§é
EAFE- ElhiRe F&.‘I‘%Fﬁ&ﬁﬂﬁ
FETRIE - B —BEBE D RIE - &
HEERBITER ©

%

EWER - B5REWIE - HaEWR

cash and cash equivalents are categorised under

“loans and receivables”.

Trade payables, deposits received, accruals and
other payables, amount due to an associate,
promissory notes and bank borrowings are

categorised under “amortised cost”.
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.
These risks include market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk and price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk.

Market risk

(@

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s operations are mainly in Hong
Kong and the PRC. An entity within the
Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
from commercial transactions and monetary
assets and liabilities that are denominated in
a currency that is not the entity’s functional
currency.

The Group engages in property investment
business in the PRC through its local
subsidiaries with RMB as their functional
currency. These PRC subsidiaries are not
exposed to foreign currency risk as their
commercial transactions and monetary
assets and liabilities are denominated in
RMB.

Several subsidiaries of the Group with Hong
Kong dollars as their functional currency
have commercial transactions and monetary
assets and liabilities that are denominated
in United States dollars (the “USD”), British
Pound, Euro, Australian dollars and Emirati
Dirham.

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. It manages its
foreign exchange risk by closely monitoring
financial position and cash flow exchange
risk exposures and where considered
appropriate using financial instruments,
such as forward exchange contracts,
foreign currency options and forward rate
agreements, to hedge the foreign exchange
risk.
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(a

(b)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s
entities with functional currency of Hong
Kong dollars had the aggregate net
monetary liabilities denominated in USD of
HK$7,230,000 (2015: HK$10,714,000). Given
that Hong Kong dollars are pegged to USD,
the directors of the Company consider that
there is no significant foreign exchange risk
with respect to USD.

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s entities
with functional currency of Hong Kong
dollars had the aggregate net monetary
assets denominated in British Pound, Euro,
Australian dollars and Emirati Dirham of
HK$354,000 (2015: HK$1,268,000). Given
that the aggregate net monetary assets
denominated in these foreign currencies is
less than 1% (2015: less than 1%) of the
Group’s net assets at 31 December 2016,
the directors of the Company consider that
the net monetary assets of these currencies
are not significant to the Group at the
end of the reporting period. Accordingly,
no sensitivity analysis is prepared and
disclosed.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk
through the impact of rate changes on
interest bearing assets and liabilities. Cash
flow interest rate risk is the risk that changes
in market interest rates will impact cash
flows arising from variable rate financial
instruments. The Group’s interest bearing
assets mainly include deposits at bank
and loans receivables. The Group’s loans
receivables carry fixed interest rates, which
exposes the Group to fair value interest
rate risk. The Group’s bank borrowings are
affected by fluctuation of the benchmark
interest rate of The People’s Bank of China
and expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk.
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(b)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group currently does not have an
interest rate hedging policy. It manages
its interest rate risk by closely monitoring
the interest rate movements and where
considered appropriate using financial
instruments to hedge the interest rate risk.

If the benchmark interest rate of The
People’s Bank of China had been 50 basis
points (2015: 50 basis points) higher/lower
with all other variables held constant, the
Group’s (loss)/profit before taxation for
the year ended 31 December 2016 would
have been HK$725,000 (2015: HK$920,000)
higher/lower.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in the benchmark
interest rate of The People’s Bank of China
had occurred throughout the year and had
been applied to the exposure to interest rate
risk for financial instruments in existence
at the end of the reporting period. The 50
basis points (2015: 50 basis points) increase
or decrease represents the directors’
assessment of a reasonably possible change
in the benchmark interest rate of The
People’s Bank of China which has the most
impact on the Group over the period until
the end of next reporting period.
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(c) Price risk

234

The Group is exposed to equity securities
price risk arising from the listed equity
securities held by the Group. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair
value of available-for-sale financial assets
and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss classified as held for trading
investments are dealt with in other
comprehensive income and profit or loss
respectively.

The Group manages its price risk by
regularly monitoring equity portfolio to
address any portfolio issues promptly and
spreading price risk exposure by investing a
number of listed equity securities.

At 31 December 2016, if the price of listed
equity securities in available-for-sale
financial assets had been 15% (2015: 15%)
higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December
2016 would have been HK$54,750,000
(2015: HK$39,375,000) higher/lower. The
sensitivity analysis has been determined
based on a reasonable expectation of
possible valuation volatility over the next 12
months.

At 31 December 2016, if the price of listed
equity securities in financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss had been 15%
(2015: 15%) higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s (loss)/
profit before taxation for the year ended
31 December 2016 would have been
HK$81,666,000 (2015: HK$89,649,000)
higher/lower. The sensitivity analysis has
been determined based on a reasonable
expectation of possible valuation volatility
over the next 12 months.
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from
deposits with banks, trade receivables, loans
receivables and balance receivable from an
associate. The exposures to these credit risks
are regularly monitored on an ongoing basis by
established credit policies in each of the Group’s
core businesses.

Bank deposits are mainly placed with high-credit-
quality financial institutions. Trade receivables
mainly include receivables from sale of jewelry
products and precious stones, and lease of
properties. Loans receivables include receivables
from loans granted to customers which carry
fixed interest rates. The Group carries out regular
reviews and follow-up actions on any overdue
amounts to minimise exposures to credit risk.
There is no significant concentration of credit
risk with respect to trade receivables and loans
receivables from third party customers as the
customer bases are widely dispersed. The
directors of the Company review the recoverable
amount of each individual trade receivables and
loans receivables at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts.

In addition, the Group monitors the exposure to
credit risk in respect of the financial assistance
provided to associates through exercising
significant influence over their financial and
operating policy decisions and reviewing their
financial positions on a regular basis.
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk rests with
the board of directors of the Company, which has
built an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework to meet the Group’s short, medium
and long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Group manages its liquidity
risk by regularly monitoring liquidity and financial
position, maintaining appropriate liquidity
to cover commitments, limiting liquidity risk
exposure by investing only in securities listed on
major stock exchanges, and ensuring acceptable
and appropriate finance in place, or believed
to be available before committing investment
projects.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative
financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of the
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. The
tables include both interest and principal cash
flows.
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 52. €T A (&)
Financial risk management objectives and HHRAREEEERBR (&)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) FEEL R (&)
Weighted
average Within Total Total
effective 1 year or 1t05 Over un-discounted carrying
rate  ondemand years 5 years cash flows amount
ngYH (EE AR
Tk REX 1258 SENE BBeHE RaseE
HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
FAr FAr FAr FAr A1
216 TE-RE
Trade payables BAEME - 36,532 - - 36,53 36,532
Deposits received, accruals and Bhike - EFERR
other payables AfbEFE - 173,497 85,670 - 259,167 259,167
Promissory notes RAEE - 30,000 - - 30,000 30,000
Amount due to an associate Eff-ERELTFE - 091 - - 991 991
Bank borrowings BiRR 551% 28,698 114,793 9,566 153,057 145,081
269,718 200,463 9,566 479,747 anm
2015 ZE-1f
Trade payables BARMTE - 40220 - - 40220 40220
Deposits recelved, accruals and Blke  EHERR
other payables HipE3E = 161,019 92,290 = 253,309 253,309
Promissory notes REEE = 30,000 = = 30,000 30,000
Bank borrowings RIER 6.49% 30,940 123,757 41,229 195,926 184,007
262,179 216,047 41,229 519,455 507,536
KERBRERRAT
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements of financial

instruments

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

the fair values of financial assets and
financial liabilities with standard terms and
conditions and traded in active markets are
determined with reference to quoted market
bid prices and ask prices respectively;

the fair values of derivative instruments
are calculated using quoted prices. When
such prices are not available, a discounted
cash flow analysis is performed using the
applicable yield curve for the duration of
the instruments for non-optional derivatives,
and option pricing models for optional
derivatives; and

the fair values of other financial assets
and financial liabilities (excluding those
described above) are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial
statements approximate to their fair values.
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 52. €I A (&)
Fair value measurements of financial EMITAEZAFEFEE

instruments (Continued)

The following table presents the fair value of TR2INAEERBRERREEELE
the Group’s financial instruments measured at EHBEZEMIBEATE W WREQAF
the end of the reporting period on a recurring E*f;ﬁ)&%ﬂféz—JEﬂﬁkr&ﬁ)\%
basis, categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based BYHALEFEEBECEEMHHEA
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair 1~ SB2REIL  HMWT -

value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described

as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) e F1HRWMAHBIEBNITE2AMH
in active markets for identical assets or RS ZHEREER BN ERM
liabilities that the entity can access at the SHFRER CRERAE) |
measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted o FoMWMAHBNEEREGZT
prices included within Level 1, that are EESBESERES 2 AZE
observable for the asset or liability, either (51 RFABEERERN) s &
directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for e EIRWMABBDNEEZIEGZT
the asset or liability. AIEEES 2w A RIS -
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 52. @I R (&)
Fair value measurements of financial SMIAECZAFEFEE)

instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial instruments BREMAEL N FEFEZLAEFS
that are measured at fair value on a recurring BTAZAFEE
basis
Fair value at Fair value at Valuation
31 December 31 December Fair value techniques
2016 2015 hierarchy and key inputs
R=B-"E RIB-I1F
+ZA=+-B +ZA=t+-H EERITR
Financial assets tREE ZAVE ZDTE AVEER TEGAYE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FEx
Available-for-sale financial ~ AEHESHERE
assets
— Listed equity securities - LmREES 365,000 262,500 Level 1 Quoted closing prices in
F1R active markets
RWEBTZ Rz WmE
Financial assets at fair value 2 BAEEEERE
through profit or loss BRAFESABRE
classified as held for trading Z£RBEE
investments
— Listed equity securities - LhREES 544,442 597,658 Level 1 Quoted closing prices in
R active markets

RERHSHR W E
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 52. M IT R (&
Fair value measurements of financial EMITAEZAFEFEE

instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial instruments
that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis (Continued)

Details of the fair value hierarchy of the Group’s
financial instruments at 31 December 2016 and
2015 are as follows:

BEZMBEELLAFPEHFSEBZAEEE
BT Rz AFEE)

BRAR-ZE-—R"ER-_Z-HF+ZA
=t+t—B AKRETRIAEQATFEZE
MEBWT

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
14 %28 LY h
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Financial assets tHEE -3 ZB-3F CE-3f ZR-1f ZB-RF ZE-1F CE-Af CR-IF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000
FAT FAT FET FAT FAT FAT FEn FEn
Available-for-sale financial A ESRER
assets
— Listed equity securiies - EmRAES 365,000 262,500 - - - - 365,000 262,500
Financial assets at fair value 2 BBZEEERE
though profit or loss YRATEFA
classified as held for BRxz o
trading investments &E
— Listed equity securities - EmiRAESE 544442 507,658 - - - - 544442 507,658
009442 860,158 - - - ~ oM 860,158
During the years ended 31 December 2016 and RBE-_Z-—RFR=-Z—HF+=A

2015, there were no transfers between Level 1
and 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as of the
date of the events or change in circumstances
that cause the transfer.

=+-BLEEFE > B1RF2RZEHE
BE FEEAREBHEIR -

REBEBZHRRBREI BB RS4RI
MELERBRANFESR 2B 2EE -

KIEREE IR EGRAA
“E—REFER
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53. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2016,

the Group had the

following material contingent liabilities:

(a)

On 20 March 2014, the Company announced
that it came to its attention that a writ of
summons in High Court Action No. 9 of 2014
was issued by The Grande Holdings Limited
(in liquidation), Roderick John Sutton (as
joint and several provisional liquidator of
The Grande Holdings Limited), Fok Hei Yu
(as joint and several provisional liquidator
of The Grande Holdings Limited) and 65
other companies listed as plaintiffs against
25 defendants inclusive of One Synergy,
a company acquired by the Group in
December 2011. One Synergy has, as at the
date of this annual report, not been served
with the writ of summons.

The action alleges, inter alia, that One
Synergy is liable to the plaintiffs as a
constructive trustee and/or by way of
equitable compensation and/or an accounts
of profits and/or restitution and/or damages
as a knowing recipient and/or by reason
of the knowing or dishonest assistance in
the breaches of trust and/or breaches of
fiduciary duties by various of the defendants
and/or by reason of dealings between One
Synergy and the plaintiffs otherwise being
voidable (and avoided), void, unlawful or
illegal, in respect of its receipt of the shares
in The Grande Properties Ltd. (now known
as Rexdale), a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company.
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53. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

Riche (BVI) Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, acquired
the entire issued share capital of Adelio
Holdings Limited, which was the holding
company of One Synergy, from Vartan
Holdings Limited, an independent third
party, pursuant to a sale and purchase
agreement dated 25 May 2011. One Synergy
acquired the entire issued share capital
of Rexdale from Lafe Corporation Limited,
being one of the defendants, pursuant to
a sale and purchase agreement dated 31
December 2010 (the “Agreement”). The
entire issued share capital of Rexdale was
sold by The Grande (Nominees) Ltd., being
one of the plaintiffs, and The Grand Limited
to Lafe Corporation Limited on or about 29
June 2007. The principal assets of Rexdale
were the whole of the 1st floor and the flat
roof, the whole of 6th to 12th floors, roof,
external walls, two lavatories, three lorry
parking spaces and eight private car parking
spaces on the ground floor of an industrial
building located in Kwun Tong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong with a total gross floor of
approximately 139,412 square feet exclusive
of lavatories, lorry and private car parking
spaces, flat roof and roof (collectively, the
“Kwun Tong Properties”). The Kwun Tong
Properties was sold by Rexdale to Grand
Reward Limited, an independent third party,
in July 2013.

One Synergy has sought counsel opinion on
the writ of summons and has been advised
to defend the plaintiffs’ claim in the said
action. Counsel has advised that, based
upon available evidence, there is nothing
unusual in the Agreement and One Synergy
would not have any express or constructive
notice of the plaintiffs’ alleged irregularities
and/or fraudulent acts of the former
directors and/or management officers of the
plaintiffs and One Synergy should not be
held liable to any part of the plaintiffs’ claim
and has good and valid defence thereto.

53. RARBE (&)

(a)

(&)

Riche (BVI) Limited (&XRA & 2z 2
ENBARRBENR_-ZF——FH
B-+EHBFIYZEEHZERB L
% =7 Vartan Holdings Limited Y
B& Adelio Holdings Limited (One
Synergy ZIZRR AT 2 & HE BT
JRZ o One Synergy RIER=-F—
EF+-RA=1+—HiZZEEH
# ([ 2% 1) [ Lafe Corporation
Limited (HAR — B & A ) W&
Rexdalez 2 M E BT KR &Ko
Rexdale 2 2 Z8E B 1T R 2N H The
Grande (Nominees) Ltd. (E & —
ZE#% A) R The Grand Limited %
—EELFERAZTABRAEE
£ F Lafe Corporation Limited °
Rexdale 2FXFEEER —BEUNRE
BAEBEZCIXEREZ—E2E
RRXE(FHE)  AE+=EZE -
RE B MEXFE - KEH#
TR=EEaEEuR/\EALREE
i BEEMBENR139,412F 75
R(TEBREEFE - EERILRE
HEN XE(FEH)IRXE)H
BEBEWE] BEUYER=-F
— =%+t A Rexdale HEFHI
FEZHRERRAT -

One Synergy EmZSMEBRZERE
BERzER WEZERHERSAR
FRAFREZRREL R ©
EERBERT RERERE Z
MBELEEMASEZE * KOne
Synergy it T EHERKHEEAE
BEEAFMEBEAESEK XE
BABZERER SHFETHE B
One Synergy TEHREARERZ
FEBHE LEREME > AEFEH
BOREYZIE o

MBI AR AT
B REEH

243



244

OO Notes(t

fn & M 3 R R

For.the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZLE—NF+ A =+—HILFEZ

53. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

(b)

On 1 April 2015, the Contractor commenced
a civil proceeding (the “Proceeding”)
against Yingrui at the People’s Court of
Yuexiu District of Guangzhou City (the
“People’s Court”) for failing to pay certain
payments in the sum of RMB11,427,354
(equivalent to HK$12,775,000) under
the construction contract entered into
between Yingrui and the Contractor for the
construction of the Guangzhou Property
dated 28 July 2010, plus the interest
accrued thereon and the related costs
and expenses incurred in relation to the
Proceeding. The amount claimed by the
Contractor under the Proceeding comprises
(i) the construction progress payment of
RMB1,420,000 (equivalent to HK$1,587,000),
(ii) the return of the performance bond of
RMB1,000,000 (equivalent to HK$1,118,000)
and (iii) the balance payment of construction
fee of RMB9,007,354 (equivalent to
HK$10,070,000). On 7 April 2015, the
People’s Court upon an application of
the Contractor issued a seizure order on
certain units of the Guangzhou Property
in the aggregate value of RMB15,000,000
(equivalent to HK$16,769,000) to protect
the interest of the Contractor under the
Proceeding.

Pursuant to the first trial written judgement
issued by the People’s Court on 24 June
2016 (the “First Trial Judgement”), the
People’s Court has ruled:

(i) Yingrui to make a one-off payment
of RMB7,662,183 (equivalent to
HK$8,566,000), being the construction
fee, plus the interest accrued for the
period from 13 September 2013 to the
payment date calculated daily at the
similar lending rate published by The
People’s Bank of China for the same
period to the Contractor;
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53. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

(Continued)

(i) Yingrui to return the performance
bond of RMB1,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,118,000) by making a one-off
payment plus the interest accrued for
the period from 1 October 2013 to the
payment date calculated daily at the
similar lending rate published by The
People’s Bank of China for the same
period to the Contractor;

(iii) the Contractor’s other claims on the
Proceeding be dismissed; and

(iv) Yingrui to pay RMB239,207 (equivalent
to HK$267,000), being part of all the
costs of the First Trial Judgement.

Having consulted with its legal advisers,
Yingrui lodged an appeal against the First
Trial Judgement to the Intermediate People’s
Court of Guangzhou City in July 2016 (the
“Appeal”).

No provision for the Proceeding was made
in the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016 as Best Volume, the immediate
holding company of Yingrui, has secured an
unconditional undertaking from Ace Guide
Holdings Limited, the ultimate beneficial
owner of Yingrui prior to the acquisition of
Yingrui by Best Volume in October 2014.
Pursuant to the unconditional undertaking,
Ace Guide Holdings Limited has agreed to
pay to Best Volume or its assignee by way
of damages an amount equal to any and
all losses incurred by Yingrui and/or Best
Volume resulting from, arising out of or in
relation to the Proceeding, including without
limitation payment under final effective
judgement or settlement, and all other costs
and expenses incurred in relation to the
Proceeding.
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For.the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZLZ=E

54. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Subsequent to 31 December 2016 and up to the
date of this annual report, the Group had the
following material events:

(a)

The fair value of the Group’s financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss decreased
from HK$544,442,000 at 31 December 2016
to HK$466,589,000 at the date of this annual
report.

The fair value of the Group’s available-
for-sale financial assets decreased from
HK$365,172,000 at 31 December 2016 to
HK$291,672,000 at the date of this annual
report.

The validity of the writ of summons in High
Court Action No. 9 of 2014 dated 3 January
2014 and issued by The Grande Holdings
Limited (in liquidation), Roderick John Sutton
(as joint and several provisional liquidator of
The Grande Holdings Limited), Fok Hei Yu
(as joint and several provisional liquidator
of The Grande Holdings Limited) and 65
other companies listed as plaintiffs against
25 defendants inclusive of One Synergy was
expired on 2 January 2017 and has not been
extended by the plaintiffs after 2 January
2017.
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54. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (Continued)

(d)

After the Appeal was heard by the
Intermediate People’s Court of Guangzhou
City, a judgement was handed down on 9
January 2017 dismissing the Appeal and
upholding the First Trial Judgement. On
15 March 2017, Yingrui and the Contractor
entered into a settlement agreement,
pursuant to which Yingrui agreed to pay
the Contractor a sum of RMB9,700,000
(equivalent to HK$10,844,000) within
three days from the date of the settlement
agreement as full and final settlement
of the Proceeding. On the same day,
Ace Guide Holdings Limited deposited
an amount of RMB9,700,000 (equivalent
to HK$10,844,000) into Yingrui’s
bank account and Yingrui paid said
amount of RMB9,700,000 (equivalent to
HK$10,844,000) was utilised by Yingrui
to pay to the Contractor pursuant to the
settlement agreement. On 16 March 2017,
the People’s Court has ruled the seizure
on certain units of the Guangzhou Property
in the aggregate value of RMB15,000,000
(equivalent to HK$16,769,000) be released.

55. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were
approved and authorised for issue by the board
of directors on 30 March 2017.
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For the year ended 31 December
BE+-HA=1+—-HLEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
-X"E ZE-HF ZE-NF ZF-=F CZE-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
Results E4
Revenue & 161,042 184,780 88,671 25,793 67,442
(Loss)/profit from cE(FE),BA
operations (201,278) 132,451 278,310 106,103 207,494
Finance costs BHEER (9,529) (1,609) - - -
(Loss)/profit before BREBEAT (B518) 8 A
taxation (210,807) 130,842 278,310 106,103 207,494
Income tax credit/ Fredins/ (BxX)
(expense) 2,903 (8,253) (6,898) (5,560) (1,236)
(Loss)/profit for the REFELEER Y
year from continuing rEE(FR)/
operations eyl (207,904) 122,589 271,412 100,543 206,258
Loss for the year RECKREREER
from discontinued ZAEEFE
operations - (22,988) (46,112) (3,306) -
(Loss)/profit for the year ~ REE (F18), &7l (207,904) 99,601 225,300 97,237 206,258
Dividends 35N - - - - -
At 31 December
R+=—A=+-H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
-AE  “E-Rf —T-NE —F-=fF _F-_F
HK$°'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
Assets and liabilities BEREE
Total assets ﬁ%:mﬁ 4,241,538 4,430,846 2,243,314 1,851,699 1,603,612
Total liabilities & EmE (992,399)  (1,078,541) (86,873) (26,330) (81,660)
Net assets BEFE 3,249,139 3,352,305 2,156,441 1,825,369 1,521,952
Capital and reserves ARREEA
attributable to bR AR
the owners of the s
Company 3,249,145 3,352,310 2,144,651 1,825,372 1,521,954
Non-controlling interest ~ JEiZRRAEZS (6) (5) 11,790 ®3) @)
3,249,139 3,352,305 2,156,441 1,825,369 1,521,952

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED

248 Annual Report 2016



ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
XEXRBERERARL A

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(RERZEZMETZHRAH)
(Stock Code MR 31855 : 764)

MIX

Paper from
responsible sources

E%g; FSC™ C007234



	Cover

	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Chairman’s Statement
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Corporate Governance Report
	Environmental, Social and Governance Report
	Directors’ Report
	Biographical Details of Directors
	Independent Auditors’ Report
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Five-Year Financial Summary
	Back Cover


